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12 31 810,732 (178,778) 631,954 875,089 (214,088) 661,001
2015 2014
38,725 38,725 41,424 41,424
9903 993 630 630
! 51,396 51,396 55,858 55,858
94 94 154 154
21,935 21,935 25,150 25,150
13,617 13,617 13,039 13,039
15,750 15,750 17,515 17,515
! 9 9

68/484



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

0000000
9 9
2 150,454 (128,855) 21,599 160,232 (136,187) 24,045
8 222,059 (26,485) 195,574 220,447 (35,607) 184,840
16,661 16,661 18,776 18,776
205,398 (26,485) 178,913 201,671 (35,607) 166,064
3 24,893 (518) 24,375 36,391 (628) 35,763
! 39,336 39,336 48,001 48,001
1,909 1,909 2,081 2,081
37,427 37,427 45,920 45,920
2,655 2,655 6,126 6,126
478 478 364 364
2,177 2,177 5,762 5,762
10,693 10,693 10,968 10,968
92,989 92,989 96,785 96,785
12 31 634,193 (155, 858) 478,335 676,871 (172,422) 504,449
1
2
2015 12 31 151 2014 174 126
2014 147 21 2014
24 2014
3
2015
ABS
2015
59 2014 61
2015
71 2014 73

69/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

SFT

2015 12 31 167 2014 188

HSBC

70/484



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 2014

83,483 31.97 83,009 31.92
24,285 9.30 24,381 9.38
107,768 41.27 107,390 41.30
67,987 26.04 74,003 28.46
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2,391 0.92 1,452 0.56
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128,912 49.37 135,932 52.27
24,093 9.23 16,085 6.19
336 0.13 645 0.24
24,429 9.36 16,730 6.43
12 31 261,109 100.00 260,052 100.00

2.44 2.46
76,701 37.04 76,847 37.77
9,39 4.54 8,936 4.39
86,097 41.58 85,783 42.16
47,331 22.86 54,512 26.79
12,044 5.82 11,273 5.54
3,516 1.70 3,128 1.54
1,094 0.53 964 0.47
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31,622 15.27 20,940 10.29
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81 81
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62,072 4,563 1,788 931 889 70,243
2,159 946 50 3,155
59,913 3,617 1,738 931 889 67,088
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110 27 444 581
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12 31 497,085 85,038 69,179 7,760 1,307 7,598 (2,603) 665,364
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62,694 14,479 8,410 302 85,885
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63,063 4,286 2,162 1,410 1,415 72,336
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5,461 413 1,358 147 6 4 7,389
12 31 522,908 112,807 74,206 9,627 1,553 7,834 (2,820) 726,115
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38,725 38,725
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38,487 6,870 5,804 235 51,396
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51 19 294 364
5,074 382 305 1 5,762
12 31 425,700 79,370 52,668 7,367 498 5,307 (1,792) 569,118
30 60 90
29 59 89 179 180
2015 12 31
878 311 108 5 1,302
538 157 83 778
334 150 25 5 514
6 4 10
3 1 1 5
881 311 109 6 1,307
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1,202 230 112 2 1 1,547
466 183 95 744
733 46 17 2 1 799
3 1 4
3 1 2 6
1,205 231 112 2 3 1,553
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127 14 141
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a7 2,002 - 17 2,066 1,808
681 512 1 86 1,280 381
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61 1,881 - 23 1,965 1,547
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420 2,300 - 331 3,051 1,831
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811 625 2 414 1,852 486
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16BP=USD 1.5587 GBP
SIC 2,098
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19,001 22,552
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332 2,339
13,013 11,617
2,659 3,628
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15 15
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2
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(951) (153,406) 1,129 182,119
1,023 165,020 2,518 406,179
1,018 164,214 2,504 403,920
5 807 14 2,258
1,023 165,020 2,518 406,179
352 2014 575
245 (2014 250 )
107 2014 325
102 186 19 71

72 81
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12 31
2015 2014
39,749 6,411,911 42,853 6,912,617
1,328 214,220 973 156,955
11 110,585 17,838,466 130,127 20,990,786
14 6,829 1,101,586 6,899 1,112,878
15 166,785 26,904,088 187,736 30,283,694
29 23,222 3,745,941 25,262 4,075,013
29 258,506 41,699,603 257,252 41,497,320
16 30,537 4,925,923 41,945 6,766,148
17 71,352 11,509,791 76,194 12,290,854
19 11,732 1,892,489 20,319 3,277,658
126 20,325 190 30,649
20 69 11,130 69 11,130
21 7,011 1,130,944 7,294 1,176,595
8 110 17,744 176 28,391
727,941 117,424,163 797,289 128,610,689
29 24,202 3,904,025 27,590 4,450,543
29 332,830 53,688,807 346,507 55,895,044
16 17,000 2,742,270 23,353 3,767,072
583 94,044 667 107,594
23 73,489 11,854,511 82,600 13,324,206
24 19,001 3,065,051 22,552 3,637,863
15 162,864 26,271,592 188,278 30,371,124
29 26,069 4,205,190 27,921 4,503,937
25 5,775 931,565 12,417 2,002,986
249 40,166 255 41,134
26 16,664 2,688,070 17,522 2,826,474
27 2,057 331,815 1,707 275,356
8 506 81,623 364 58,717
28 8,527 1,375,490 8,858 1,428,884
689,816 111,274,219 760,591 122,690,934
32 797 128,564 797 128,564
20,733 3,344,440 20,733 3,344,440
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32 3,584 578,135 2,196 354,237

(216) (34,843) 772 124,531

12,599 2,032,345 11,580 1,867,970

37,497 6,048,641 36,078 5,819,742

628 101,303 620 100,012

38,125 6,149,944 36,698 5,919,754

727,941 117,424,163 797,289 128,610,689

102 186 19 71
72 81
APS

2016 22
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12 31
2015 2014
2,971 479,252 1,953 315,038
33 2,515 405,695 2,918 470,703
33 17,158 2,767,757 19,031 3,069,891
33 (33,087) (5.337,264) (58,960) (9,510,838)
1,845 297,617 2,828 456,185
17%) (28,068) (359) (57,910)
@ (323) ®) (484)
(260) (41,941) (254) (40,973)
(711) (114,691) (579) (93,398)
(9.745) (1.571,966) (33,425) (5,391,787)
(30,540) (4,926,407) (26,890) (4,337,626)
33,876 5,464,538 26,132 4,215,353
(431) (69.525) (411) (66,298)
30 4,839 414 66,782
@17 (35,004) (231) (37,263)
2 323 2 323
(61) (9,840)
91 14,679 112 18,067
@ (161) 23 3,710
457) (73,719)
HSBC
(11) (1,774)
2,810 453,281 (1,378) (222,285)
306 49,361
1,388 223,898 2,196 354,237
1,140 183,893 203 32,746
(2,399) (386,983) (2,242) (361,657)
20 3,226 77 12,421
(1,027) (165, 665) (1,274) (205,509)
(15) (2,420) (16) (2,581)
(893) (144,050) (750) (120,983)
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(7,828) (1,262,735) (35,553) (5,735,054)
71,500 11,533,665 108,769 17,545,527
677) (109,207) (1,716) (276,808)
12 31 33 62,995 10,161,723 71,500 11,533,665
186 19 71

81
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2015 797 20,733 2,196 11,580 1,070 176 (474) 36,078 620 36,698
- - - 1,942 - - - 1,942 32 1,974
- - - 64 (9D (133) (764) (924) @n (951)
- - - - (1) - - D ® ©n
_ _ _ - - 133) - (133) - (133)
_ - - 64 - - - 64 1 65
_ - - - - - (764) (764) 2 (786)
- - - 2,006 D (133) (764) 1,018 5 1,023
1 - - 1,388 - - - - 1,388 - 1,388
- - - (1,027) - - - (1,027) (15) (1,042)
— — — 44 — — — 44 — 44
- - - () - - - @ 18 14
2015 12 31 797 20,733 3,584 12,599 979 43 (1.238) 37,497 628 38,125
2014 797 20,427 - 10,225 634 (13) 300 32,370 549 32,919
_ _ - 1,354 - - - 1,354 35 1,389
_ _ - 1,321 436 189 (796) 1,150 (21) 1,129
_ _ - - 436 - - 436 8 444
_ _ _ _ - 189 - 189 - 189
_ _ _ 1,321 - - - 1,321 ) 1,316
_ _ _ _ - - (796) (796) 2% (820)
- - - 2,675 436 189 (796) 2,504 14 2,518
L - 306 - - - - - 306 - 306
1 - - 2,196 - - - — 2,196 - 2,196
- - - (1,274) - - - (1,274) (16) (1,290)
_ _ - 15 - - _ 15 - 15
_ _ _ _ - - 22 22 - 22
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- - - 6L - - - (61) 73 12
2014 12 31 797 20,733 2,196 11,580 1,070 176 (474) 36,078 620 36,698
1 HSBC 32
102 186 19 71
72 81
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2015
128,564 3,344,440 354,237 1,867,970 172,602 28,391 (76,461) 5,819,742 100,012 5,919,754
- - - 313,264 313,264 5,162 318,426
_ _ _ 10,324 (14,679) (21,454) (123,241) (149,050) (4,355) (153,406)
_ _ _ - (14,679) - (14,679) (968) (15,647)
_ _ - _ _ (21,454) - (21,454) - (21,454)
- - - 10,324 - - - 10,324 161 10,485
- - - - - - (123,241) (123,241) (3.549) (126,790)
- - - 323,588 (14,679) (21,454) (123,241) 164,214 807 165,020
L - - 223,808 - - _ _ 223,898 _ 223,898
- - - (165, 665) - - - (165, 665) (2.420) (168,085)
_ _ _ 7,008 - _ _ 7,008 - 7,098
- - - (645) - - - (645) 2,904 2,258
2015 12 31
128,564 3,344,440 578,135 2,032,345 157,922 6,936 (199,702) 6,048,641 101,303 6,149,944
2014
128,564 3,295,079 - 1,649,395 102,271 (2,097) 48,393 5,221,605 88,559 5,310,164
_ _ - 218,414 - - . 218,414 5,646 224,060
- - - 213,091 70,331 30,488 (128,403) 185,507 (3,388) 182,119
_ _ - _ 70,331 _ - 70,331 1,290 71,622
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ooooood
- - - - - 30,488 - 30,488 _ 30,488
- - - 213,001 - - - 213,001 (807) 212,284
_ _ - - - - (128,403) (128,403) (3,871) (132,274)
- - - 431,504 70,331 30,488 (128,403) 403,920 2,258 406,179
- 49,361 - - - - - 49,361 — 49,361
1
1 - - 354,237 - - - - 354,237 — 354,237
- - - (205,509) - - - (205,509) (2,581) (208,090)
- - - 2,420 - - - 2,420 - 2,420
- - - - - - 3,549 3,549 - 3,549
- - - (9,840) - - - (9,840) 11,776 1,936
2014 12 31
128,564 3,344,440 354,237 1,867,970 172,602 28,391 (76,461) 5,819,742 100,012 5,919,754
1 HSBC 32
102 186 19 71
72 81
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oOoOooodn
12 31
2015 2014
38,725 6,246,730 41,424 6,682,105
993 160,181 630 101,625
11 90,244 14,557,260 97,757 15,769,182
14 9 1,452
15 150,454 24,269,735 160,232 25,847,024
29 16,661 2,687,586 18,776 3,028,757
29 205,398 33,132,751 201,671 32,531,549
16 24,893 4,015,490 36,391 5,870,232
17 39,899 6,436,108 48,438 7,813,534
19 9,309 1,501,635 12,908 2,082,189
93 15,002 125 20,164
20 62 10,001 62 10,001
22 11,230 1,811,511 11,339 1,829,094
21 922 148,728 948 152,922
8 7 1,129 5 807
588,890 94,993,846 630,715 101,740,637
29 29,073 4,689,766 31,383 5,062,392
29 271,526 43,799,859 282,687 45,600,240
16 11,275 1,818,770 18,293 2,950,844
236 38,069 336 54,200
23 57,436 9,265,001 59,039 9,523,581
24 11,813 1,905,555 16,127 2,601,446
15 148,249 23,914,046 161,442 26,042,209
29 12,356 1,993,146 14,950 2,411,585
25 3,566 575,231 5,289 853,169
136 21,938 160 25,810
27 1,702 274,550 1,345 216,962
8 493 79,526 345 55,652
28 7,497 1,209,341 7,854 1,266,929
555,358 89,584,799 599,250 96,665,018
32 797 128,564 797 128,564
20,733 3,344,440 20,733 3,344,440
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APS

2016

32

186
81

22
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oOoOooodn
3,584 578,135 2,196 354,237
364 58,717 389 62,750
8,054 1,299,191 7,350 1,185,629
33,532 5,409,047 31,465 5,075,619
588,890 94,993,846 630,715 101,740,637
19 71

187/484
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12 31
2015 2014

2,252 363,270 1,367 220,511
33 2,033 327,943 2,527 407,630
33 19,029 3,069,568 18,204 2,936,487
33 (30,397) (4.903,340) (43,561)  (7.026,825)
1,045 168,569 1,703 274,711
(139) (22,422) (433) (69,847)
41) (38,876) (242) (39,037)
(536) (86,462) (308) (49,683)
(6,954) (1,121,750) (20,743)  (3,346,053)
(17,551) (2.831,152) (19,253)  (3,105,701)
20,415 3,293,144 16,188 2,611,286
97) (47,909) (260) (41,941)
8 1,290 401 64,685
(198) (31,939) (182) (29,358)
) (323) (61) (9,840)
97 15,647 112 18,067
2,472 398,758 (3,055) (492,802)
306 49,361
1,388 223,898 2,196 354,237

1,073 173,086
2,370) (382,466) (2,203) (355,366)
(244) (39,360)
(1,024) (165,181) 1,271) (205,025)
(934) (150,664) (1,216) (196,153)
(5.416) (873,655) (25,014)  (4,035,008)
61,942 9,991,864 88,017 14,198,022
(436) (70,331) (1,061) (171,150)
12 31 33 56,090 9,047,878 61,942 9,991,864

188/484
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102 186 19 71
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2015 12 31
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HSBC

ooooooo

797 20,733 2,196 7,350 339 100 (50) 31,465
1,609 1,609
70 76 67) (€D)] 45
76 76

®7 (D)
70 70

(€] GH
1,679 76 67) €D 1,654
1,388 1,388

(1,0249) (,024)
47 47
2 2
797 20,733 3,584 8,054 415 33 (84) 33,532
797 20,427 6,342 (317) ®) 47 27,194
975 975
1,353 656 108 [©) 2,114
656 656
108 108
1,353 1,353

® ®
2,328 656 108 ®3) 3,089
306 306

2,196 2,196

(1,271) (1,271)

12 12

(61) (61)

797 20,733 2,196 7,350 339 100 (50) 31,465

32
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2015 12 31

2014
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ooooooo

128,564 3,344,440 354,237 1,185,629 54,684 16,131 (8.066) 5,075,619
250,548 259,548
11,292 12,260 (10,808) (5,485) 7,259
12,260 12,260

(10,808) (10,808)
11,292 11,292

(5,485) (5.485)
270,839 12,260 (10,808) (5.485) 266,807
223,898 223,898

(165,181) (165,181)
7,582 7,582
323 323
128,564 3,344,440 578,135 1,299,191 66,944 5,323 (13,550) 5,409,047
128,564 3,295,079 1,023,028 (51,135) (1,290) (7,582) 4,386,664
157,277 157,277
218,252 105,819 17,421 484) 341,009
105,819 105,819
17,421 17,421
218,252 218,252

(484) (484)
375,530 105,819 17,421 (484) 498,287
49,361 49,361
354,237 354,237

(205,025) (205,025)
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1

102
72

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)

ooooooo
1,936 1,936
(9,840) (9,840)
128,564 3,344,440 354,237 1,185,629 54,684 16,131 (8,066) 5,075,619
HSBC 32
186 19 71
81
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2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2012 2014

IFRSIC

IFRS

194/484

1ASB

1ASB

EDINETOOOO

OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)

EU

IFRS EU

EU IFRS 1ASB

HSBC 2015 12 31

IFRS

oOoOooodn

1ASB

IFRS

1ASB



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)

oOoOooodn
IFRS
IASB IFRS IFRS 15 IFRS 16
IFRS EU
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IAS 39
2014 12 31
IFRS
2018
2014 12 31
2014 12 31
IAS 39
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IFRS FVPL

FVPL
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12 ECL
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IAS 39
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2
DPF 2

1

220 135 1,375 1,730

(113) @ )
2015 12 31 107 131 1,375 1,613

262 183 1,498 1,943

(116) ) (120)
2014 12 31 146 179 1,498 1,823
1
2
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2014 12 31
1
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Ogoooood
DPF
129 204 1,375 1,798
56 (108) 419 367
185 186 1,794 2,165
@2 ©) (76)
32 ©) (41)
(104) 13) 1)
81 173 1,794 2,048
140 247 1,407 1,794
83 37 526 646
223 284 1,933 2,440
(80) ®3) (83)
(€D)) ) (41)
(117) %) (124)
106 277 1,933 2,316
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2015 2014

60 70
7,431 7,250
888 1,019
2,592 2,822
706 680
2,090 2,508
1,504 1,677
292 434
294 397
456 523

1 1

174 174
171 172

3 2
13 (26)

@)

4 60
® ®)

16 11
(481) (449)
(494) (647)
32 203

9 ®
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5

2015 2014

3,584 3,357

460 468

287 319

12 31 4,331 4,144
2015 2014

29,298 29,763

8,603 8,717

7,072 6,795

824 833

21,493 21,927

12 31 67,290 68,035

2015 12,065 ServCo
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(UK) ®) 96

22 20

258 196

277 312

10 7

12 31 287 319

214/484



2015 12 31

2014 12 31

12 31

2014
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1
21,876 (18,506) 3,370
366 (559) (193)
(101) (101)
22,242 (19,166) 3,076
(300)
3,376
22,611 (19,555) 3,056
364 (581) @17)
(113) (113)
22,975 (20,249) 2,726
(333)
3,059

2014 2011
2015 2014
273 (1,365)
70 1,678
@ (52)
11 12
79 1,638
352 273
HSBC
(UK)
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(UK)
13

12 31
2015 3.70 3.20 3.00 3.70 6.70
2014 3.70 3.20 3.00 3.70 6.90

AA
12 31 65
65 65
65 45 65 45
2015 SAPS S1 * 23.6 25.0 24.9 26.7
2014 SAPS S1 © 23.6 25.2 25.0 26.9
1 SAPS 2015 2014 2014 1.25

1.01
1.02
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u
2015 2014
(739) (911)
789 977
@7 (48)
36 47
500 658
71 (760)
19 28
(22) (31)
687 762
(651) (723)
27 32
(25) (29)
51 152
(51) (149)
2 8
@ )
448 493
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((U9) ((L9) Ky
22,611 364 (19,555) (581) 3,056 @170
@9 (18) ) (18)
(35) 1 (35) 1
(114) an (114) an
828 6 (711) (10) 117 (O))
(996) 4 1,066 ®) 70 ()
(996) 4 (996) 4
1,066 6) 1,066 ®)
(©) 17 14
(160) 160
241 19 241 19
203 19 203 19
38 38
11 an () (€]
(638) (2%) 638 39 15
(21) 21
21,876 366 (18,506) (559) 3,370 (193)
(4,092) (341)
(5,342) D)
09,072) @27
ServCo CPI

ServCo
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(UK) (UK) UK)
19,156 354 (17,922) (547) 1,234 (193)
(138) (18) (138) 18)
(16) 1 (16) 1
(154) an (154) an
842 11 (784) (16) 58 )
2,954 10 (1,276) (62) 1,678 (52)
2,954 10 2,954 10
(1,408) (55) (1,408) (55)
132 ) 132 ©)
(24) 49 25
240 14 240 14
160 14 160 14
80 80
23 (23) ) )
(580) () 580 19 18
() 24
22,611 364 (19,555) (581) 3,056 17
(6,276) (374)
(5,645) (73)
(7.,634) (134)
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UK
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2025
679 701 724 746 810 4,312
G
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
HSBC HSBC
o
21,876 22,611
3,866 3,366 500 3,530 2,924 606
15,318 15,318 14,776 14,776
682 682 335 878 33 845 597
2,010 1,008 1,002 3,427 2,378 1,049
2015 12 31 158 2014
3,817 2016 216
2011 12 31
17.2
100
2011 12 31
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2011 12 31 26.2
2014 12 31 2016 31
500
2006 2008 410
2015 2014
1 1,407 1,393
2 4,095 3,966
3 2,009 1,053
4 1,359 1,872
12 31 8,870 8,284
3 HSBC
HSBC 2,009,574
954,464 2014 526,420 1,055,110 2014 526,420
2015
2015 2015
644,134
4 483,836 472,781
GPSP 402,073
2015 2014
789,629 789,629 GPSP
292,455 2011 HSBC
33
GPSP
HSBC
2011 HSBC

HSBC
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2015

2014

2014

10,099,902

12 31

169,416
2
170,758

254,124
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2015
2014
42,150
48,715
801,187 2014 805,005
679,551 2014 684,104
2015 12 31
2014 10,849,954
2015 2014

1,185 1,340
1 600 339
2 501 602

2,286 2,281

HSBC
300,052 2014 169,416 300,052 2014
166,909 163,182 GPSP
2015
2014
254,124 2011 HSBC
94,120
33
GPSP

35,838
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ooooood
HSBC
HSBC
2015 2014
188 147
24 15
12 31 212 162
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12 31

GPSP

GPSP

GPSP

2010

2015

2013

750
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12 31
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OooooOodd
2015 2014 !
38,262 38,148
25,272 28,857
(28,533) (27,375)
(728) (1,368)
34,273 38,262
6.17 6.19

2014

20

2012

500

2014 20
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2015

12 31

2014

12 31
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OOooOoOoOoo
HSBC
waep 1 waep 1
51,319 4.98 4,837 7.29
45,259 4.05
(14,806) 4.50
(18,511) 5.16 (4,837) 7.29
63,261 4.35
3.46
HSBC
waep 1 waep 1
53,305 4.21 25,969 7.23
26,396 5.19
(24,416) 3.51
(337) 4.42 (359) 7.26
(3,629) 4.90 (20,773) 7.22
51,319 4.98 4,837 7.29
2.44
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PwC

HSBC

12 31

1 PwC 2015

2 2015

PwC 2014

PwC
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OOooOoOoOoo
2015 2014
1 9.6 6.9
2.8
0.5 0.6
12.9 7.5
puC
2015 2014
4.3 3.7
4.3 3.4
0.3
10.6 8.4
5.3 3.1
2.2 4.0
0.1 0.1
0.1 0.1
0.1 0.4
2.8 0.7
14.9 12.1
2014
HSBC
PWC 2014
PWC 2014
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12 31

18

2015

2016

21
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 2014
795 598
803 569
®) 29
202 G4
123 @
82 13)
©)] 19
997 564
20.25 2014 21.5
20 2020



21.5
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Ogoooood
2015 2014
20.25 2014

602 20.25 420 21.5
104 3.5 15 0.8
(28) (0.9) (30) (1.5)
31 1.0

(kD) 0.4 (43) (2.2)
206 6.9 198 10.1
82 2.8 13 0.7
54 1.8 30 1.5
@2 (1.0) (49) (2.5)
11 0.4) 10 0.5
997 33.6 564 28.9

20 38
23.75 2014  22.3
33.6 2014  28.9 2014

38

HMRC
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2014

12 31
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ooooooo
1
78 269 99 104 550
(542) 114 @ (68) (738)
(542) 78 269 114 85 36 (188)
(223) (€5} 67 1 31 (D) (202)
12 33 21
2 2
@ m 20) 28 1 @n (29)
(781) 60 316 (85) 117 3 (396)
68 316 121 178 683
(781) ® (85) O (201) (1,079)
88 292 71 90 541
(186) ®) 92) @14 48) (343)
(186) 88 289 92) 57 42 198
(30) (6) (15) 14 71 34
(322) (29) 74) (425)
® (€))
O] @ ) 7 14 6 14
(542) 78 269 (114) 85 36 (188)
78 269 99 104 550
(542) (114) 14) (68) (738)
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0ooo0d0
1
163 98 45 306
(614) 32 (646)
(614) 163 98 13 (340)
(223) 60 30 @ (134)
(X)) @ (13)
2 2
@ @
12 31 (848) 223 128 1 (486)
223 128 64 415
(848) (53) (901)
2014
176 87 70 333
(246) @ 47)
(246) 176 87 69 86
30) (13) 11 19 (51)
(338) @n (365)
® ©)
@ @
12 31 (614) 163 98 13 (340)
163 98 45 306
(614) 32) (646)
1
2015 2014 2015 2014
110 176 7 5
(506) (364) (493) (345)
(396) (188) (486) (340)
476 2014 1,088
472 2014 1,036

232/484



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

oOoOooodn
473 2014 1,036
472 2014 1,036
10
2015 2014
0.40 315 0.79 630
0.67 540 0.75 600
1.07 855 1.54 1,230
2015 2014
1.23 43 1.16 41
1.23 43 1.16 41
2015 272 2015 12 31
39 2015 812 2014 915

2015 2014
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Tier 1

1,096 2019 12 62

1,100 2024 12 64

126
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2015 12 31
RBWM CMB GBAM GPB
3,352 2,245 1,174 233 (63) (123) 6,818
1,091 1,101 563 107 1 2,863
71 19 2,470 13 55 123 2,751
39 23 143 15 314 (96) 438
4,553 3,388 4,350 368 307 (96) 12,870
@ (311) 10 (10) 1 (481)
4,382 3,077 4,360 358 308 (96) 12,389
(995) (624) (1,135) (93) (1,484) (4,331)
.421) 822) (2,506) (119) 1,206 96 (4,566)
®) (10) (©) @) (249 (264)
(95) @9 (83) () (259)
@3.,517) (1,480) @3,727) (13) (79 9% (9,420)
865 1,597 633 145 @71 2,969
1 1 2
866 1,597 634 145 @71) 2,971
77.25 43.68 85.68 57.88 73.19
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oooooog
2014 12 31
RBUM CMB GBEM GPB
3,158 2,195 1,180 203 42) (65) 6,629
1,356 1,153 643 112 2 3,266
(149) 21 1,637 11 24 65 1,609
157) 65 219 0 340 (83) 382
4,208 3,434 3,679 324 324 (83) 11,886
(162) (308) 16 4 1 (449)
4,046 3,126 3,695 328 325 (83) 11,437
(1,020) (564) (1,070) (98) (1,392) (4,144)
(2,730) (940) (2,582) 114) 1,472 83 (4,811)
® (©) @ (€Y) (303) (321)
(78) 2) (61) (50) (11)
(3,834) (1,535) (3,715) (213) 273) 83 (9,487)
212 1,501 (20) 115 52 1,950
1 1 1 3
213 1,592 19) 115 52 1,953
91.11 44.70 100.98 65.74 79.82
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OooooOodd
«C )
RBWM CMB GBSM GPB
2015 12 31
4,382 3,077 4,360 358 308 (96) 12,389
3,976 3,214 5,090 324 (215) 12,389
406 @37 (730) 34 523 (96)
2014 12 31
4,046 3,126 3,695 328 325 (83) 11,437
3,724 3,294 4,401 308 (290) 11,437
322 (168) (706) 20 615 (83)
RBWM CMB GBEM GPB
2015 12 31
105,358 74,633 70,822 7,479 214 258,506
21 18 30 69
150,270 80,919 543,803 15,044 10,484 (72,579) 727,941
135,234 89,686 95,046 12,543 321 332,830
140,573 73,006 528,784 14,247 5,605 (72,579) 689,816
2014 12 31
105,929 68,225 75,044 7,811 243 257,252
21 18 30 69
153,325 74,996 608,140 15,905 14,811 (69,888) 797,289
129,841 87,148 116,558 12,778 182 346,507

143,616 67,141 593,122 15,107 11,493 (69,888) 760,591
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oOoOooodn
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1,3 2 1,3 2
9,618 4,310 8,817 4,760
1,768 5,786 1,532 6,046
487 163 509 171
457 57 559 71
540 204 469 209
12,870 10,520 11,886 11,257
12
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oOoOooodn

2015 2014 2015 2014
14,957 24,182 5,578 9,555
95,628 105,945 84,666 88,202
110,585 130,127 90,244 97,757
675 653 94 154
37,367 49,996 21,935 25,150
40,583 44,242 38,848 41,899
14,248 15,640 13,617 13,039
17,712 19,596 15,750 17,515
110,585 130,127 90,244 97,757
8,211 2014

11,278 597 2014 1,857

5,662 2014 7,228

2014
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LIBOR

) )
)
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oOoOooodn
2015 12 31
67,879 40,264 2,442 110,585
6,516 311 2 6,829
549 164,778 1,458 166,785
55,682 14,205 1,465 71,352
18,343 54,649 497 73,489
2,972 16,027 2 19,001
922 161,197 745 162,864
2014 12 31
83,749 44,225 2,153 130,127
6,618 276 5 6,899
1,949 184,173 1,614 187,736
56,996 17,652 1,546 76,194
22,669 58,638 1,293 82,600
1,107 21,440 5 22,552

1,935 185,122 1,221 188,278
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2015 12 31
51,032 36,780 2,432 90,244
218 148,735 1,501 150,454
33,864 4,257 1,778 39,899
11,125 45,980 331 57,436
11,813 11,813
420 146,912 917 148,249
2014 12 31
56,908 38,717 2,132 97,757
9 9
1,900 156,711 1,621 160,232
36,276 9,801 2,361 48,438
11,433 46,370 1,236 59,039
16,127 16,127
1,920 158,145 1,377 161,442
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2015 12 31

2014 12 31

IFRS 13

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
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45 37 1,055 67
329 2 348 1
1,641 11,024 18,989

GB&M
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CVA

0TC

DVA

0TC

( FFVA )  0TC

FFVA DVA
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125

CVA DVA CVA

PD
DVA

PD

CVA

CVA DVA

CVA DVA
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Ooooood
737 24 24
706 250
3 473
1,458 745
22 2,165 2 2
2015 12 31 1,465 2,442 2 1,458 497 2 745
595 96 28
934 275
1,265
1,614 1,221
17 1,782 5 5
2014 12 31 1,546 2,153 5 1,614 1,293 5 1,221
474
1,304 267
331
1,501 917
2,165
2015 12 31 1,778 2,432 1,501 331 917
415 68
1,946 275
7 1,236
1,621 1,377
1,782
2014 12 31 2,361 2,132 1,621 1,236 1,377

249/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

250/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

MBS ABS

251/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

0TC

CDS
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ooooooo
2015 1,546 2,153 5 1,614 1,293 5 1,221
(6)) 64 157 (226) an)
64 157 (226) am
(©))
1 263 ®) (@) @ (13)
250
10 an
13 ®) 12 (€)) @)
232 1,049 2
15
(252) (763) @A) “43) (€))
D (63) (65) (180) asn
(825) (132) (516) (506) (166)
525 142 270 144 61
2015 12 31 1,465 2,442 2 1,458 497 2 745
12 31
(19) ® (©) (26) (207) (b 224
3) (26) (207) 224
® (€))
(19)
1
ABS
)
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oooooog
2014 1,653 1,562 1,072 1,361 1,297
) 123 734 57 193
123 734 57 193
)
104 @ O] @
66
38 @ (O] @
666 27 5
439
(259) (204)
79) (16) 15 (385) (90)
(1,023) (58) (281) (202) (233)
491 721 74 27 56
2014 12 31 1,546 2,153 5 1,614 1,293 1,221
12 31
@ 5 612 (108) 118
5 612 (108) 118
@
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Ooooood
2015 2,361 2,132 1,621 1,236 1,377
122 80 154 (232) (151)
80 154 232) (151)
122
329 0 10
329
10
)
89 1,102
3
(1,012) (822) 38)
®) (60) 20) (170) (189)
(176) (132) (12) (504) (154)
70 139 48 36 34
2015 12 31 1,778 2,432 1,501 331 917
12 31
® 19) @12) 202
®) (219) @12) 202
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oooooog
2014 2,717 1,563 1,083 1,290 1,367
o) 136 649 21 268
136 649 21 268
O]
576
572
4
208 74
432
(1,042) (254)
@ 19) 9 (305) @27
(126) (58) (202) (202) 97)
39 690 82 66
2014 12 31 2,361 2,132 1,621 1,236 1,377
12 31
@ 11 542 (108) 147
11 542 (108) 147
@

257/484



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

OooooOodd
2015 12 31
) 98 (82)
@
7 ®) 86 (86)
2014 12 31
. 161 (140)
@
11 ') 73 (95)
2015 12 31
. 123 (119)
43 43)
2014 12 31
. 162 (150)
76 (90)
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2014 12 31

95

2015 12 31
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4 @ 52 (52)
8 ® 34 €D
7 Q)
13 13)
73 (60)
6 (6) 38 (60)
28 1) 35 (35)
6 (6)
69 (75)
63 (50)
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ABS

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)
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761 24
956
238
718
3 473
268
9
48
3 148
1,458 745
257 325
832 80
24 15
138 100
46 89
141 134
20 2
2,189 2
1,053
1,136 2
5,367 1,244

n/a

10

39

DCF

10

DCF

260/484

n/a

99

100

72

87

35

90

66

35

104

n/a

35

50

16

45

10

14

16

n/a

77

78

54

80

35

73

42

26

70
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1
CLO CDO
ABS
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691 28
1,209
600
609

1,265

601

362

182

120

1,614 1,221

288 655

667 123

309 84

64 29

87 112

132 188

67 30

1,804 5

1,001 5
803

5,318 2,519

n/a

10

38

DCF

10

DCF
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n/a

101

96

66

88

70

50

59

70

66

n/a

55

25

16

44

17

14

n/a

85

53

43

79

70

18

38

26

38
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13
2015 12 31
23,222 22,605 617 23,222
258,506 764 257,979 258,743
30,537 29,894 643 30,537
24,202 24,202 24,202
332,830 332,226 649 332,875
17,000 17,000 17,000
26,069 26,067 26,067
8,527 8,251 8,251
2014 12 31
25,262 24,061 1,201 25,262
257,252 2,130 257,384 259,514
41,945 39,055 2,890 41,945
27,590 27,590 27,590
346,507 345,721 824 346,545
23,353 23,353 23,353
27,921 27,691 234 27,925
8,858 8,695 8,695
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2015 12 31
16,661 16,562 99 16,661
205,398 582 205,988 206,570
24,893 24,893 24,893
29,073 29,073 29,073
271,526 271,526 271,526
11,275 11,275 11,275
12,356 12,356 12,356
7,497 7,190 7,190
2014 12 31
18,776 18,536 240 18,776
201,671 1,513 202,632 204,145
36,391 36,391 36,391
31,383 31,383 31,383
282,687 282,687 282,687
18,293 18,293 18,293
14,950 14,950 14,950
7,854 7,654 7,654

12
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oOoOooodn
2015 2014 2015 2014

6.829 6,899 9
3

1,036 987 9
5,712 5,855

6,748 6,845 9
81 54

12 31 6,829 6,899 9

15
30
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IAS 39

80 125
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45,220 499 45,719 (45,799) (123) (45,922)
166,236 884 167,120 (160,623) (1,549) (162,172)
6,684 6,684 (7,555) (7,555)
3,882 3,882 (3,891) (3,891)
1,531 1,531 (1,475) (1,475)
223,553 1,383 224,936 (219,343) (1,672) (221,015)
(58,151) 58,151
2015 12 31 166,785 (162,864)
43,265 378 43,643 (44,754) (53) (44,807)
275,371 1,037 276,408 (271,602) (2,068) (273,670)
7,379 7,379 (8,916) (8,916)
4,650 4,650 (5,214) (5,214)
1,826 1,826 (1,841) (1,841)
332,491 1,415 333,906 (332,327) (2,121) (334,448)
(146,170) 146,170
2014 12 31 187,736 (188,278)
44,990 422 45,412 (45,709) (121) (45,830)
143,963 671 144,634 (140,276) (1,096) (141,372)
6,504 6,504 (7.191) (7.191)
3,880 3,880 (3.887) (3.887)
1,540 1,540 (1,485) (1,485)
200,877 1,003 201,970 (198,548) (1,217) (199,765)
(51,516) 51,516
2015 12 31 150,454 (148,249)
43,315 336 43,651 (44,865) 43) (44,908)

192,861 680 193,541 (189,841) (1,402) (191,243)
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6,869 6,869 (8,545) (8,545)

4,650 4,650 (5,209) (5,209)

1,843 1,843 (1,859) (1,859)

249,538 1,016 250,554 (250, 319) (1,445) (251,764)

(90,322) 90,322

2014 12 31 160,232 (161,442)
2015 2014 2015 2014

2,633,560 2,520,473 2,644,406 2,539,975

7,528,704 11,609,407 6,909,494 9,024,790

346,769 362,678 341,507 358,081
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287,755 269,376 287,549 269,366
29,063 40,030 27,131 40,173
10,825,851 14,801,964 10,210,087 12,232,385
2015 2014 2015 2014
59 85 56 81
92 76 91 76
(D)) (56) (55) (56)
®) ®
@37 (45) @7 (44)
7 7
57 59 55 56
2015 2014
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6,985 215 6,386 72
44,476 34,468 82,077 29,722
51,461 34,683 88,463 29,794
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 2014
6,691 5,782
27,871 25,766 44,977 23,363
34,562 25,766 50,759 23,363
2015 2014
16 €Y
333 (1,449) 196 (1,841)
349 (1,449) 196 (1,842)
395 (1,090) 272 (1,321)
395 (1,090) 272 (1,321)
2015 2014 2015 2014
160 (1,013) 152 (673)
(156) 1,033 (152) 687
4 20 14
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OooooOodd
HSBC
2015 2014

483 (123) 378 (52)

551 (100) 841 27)
12 31 1,034 (223) 1,219 279)

422 (121) 336 (43)

276 (6) 408 (81)

12 31 698 @2n 744 (124)
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2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2014 12 31

2014 12 31

2014

16
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OooooOodd
40,226 38,697 28,923 130
(5.282) (5.106) (4,161) (1,451)
34,944 33,591 24,762 (1.321)
34,661 33,355 26,961 4
34,661 33,355 26,961 4
59,995 54,001 33,947 251
(17,824) (13,609) (10,388) (3.380)
42,171 40,482 23,559 (3.129)
44,485 44,458 30,842 41
(5,315) (5,226) (4,741) (1,235)
39,170 39,232 26,101 (1,194)
2015 12 31
IAS 39

279/484
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2015 2014 2015 2014
10,756 22,477 8,364 20,713
19,781 19,468 16,529 15,678
12 31 30,537 41,945 24,893 36,391
8,825 9,793 4,080 6,302
8,175 13,560 7,195 11,991
12 31 17,000 23,353 11,275 18,293
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17
()
) HSBC
@)
2015 2014 2015 2014
3,314 14,831 2,395 13,552
68,038 61,363 37,504 34,886

12 31 71,352 76,194 39,899 48,438
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2015 2014 2015 2014
3,155 2,849 1,909 2,081
67,088 72,336 37,427 45,920
1 1,109 1,009 563 437
12 31 71,352 76,194 39,899 48,438

1 2016
291
9,213

2014 6,172 5,947 2014 4,131
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18
HSBC
2015 12 31
14,513 14,615
3,112 3,048
502 537 503 503
3,776 3 2 3 2 1
2014 12 31
31,030 31,550
6,992 5,872
389 564 533 533

3,590 7 3 7 3 4
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2015 12 31
4,926 4,926
3,047 3,047
502 537 503 503
3,776 3 2 3 2 1
2014 12 31
16,073 16,674
6,963 5,863
389 564 533 533
3,590 7 3 7 3 4
12 31
/ /
2015 12 31

2014 12 31 98 98 98 43
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OoOoOoOoOodno
12 31 12 31
2015 2014 2015 2014
703 160
8,625 9,608 4,957 6,240
43,056 35,972 19,374 15,061
27,738 53,978 14,302 27,694
3,131 7,051 3,047 6,963
100 3,264 55 3,247
12 31 83,353 110,033 41,735 59,205
80,118 2014 107,775 2015
53,721 2014 76,602
57,295 2014 66,080 2015 37,239

2014 40,468

19

285/484
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HFS HFS
IFRS

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

20

HSBC
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2015 2014 2015 2014
2,078 2,353 1,127 1,184
27 4,378 17 15
2,226 2,736 2,221 2,733
182 189
581 591 478 364
3,376 3,059 3,373 3,059
1 1,504 5,399 1,191 4,741
1,758 1,614 902 812
12 31 11,732 20,319 9,309 12,908
1 30
2015 2014 2015 2014
- 27 25 17 15
_ 1 4,353
27 4,378 17 15
1 2015
12
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2015 2014 2015 2014
3,597 4,400 2,085 2,930
(1,839) (2,786) (1,183) (2,118)
1,758 1,614 902 812
431 411 297 260
12) (148) ®) (100)
1,042 913 441 390
741 661 136 132
132 101 134 105
169 151 17 153
429 344

12 31

288/484
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2015
15.91 2014 15.91
60 2014

UK

2014 12 31

22

12 31

61

2015 12 31

10
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50

2015 12 31
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oOoOooodn
2015 2014 2014
5,818 6,140 347 342
PVIF 546 456

647 698 575 606

7,011 7,294 922 948
CGU
CGU
CGU
CGU
VIU CGU
CGU
CGU

CGU

290/484



12 31

12 31

291/484

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 2014
6,140 6,526
®)
(322) (381)
5,818 6,140
2015 2014
342 298
49
5 ®)
347 342




CGU

VIU

2015

12 31

CGU VIU

2019

EDINETOOOO
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2015 12 31
2015 12 31
CGU 2014 2015

CGU

CGU
CGU

2015
CGU HSBC
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vIvu
2015
2015

1,753 7 3.8
1,474 9 3.8
1,847 10 3.8

577

5,651

2014

1,260 1,846 9 4.2
630 1,525 10 4.3
4,409 2,064 11 4.2

864

CGU 6,299 6,299

CGU CGU
CGU CGU GDP
IMF
2014 2015
CGU CGU
CGU
CAPM CAPM
CGU
CGU
CAPM
2014 2015

2015
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VIU

2015

CGU
CGU

20

110

GDP GDP GDP
GDP
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OooooOodd
2015
157 (20.1) (203)
2015 2014
456 700
51 55
34 (192)
an
5 (30)
546 456
PVIF
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PVIF-
PVIF
2015 2014
UK UK
1.57 1.75 1.21 1.65
2.55 2.25 1.73 2.15
1.70 4.56 2.00 4.67
PVIF
PVIF
PVIF
PVIF
2015 2014
100 84
100 (85) (298)
1 100 PVIF
PVIF
2015 12 31

2015 2014

296/484
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10
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PVIF
2015 2014
an an
17 18
(25) 29)
27 31
@n (€]
26 31



2015

2015 12 31

2015

2015 12 31
2015 12 31

2014

2014 12 31

2014

2014 12 31
2014 12 31

12015 12 31
2
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00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

OooooOodd
1,540 203 220 16 1,979
199 18 217
@ ® @D (10)
(146) (146)
() (16) (@) @2
1,588 197 219 14 2,018
(935) @an) (163) 12) (1,281)
(183) @an (11) (211)
(48) (48)
7 1 8
146 146
2 13 15
(1,018) (168) (173) (12) (1,371)
570 29 46 2 647
1,367 170 220 15 1,772
184 47 1 232
@ @) ®
@ @
®) 13) (18)
(O] 6 2
1,540 203 220 16 1,979
(765) (137) (151) (11) (1,064)
(178) (18) (12) [6H) (209)
@ @
6 6
1 1
3 11 14
4 (33) 2 @7
(935) (171) (163) (12) (1,281)
605 32 57 4 698

298/484
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Ogoooood
2015 1,446 37 1,483
1 192 6 198
(146) (146)
@ @ ()
2015 12 31 1,491 42 1,533
2015 (864) (13) 877
2 @a73) ) (178)
2 (48) “8)
146 146
@ (€))
2015 12 31 (940) (18) (958)
2015 12 31 551 24 575
2014 1,269 30 1,299
: 177 5 182
2 2
2014 12 31 1,446 37 1,483
2014 (700) (6) (706)
2 (165) ) (170)
1 @ @
2014 12 31 (864) (13) (877)
2014 12 31 582 24 606

12015 12 31 2014
2
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22

@ 36

99.99

UK 100.00

100.00

100.00

70.03 0.30

UK 100.00

UK 100.00

UK 100.00 10

ClL 100.00
80.65

UK 100.00

100.00
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50

0.8
0.3
1.3
10.2
4.2
0.6

12 31

2006 409 183
186 40

23
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2015 2014 2015 2014
1 27,106 29,444 24,113 24,518
1 13,281 14,127 11,406 10,335
2 13,033 14,390 9,176 10,801
20,069 24,639 12,741 13,385
12 31 73,489 82,600 57,436 59,039

2 HSBC

303/484
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12 31

26

28
28
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OoOoOoOoOodno
14
2015 2014 2015 2014
131 86
928 1,017
16,019 18,503 9,889 13,271
1,594 2,526 1,924 2,856
329 330
19,001 22,552 11,813 16,127
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2015 12 31

2015 12 31

2014

2014

1,496

1,082

28

93
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1,108
2015 12 31
2014 247
811
2015 12 31
2014 151
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ooooooo
25
2015 2014 2015 2014

! 4,356
2,470 2,531 1,592 1,518

292 455
572 582 478 364
HSBC 154 191 134 148
300 333 120 133
2 1,987 3,969 1,242 3,126
12 31 5,775 12,417 3,566 5,289

1 2015

306/484
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Ogoooood
2015
532 (142) 390
(129) 72 €))
185 (104) 81
(82) 48 €]))
506 (126) 380
16,083 16,083
(1,375) (1,375)
1,794 1,794
(1,248) (1,248)
15,254 15,254
907 @n 860
(294) 4 (290)
186 (13) 173
105 105
904 (56) 848
16,664 (182) 16,482
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OooooOodd
2014

836 (448) 388
(140) 80 (60)
223 117) 106
(338) 328 (10)
(49) 15 (34)
532 (142) 390
15,987 15,987
(1,407) (1,407)
1,933 1,933
(430) (430)
16,083 16,083
2,405 (43) 2,362
(247) 3 (244)
284 ) 277
(1,521) (1,521)
(14) (14)
907 “n 860
17,522 (189) 17,333

309/484
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/
/ /
12 31
/ 1
12 31
() PPI
PPI
2011

2,937

EDINETOOOO

00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)

ooooOoog
2015 2014
1,041 456 210 1,707 1,707
456 611 208 1,275 1,631
(548) (190) (48) (786) (1,523)
(80) (16) (48) (144) (102)
2
(€)) 23 Qan 5 ®
868 884 305 2,057 1,707
2015 2014
890 368 87 1,345 1,271
371 604 147 1,122 1,457
(491) (183) 13) (687) (1,347)
(76) an 15 (102) €D
36 12) 24 1
694 814 194 1,702 1,345
2014
868 2014 1,041
701 2014 704
FCA
2014
359
2015 12 31

2,298
311/484



2000 PPI
2.6
2015 12 31
35 1.9
2015 12 31
1
2
FOS
FOS
1 PPI FOS
2
100,000 /
10
( ) 2015 12 31 59
()
2014 80
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oOoOooodn
5.4 2015
3.4
42 2.3
2015 12 31
1,215 336
624 101
44 52
74 81
2,001 1,861
121 51
36 53
FoS
149 /
/
/
2014 200
25 2014 175
49
31
37 HSBC
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384

2014

62
67

CCA

113 2014 243
271
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2014 71 57

2015 12 31
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24
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oOoOooodn
2015 2014 2015 2014

8,527 8,858 7,497 7,854

7,827 6,677 7,497 7,854
700 2,181

1,923 2,856 1,924 2,856

1,59 2,526 1,924 2,856
329 330

10,450 11,714 9,421 10,710
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OOooOoOoOoo
2015 2014

1,450 2021 978 930
450 2021 304 289
275 2021 186 176
350 o3 L 379 388
300 6.5 2023 299 299
650 2023 477 507
300 7.65 2025 260 256

1,400 2025 5 945
260 2029 101 203
350 384 398

5.375
2030 2
500 5.375 2033 571 581
225 6.25 2041 224 224
600 4.75 2046 593 503
700 s o 3 700 700
300 5 a5 329 330
750 506 481
500 337 321
300 202 192
2,862 1,931 1,836
500 4.75 514
2020 °
500 377
2020 °
1,000 o017 © 779
900 7.75 2040 ° 701
100 654 639
10,450 11,714
1 2018 1.80
2 2025 11 LIBOR 1.50
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3 2031 11 LIBOR 1.76

4 2020 LIBOR 1.85

5 2015 4.75 2020

2020
6 2015 12 2017 7.75 2040
1 4 PRA
PRA

7.65

316/484
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oOoOooodn
12
2015 12 31
18,204 3,047 455 2,503 63 24,272
289,864 31,039 9,879 2,131 127 333,040
6,086 10,060 861 17,007
73,489 73,489
190 187 3,343 10,199 6,135 20,054
161,191 118 413 787 371 162,880
10 11,972 9,491 3,918 868 26,259
45 107 1,006 8,337 9,495
2,991 1,202 77 115 417 5,502
552,025 57,670 25,326 20,659 16,318 671,998
130,114 609 744 164 2 131,633
3,135 1,625 4,085 2,724 2,166 13,735
2015 12 31 685,274 59,904 30,155 23,547 18,486 817,366
2014 12 31
18,890 6,217 1,062 1,352 109 27,630
301,426 33,179 9,262 2,710 98 346,675
110 19,492 3,781 23,383
82,600 82,600
218 1,257 3,419 10,204 8,651 23,749
186,160 183 683 2,248 268 189,542
3 13,753 9,542 5,203 852 29,353
203 45 32 1,040 8,530 9,850
4,454 1,782 875 200 482 7,793
594,064 75,908 28,656 22,957 18,990 740,575
134,306 707 380 124 5 135,522
3,392 1,827 3,754 2,176 2,303 13,452
2014 12 31 731,762 78,442 32,790 25,257 21,298 889,549
12
2015 12 31
19,584 3,510 2,618 3,047 316 29,075
241,531 22,331 6,634 1,185 563 272,244
4,971 5,439 872 11,282
57,436 57,436

107 3,254 5,839 3,537 12,737

318/484
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147,183 114 342 562 198 148,399

4,059 6,632 1,287 504 12,482

44 26 1,086 7,591 8,747

2,046 784 342 5 4 3,181

472,751 36,388 20,720 13,011 12,713 555,583

92,614 147 145 81 2 92,989

513 2,027 3,525 2,385 2,243 10,693

2015 12 31 565,878 38,562 24,390 15,477 14,958 659,265
2014 12 31

20,529 7,661 897 386 3,155 32,628

254,978 18,258 7,850 2,353 1 283,440

15,667 2,657 18,324

59,039 59,039

1,242 3,178 7,660 5,092 17,172

160,185 183 683 1,602 268 162,921

4,195 7,461 2,768 842 15,266

44 25 1,562 7,149 8,780

3,970 576 313 6 4 4,869

498,701 47,826 23,064 16,337 16,511 602,439

96,504 112 118 46 5 96,785

473 2,575 3,531 2,130 2,259 10,968

2014 12 31 595,678 50,513 26,713 18,513 18,775 710,192

319/484



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 DO00D0O000O0O(E22630)
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2015 12 31

246 6,583 6,829
19,044 4,178 23,222
90,956 167,550 258,506
29,829 708 30,537
9,993 61,359 71,352
1,800 172 1,972
2015 12 31 151,868 240,550 392,418
21,760 2,442 24,202
330,310 2,520 332,830
17,000 17,000
3,294 15,707 19,001
21,451 4,618 26,069
2,374 337 2,711
105 8,422 8,527

2015 12 31 396,294 34,046 430,340
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2014 12 31
202 6,697 6,899
21,359 3,903 25,262
98,613 158,639 257,252
41,669 276 41,945
9,181 67,013 76,194
5,772 72 5,844
2014 12 31 176,796 236,600 413,396
26,191 1,399 27,590
343,724 2,783 346,507
23,353 23,353
3,449 19,103 22,552
22,106 5,815 27,921
8,836 370 9,206
4 8,854 8,858
2014 12 31 427,663 38,324 465,987

321/484
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2015 12 31

13,790 2,871 16,661
75,899 129,499 205,398
24,439 454 24,893
5,889 34,010 39,899
1,663 6 1,669
2015 12 31 121,680 166,840 288,520
25,710 3,363 29,073
270,464 1,062 271,526
11,275 11,275
3,126 8,687 11,813
10,673 1,683 12,356
1,714 4 1,718
7,497 7,497

2015 12 31 322,962 22,296 345,258

322/484
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2014 12 31
9 9
16,464 2,312 18,776
77,945 123,726 201,671
36,391 36,391
14,239 34,199 48,438
5,003 12 5,105
2014 12 31 150,141 160,249 310,390
27,843 3,540 31,383
280,361 2,326 282,687
18,293 18,293
3,195 12,932 16,127
11,578 3,372 14,950
3,479 11 3,490
7,854 7,854
2014 12 31 344,749 30,035 374,784

323/484
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30
1

223,854 (58,151) 165,703 (125,841) (5,094) (20,452) 14,316

62,657 (29,479) 33,178 (366) (32,634) (178)

5,002 5,002 (5,092)

57,565 (29,479) 28,086 (366) (27,542) (178)

50,174 (20,041) 30,133 (26,874) 3,259
2015 12 31 336,685 (107,671) 229,014 (153,081) (37,728) (20,630) 17,575

218,496 (58,151) 160,345 (125,846) (7,634) (19,318) 7,547

59,520 (29,479) 30,041 1) (29,932) 18)

13,345 13,345 (13,345)

46,175 (29.479) 16,696 D) (16,587) @8)

53,567 (20,041) 33,526 (26,874) 6,652
2015 12 31 331,583 (107,671) 223,912 (152,811) (37,566) (19,336) 14,199

324/484
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2
1
332,252 (146,170) 186,082 (146,995) (3,126) (23,344) 12,617
85,548 (40,812) 44,736 (3.284) (41,294) (158)
5,635 (250) 5,385 (5,385)
79,913 (40,562) 39,351 (3,284) (35,909) (158)
61,718 (22,182) 39,536 (35,920) 3,616
2014 12 31 3 479,518 (209,164) 270,354 (186,199) (44,420) (23,502) 16,233
332,215 (146,170) 186,045 (147,004) (4,019) (23,119) 11,903
72,904 (40,812) 32,002 (3,285) (28,742) (65)
9,307 (250) 9,057 (9,057)
63,597 (40,562) 23,035 (3,285) (19,685) (65)
65,910 (22,182) 43,728 (35,920) 7,808
2014 12 31 3 471,029 (209,164) 261,865 (186,209) (32,761) (23,184) 19,711
1 2015 12 31
1,699
2,700
2
3 2014

325/484
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2015 2014

11,313 10,036

800 792

679 876

180 190

123 104

100 289 248
13,384 12,246

326/484
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2015

2015
2014

2014

2015
2014

12 31

12 31

12 31
12 31

100

1.00

1.00
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796,969,110 797
796,969,110 797
796,969,108 797

2
796,969,110 797

1

1
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0.01
2015 12 31 35,000,000 172
2014 12 31 35,000,000 172
Tier 1
2015 2014
1,096 2014 Tier 1 2019
1,096 1,096
12
1,100 2014 Tier 1 2024
1,100 1,100
12
1,900 2015 Tier 1
1,388
2020 12
12 31 3,584 2,196
CRD Tier 1
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2015 2014 2015 2014
523 532 415 412
212 162 180 128
747 833 462 498
1,131 1,529 1,020 1,420
19 (203) @ @
29 123 2 79
(108) (58) (45) ®)
2,515 2,918 2,033 2,527
2015 2014 2015 2014
275 214 57 1
4,532 (5,335) 804 (960)
746 (5,249) 1,235 (4,636)
(1,901) 15,543 1,330 15,381
6,354 11,180 8,512 8,159
70 9,762 9 3,974
7,082 (7,084) 7,082 (3,715)
17,158 19,031 19,029 18,204
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2015 2014 2015 2014
(60) (459) 73 (206)
(3.388) (1,156) (2.310) 1,072)
(13.677) 756 (11,161) 1,642
(6.353) (42,220) (7.018) (32,905)
(1.852) (4,974) (2.594) (4,626)
2,672) (11,484) (3,424) (5.879)
(5,085) 577 (3,963) (515)
(33,087) (58, 960) (30,397) (43,561)

2015 2014 2015 2014
39,749 42,853 38,725 41,424
1,328 973 993 630
14,258 15,558 11,200 12,089
7,245 12,299 4,830 7,816
998 484 578 319
(583) (667) (236) (336)
1 62,995 71,500 56,090 61,942

2014 3,753
2014 4,065
2,685 2014 2,638
9,594 2014 9,604

383 2014 451
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2015 2014 2015 2014

18,196 17,012 14,429 13,459

210 71 209 70

18,406 17,083 14,638 13,529

2,898 3,073 1,717 1,814
216 335

128,519 132,114 91,272 94,971

131,633 135,522 92,989 96,785

37
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2015 12 31 16
FSCS
FSCS
FSCS
12 31
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
8,745 1,225 8,853 1,048
3,656 109 3,467 84
4,278 393 3,249 382
16,679 1,727 15,569 1,514
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2015 12 31 2014 12 31
1 6,906 2,107 6,925 2,056
2 1,583 97 1,911 76
2,965 980 2,053 508
11,454 3,184 10,889 2,640

1AS 39
2015 12 31
17 2014

26 2014 42
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2015 12 31
2015 2014
264 211
582 598
657 786
1,503 1,595
2015 174

2014 174
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2015 2014
1,448 (139) 1,309 1,312 (138) 1,174
3,338 (361) 2,977 3,350 (395) 2,955
1,424 (210) 1,214 1,583 (265) 1,318
6,210 (710) 5,500 6,245 (798) 5,447
2015 12 31 91 2014 102
2014

2015 23 2014 27
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2015 2014
12 11
24 17
1
37 28
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2015 12 31 17,807 1,174 2,250 21,231
2014 12 31 17,474 1,099 2,392 20,965
SIC
SIC
ABS 2015 12 31 4.2
2014 5.1 ABS 47
ABS SIC
2008
SV
CP
CP
2015 12 31
HSBC 5.4 2014 6.1 CP
2015 12 31 1.2 2014 2.5
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2015 12 31

1.2

2015 12 31

2014

35

9.9

0.9

2.7

2014

SIC

2014

1.9

13.7
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2.7 2014

8.8 2014

2015 12 31

13.7
28.5 2014

2014
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2015 12 31

6,759 944,481 36,791 988,031
23 215 1,753 1,991
903 2,203 3,106
572 572
220 35 255
69 1,429 1,498
24 409 107 540
1 1
1,020 3,047 3,896 7,963
21 21
21 21

1,020 3,047 3,896 7,963
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2014 12 31

10,582 1,132,196 13,156 1,155,934
27 85 1,057 1,169
878 3,453 4,331
797 797
84 35 119
55 171 226
40 416 94 550
1 1
1,001 4,038 2,154 7,193
26 26
26 26
1,001 4,038 2,154 7,193
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2015 2014

37

27

2015 12 31

2008 12 L
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HSBC
2008 11 30
8.4 HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
/
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC 2016
HSBC
HSBC 2015
HSBC
BVI
HSBC HSBC
BVI
2013
HSBC
2015
2015
2014 12 2008 12

HSBC
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HSBC 2015 11
SPV
SPV 0SUS
2015 SPV OSUS HSBC
HSBC
2015 HSBC
HSBC 2016
BVI
2009 10 BVI HSBC
HSBC
2014 BVI
2014 10
2009
BVI 2015
2009
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC

2015
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2013

2009

HSBC

HSSL HSSL

HSSL 2016 11

2009 SPC 2013

HSSL

2013

2013 2016

2009 10 HSSL

2010 SICAV 2009

HSSL

HSSL 2016

2014 12 HSSL 2008 11

2015

HSSL
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2013 11

HSBC

2013

2014 12

SPV 0OSUS

2010 10

0cC
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2013 11
HTIE
HTIE
2015 12
HTIE HSBC
2015 HTIE SPV 0SUS
2015 10 HTIE
2017
800
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
FRB
BSA AML

HSBC
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2012 12 HSBC
HSBC
FRB HSBC
HNAH
OFAC
FCA
0cC
HSBC
1.9 2013
US DPA
US DPA
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
BSA AML

HSBC
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HSBC HNAH HSBC
BSA AML
HSBC
DoJ
US DPA
HSBC
HSBC OFAC
AML HSBC
FinCEN
HSBC
US DPA
2013 DoJ FCA HSBC AML
FRB HSBC
2016 US DPA
20
DoJ HSBC US DPA
HSBC
occ occ
occ
occ
BSA AML
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2014 11 2004 2011 11
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
2015
HSBC HSBC
EU
LIBOR EURIBOR
HSBC HSBC
2014 HSBC
HSBC 2015
2015
HSBC LIBOR LIBOR
CEA
2013 LIBOR
CEA
2015

2015 11
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2014
HSBC HSBC
LIBOR
CEA
2014
2015 2015 11
HSBC TIBOR
LIBOR
HSBC
TIBOR LIBOR
CEA
2012 HSBC 2014
CEA
2014
2015 HSBC
CALSTRS
2015 10
CALSTRS 2015 11 CALSTRS

2015 2016 HSBC

2013 11 HSBC EURIBOR

EURIBOR CEA
2015
2015 10 HSBC
2014 10

ISDATiIX

ISDATiX
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EU

HSBC

2015 DoJ

HSBC

2013

2015

2015
HSBC

HNAH

2015
2015 12
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2015
HSBC

2015

HSBC
HSBC

2.5
FRB
DoJ FRB HSBC
2014 HSBC
HSBC
2014
WM
2015
2015
HSBC USA
HSBC
HSBC

1974 ERISA

2015

HSBC
2015 11
HSBC
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2015 12 31
2014
2014
2014
PGM
2015 12
2014
EU
DoJ
DoJ

HSBC 811

HSBC

HSBC

CEA

2015

2015

HSBC

HSBC

HSBC
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CEA

2016

1999

HSBC

2008
CEA

HSBC

HSBC
2014 11
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2015
2004
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2006 2009
HSBC
2015 12 HSBC
1SDA
HSBC
1SDA
2013 10
HSBC
2015 10
FIFA
HSBC FIFA
DoJ HSBC
AML
HSBC
HSBC
38
HSBC

El4 HQ
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2013 HSBC

2014
13

HSBC

2015

2016
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HSBC

HSBC

2015

1 HSBC
2 2014

2.875

2015

2015
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2015 2014
4,384 3,937
42 49
1,203 808
5,163 4,223
10,792 9,017
1

2015 12 31 2014 12 31
29 28
19,290 17,817
530

2.875 530,000
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IAS 24

3 2014
49,774,000
4 2014

IAS 24

2006

HSBC

413
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2015 2014
12 31
12 31
1 1
1 1
272 149 225 212
60 49 50 50
151 225
138 212 50
2006
2006 413
HSBC
2015 12 31 2014 12 31
10,291 13,036

325
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12 31
12 31
1 1
1 1
132 102 132 132
610 610 610 610
610
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HSBC HSBC
HSBC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1
1,319 810 1,824 1,319
24 5 23 23
871 871 3,966 513
94 67 99 94
534 534
10,599 9,266 10,993 8,689
5,105 5,105 6,025 4,035
2015 2014

2 47
136 189
1 1
1 1

2
1 1
87 66
(43) 37

HSBC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1

5,761 2,162 8,093 1,489
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25,086 21,819 19,767 19,767
21 8 25 21
12,106 11,052 12,106 12,106
4,643 1,147 5,624 4,643
176 23 246 77
13,238 11,766 12,954 7,269
11,190 7,668 11,124 9,040
3,653 670 8,574 1,453
25,003 20,014 19,289 19,289
1,694 264 1,818 1,694
1,225 1,225 1,791 1,102
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2015 2014
32 31
95 114
85 95
249 220
42 38
105 123
468 317
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HSBC HSBC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1
8,623 4,124 10,462 3,659
17,996 8,911 15,114 14,836
8,583 2,610 11,223 8,568
17,350 16,068 11,610 10,830
7,866 1,188 8,878 7,866
5,094 552 6,179 1,458
11,512 10,551 15,320 11,359
3,241 3,005 3,524 3,224
17,899 11,639 14,907 14,907
2,181 700 2,276 2,181
1,206 1,133 1,177 1,177
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HSBC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1
954 536 1,691 954
863 863 3,965 511
534 534
10,555 9.220 10,961 8,669
4,635 4,635 5,756 3,562
2010 12 SIC HSBC
SIC 16
SIC 200
22 2012 12
17

HSBC
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HSBC
2015 2014
12 31 12 31
1 1 1 1
5,693 2,159 7,940 1,390
41,730 29,806 33,412 33,412
8,126 7,178 8,229 8,126
4,203 1,133 4,941 4,203
12,909 11,614 12,848 7,129
8,118 7,132 8,808 8,118
3,511 583 8,355 1,339
44,657 33,644 35,806 35,806
1,025 1,025 1,683 988
1
2015 12 31
2014
488 2014 121
UK
2015 12 31
8,906 2014 15,177 335
2014 597 732
2014 1,268
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40
2006 409
Albouys Nominees Limited 100 100.00
0.0037

Allblack Investments Limited / 100 100.00
AMP Client HSBC Custody Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
Assetfinance December (A) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (E) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (F) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (H) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (M) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (P) Limited 100 100.00
Assetfinance December (R) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance December (W) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance June (A) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance June (D) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance June (E) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance Limited 100.00
Assetfinance March (B) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance March (D) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance March (F) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance September (F) Limited 100.00
Assetfinance September (G) Limited 100.00
B&Q Financial Services Limited 100 100.00
Banco Nominees (Guernsey) Limited 99.98

366/484



Banco Nominees 2 (Guernsey) Limited

Beau Soleil Limited Partnership

Bermuda Trust (St Helier) Limited

Bermuda Trust Executors (Jersey) Limited

Billingsgate City Securities Public Limited
Company

Billingsgate Nominees Limited

Canada Crescent Nominees (UK) Limited

Canada Square Nominees (UK) Limited

Canada Square Property Participations Limited

Canada Water Nominees (UK) Limited

CCF & Partners Asset Management Limited

CCF Charterhouse GmbH

CCF Charterhouse GmbH & Co Asset Leasing KG 80538

Charterhouse Administrators (D.T.) Limited

Charterhouse Management Services Limited

Charterhouse Pensions Limited

Crewfleet Limited

Dem 25

Dem 5

Dem 9

Dempar 1

Dempar 4

Elysees Gmbh

Elysees Immo Invest

EMTT Limited

Equator Holdings Limited
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100.00

84.99

100.00

100.00

0.01

100 100.00

100 100.00

100 100.00

100 100.00

100 100.00

100 100.00

99.99

99.99

99.99

99.99

99.99

100 100.00

100 100.00

99.99

16

99.99

99.99

99.99

99.99

99.99

16
99.99

100.00
100

100 100.00
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Eton Corporate Services Limited 100.00
Eton Management Ltd 100.00
10
Fdm 5 SAS 99.99
10
Fdm 6 SAS 99.99
Finanpar 2 99.99
Finanpar 7 99.99
First Direct Investments (UK) Limited 100 100.00
. 0.16
Flandres Contentieux S.A. 99.99
. 77
Fonciere Elysees 99.99
. . . 0.1
Forward Trust Rail Services Limited 100.00
G.M. Gilt-Edged Nominees Limited 100 100.00
Gesellschaft fur Industrielle Beteiligungen 8065
und Finanzierung mbH ’
Griffin International Limited 100.00
Grundstuecksgesel Ischaft Trinkausstrasse 80.65
Kommanditgesel Ischaft ’
Hilaga Investments Limited 100 100.00
. n 25,000
HITG Administration GmbH 100.00
Hongkong International Trade Finance
) . A 100 100.00
(Holdings) Limited B
Hongkong International Trade Finance (U.S.A.)
100.00
Inc.
HPUT A Limited 100 100.00
HPUT B Limited 100 100.00
HSBC (BGF) Investments Limited 100 100.00
- . 0.001
HSBC Alpha Funding (UK) Holdings 99 99.00
HSBC Asset Finance (UK) Limited 100.00
HSBC Asset Finance Holdings Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Asset Finance M.0.G. Holdings (UK)
. 100 100.00
Limited
B 287.50
HSBC Assurances Vie (France) 99.99
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HSBC Bank (General Partner) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Bank (General Partner) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Bank (RR) (Limited Liability Company)
HSBC Bank A.S. A 100 100.00
B
30,250
HSBC Bank Armenia cjsc 70.00
JE4
- - _ 8UB
HSBC Bank Capital Funding (Sterling 1) LP 100.00
HSBC
JE4
. . - 8UB
HSBC Bank Capital Funding (Sterling 2) LP 100.00
HSBC
HSBC Bank International Limited 100.00
0.30
HSBC Bank Malta p.l.c. 70.03
HSBC Bank Nominee (Jersey) Limited 100.00
HSBC Bank Pension Trust (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Bank Polska S.A. 100 100.00
HSBC Branch Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Client Holdings Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Client Share Offer Nominee (UK) Limited
100 100.00
HSBC Corporate Trustee Company (UK) Limited
100 100.00
HSBC Custody Services (Guernsey) Limited 100.00
HSBC Development Properties (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Enterprise Investment Company (UK
. P pany () 100 100.00
Limited
- 16
HSBC Epargne Entreprise (France) 99.99
HSBC Equator (UK) Limited 100.00
HSBC Equipment Finance (UK) Limited 100.00
HSBC Equity (UK) Limited 100 100.00
50
HSBC Europe B.V. 100.00
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ooooooo
HSBC European Clients Depositary Receipts
. - 100 100.00
Nominee (UK) Limited
HSBC Executor & Trustee Company (UK) Limited 0.40 100.00
- 16
HSBC Factoring (France) 99.99
HSBC Finance Limited 100 100.00
- 5
HSBC Finance 99.99 99.99
HSBC Fund Administration (Jersey) Limited 100.00
HSBC Funds Nominee (Jersey) Limited 100.00
HSBC Germany Holdings GmbH 100 100.00
HSBC Global Asset Management (Deutschland) 80.65
GmbH ’
16
HSBC Global Asset Management (France) 99.99
HSBC Global Asset Management (International)
. 100.00
Limited
- 2.32937
HSBC Global Asset Management (Malta) Limited 70.03
HSBC Global Asset Management (Oesterreich) 80,65
GmbH ’
B 10
HSBC GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT (Switzerland) AG 90.33
HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) LimitedCFAC
100 100.00
Payment
HSBC GLOBAL CUSTODY PROPRIETARY NOMINEE (UK)
100 100.00
LIMITED
HSBC Global Shared Services (India) Private 10
. 100.00
Limited
HSBC INKA Investment-AG TGV 80.65
HSBC Institutional Trust Services (lreland)
. 100.00
Limited
HSBC Insurance Management Services (Europe) 10.03
Limited ’
HSBC Insurance Management Services Limited 100.00
. _ - 0.10
HSBC Insurance Services Holdings Limited 100 100.00
. - - 1,000
HSBC Intermediate Leasing (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC International Financial Advisers (UK)
100.00

Limited
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ooooooo
A
. B _ _ B
HSBC International Financial Services (UK)
. C 100 100.00
Limited
HSBC International Holdings (Jersey) Limited 100.00
HSBC International Trade Finance Limited 100.00
HSBC Internet ve Telekomunikasyon Hizmetleri 96.00
Anonim Sirketi ’
HSBC Invoice Finance (UK) Limited 100.00
HSBC Issuer Services Common Depositary Nominee
- 100 100.00
(UK) Limited
HSBC Issuer Services Depositary Nominee (UK)
. 100 100.00
Limited
- 9.57
HSBC Leasing (France) 99.99
HSBC Life (Europe) Limited 66.15
HSBC Life (UK) Limited 100 100.00
- - 1.16469
HSBC Life Assurance (Malta) Limited 70.03
HSBC LU Nominees Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Marking Name Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC MIDDLE EAST LEASING PARTNERSHIP 84.99
HSBC Odeme Sistemleri Bilgisayar Teknolojileri 99.99
Basin Yayin Ve Musteri Hizmetleri )
HSBC Overseas Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC PB Corporate Services 1 Limited 100.00
HSBC PB Corporate Services 2 Limited 100.00
- . 1.26974
HSBC Pension Trust (lreland) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC PH Investments (UK) Limited 100.00
HSBC Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. A 100.00
A 99.9995%
99.5% B 0.00
HSBC Preferential LP (UK) 100 100.00
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HSBC Private Bank (C.l1.) Limited 100.00
. . 10
HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Private Banking Nominee 1 (Jersey)
. 100.00
Limited
HSBC Private Banking Nominee 2 (Jersey)
. 100.00
Limited
HSBC Private Banking Nominee 3 (Jersey)
. 100.00
Limited
HSBC Private Equity Investments (UK) Limited
100.00
HSBC Rail (UK) Limited 100.00
- 15.24
HSBC Real Estate Leasing (France) 99.99
92
HSBC REIM (France) 99.99
HSBC Representative Office (Nigeria) Limited 99 100.00
HSBC Securities (South Africa) (Pty) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Securities Services (Guernsey) Limited
100.00
HSBC Securities Services (lreland) Limited 1.25 100.00
- 18.50
HSBC Services (France) 99.99
15
HSBC SFH (France) 99.99
HSBC Stockbroker Services (Client Assets)
. - 100 100.00
Nominees Limited
2.32937
HSBC Stockbrokers (Malta) Limited 70.03
HSBC Stockbrokers Nominee (UK) Limited 100 100.00
. 0.01
HSBC TKM Limited 100.00
HSBC Transaction Services GmbH 80.65
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt (International) S.A. 80.65
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG 80.65
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt Gesellschaft fur 80.65
Bankbetei ligungen mbH ’
HSBC Trinkaus Consult GmbH 80.65
HSBC Trinkaus Europa Immobilien-Fonds Nr. 5 80.65
GmbH ’
HSBC Trinkaus Family Office GmbH 80.65
HSBC Trinkaus Immobilien Beteiligungs KG 80.65
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HSBC Trinkaus Real Estate GmbH 80.65
HSBC Trust Company (UK) Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Trustee (C.l1.) Limited 100.00
HSBC Trustee (Guernsey) Limited 100.00
HSBC Tulip Funding (UK) 100 100.00
HSBC Wealth Client Nominee Limited 100 100.00
HSBC Workplace Retirement Services Fund
. - 100 100.00
Platform Nominee Company Limited
HSBC Yatirim Menkul Degerler A.S. A 100.00
INKA Internationale Kapitalanlagegesellschaft 80.65
mbH ’
James Capel & Co. Limited 100 100.00
James Capel (Channel Islands) Nominees Limited
100.00
James Capel (Custodian) Nominees Limited 100 100.00
James Capel (Nominees) Limited 100 100.00
James Capel (Second Nominees) Limited 100 100.00
James Capel (Taiwan) Nominees Limited 100 100.00
James Capel (Third Nominees) Limited 100 100.00
John Lewis Financial Services Limited 100 100.00
Keyser Ullmann Limited 99.99
Kings Meadow Nominees Limited 100.00
Lemasco Nominees Limited 100.00
MAGIM Client HSBC GIS Nominee (UK) Limited
100 100.00
Marks and Spencer Financial Services plc 100.00
Marks and Spencer Retail Financial Services
- - 100 100.00
Holdings Limited
Marks and Spencer Savings and Investments
. 100.00
Limited
Marks and Spencer Unit Trust Management
. 100.00
Limited
Midcorp Limited 100 100.00
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0.00
Midland Bank (Branch Nominees) Limited 100 100.00
Midland Nominees Limited 100.00
MIL (Jersey) Limited 100.00
_ 15.24
Neuilly Valeurs 99.99
Prudential Client HSBC GIS Nominee (UK)
o 100 100.00
Limited
Republic Nominees Limited 100.00
_ 46 99.98
S.A.P.C. - Ufipro Recouvrement
_ 10
Saf Baiyun 99.99
- 10
Saf Chang Jiang 99.99
. 10
Saf Chang Jiang Ba 99.99
_ 10
Saf Chang Jiang Er 99.99
- - 10
Saf Chang Jiang Jiu 99.99
. . 10
Saf Chang Jiang Liu 99.99
_ _ 10
Saf Chang Jiang Qi 99.99
- 10
Saf Chang Jiang San 99.99
. _ 10
Saf Chang Jiang Shi 99.99
Saf Chang Jiang Shi Liu 99.99
Saf Chang Jiang Shi Wu 99.99
. _ 10
Saf Chang Jiang Shi“Er 99.99
_ - 10
Saf Chang Jiang Shiyi 99.99
- 10
Saf Chang Jiang Wu 99.99
. . 10
Saf Chang Jiang Yi 99.99
10
Saf Guangzhou 99.99
- 10.10
Saf Palissandre 99.99
_ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang 99.99
_ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang Ba 99.99
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_ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang Er 99.99
_ _ 10
Saf zhu Jiang Jiu 99.99
- - 10
Saf zhu Jiang Liu 99.99
_ _ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang Qi 99.99
_ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang San 99.99
- - 10
Saf zhu Jiang Shi 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Ba 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Er 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Jiu 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Liu 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Qi 99.99
Saf Zhu Jiang Shi Wu 99.99
_ - 10
Saf Zhu Jiang Shiyi 99.99
_ 10
Saf Zhu Jiang Wu 99.99
- - 10
Saf zhu Jiang Yi 99.99
Samada Limited 100.00
Samuel Montagu & Co. Limited 100 100.00
10,000
_ 94.90
SAS Bosquet  Audrain
10
SAS Cyatheas Pasteur 94.93
10,000
94.92
SAS Orona
99.99
. 15.24
SCl Hervet Mathurins
99.99
152.44
SCI HSBC Assurances Immo
SFSS Nominees (Pty) Limited 100.00
Shuttle Developments Limited 100 100.00
SNC Dorique 99.99
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SNC Kerouan

SNC Les Mercuriales

15
SNC Les Oliviers D"Antibes
SNC Makala
. . 0.01
SNC Nuku-Hiva Bail
SNCB/M6-2008 A
10
SNCB/M6-2007 A
10
SNCB/M6-2007 B
- - - - 16
Societe Financiere et Mobiliere
Societe Francaise et Suisse
_ I _ 70
Societe Immobiliere Malesherbes-Anjou
100
Solandra 3
Somers (U.K.) Limited
1.25
Somers Dublin Limited
Sopingest
_ . L 0.10
South Yorkshire Light Rail Limited
St Cross Trustees Limited
Swan National Leasing (Commercials) Limited
Swan National Limited
15

Thasosfin

The Venture Catalysts Limited

TKM International Limited

Trinkaus Australien Immobilien Fonds Nr. 1
Brisbane GmbH & Co. KG

Trinkaus Australien Immobilien-Fonds Nr. 1
Treuhand-GmbH

Trinkaus Canada Immobilien-Fonds Nr. 1
Verwaltungs-GmbH

Trinkaus Europa Immobilien-Fonds Nr.3 Objekt
Utrecht Verwaltungs-GmbH

Trinkaus Immobilien-Fonds Geschaeftsfuehrungs-
GmbH

376/484

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

99.99

99.99
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99.99
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99.99
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99.99
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98.37

100 100.00

100.00
99.99

100.00

100.00

100.00
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99.99
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Trinkaus Immobilien-Fonds Verwaltungs-GmbH 80.65
Trinkaus Private Equity Management GmbH 80.65
Trinkaus Private Equity Verwaltungs GmbH 80.65
Turnsonic (Nominees) Limited 100.00
. 16
Valeurs Mobilieres Elysees 99.99
Business Growth Fund plc 23.37 23.98
CFAC Payment Scheme Limited 0 0.00
33.33
33.33 50 50.00
92400
GIE EDITH BAIL 3 20.00
92400
GIE EDITH BAIL 3 20.00
BP K3 98849
GIE GNIFI 24.99
37
. - 0.01
Rosimian Limited B 25.00
- 0.01
SCI Karuvefai 33.32
sino AG 20.11
0.01
Spire Topco Hotels Limited A 0.01 46.79
B
VocaLink Holdings Limited
15.91 15.91
Vaultex UK Limited 50 50.00
HCM Holdings Limited ( 0.01
51 51.00

)

100 100
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Tartal Tatal

£m Em

Interest income: 9,218 9,438
Interest expense |2,200) {2,508y
Het irberest income 6,818 [ -]
Fos incoime 4475 4,568
Fee sapense {1313) {1,303}
Het fee income 2,883 3,268
Trading income secluding net interest income 2,315 1,142
Het imberest income on trading activities 436 447
Het trading income 2,751 1,808
Het income from financial instruments designated at fair value are arn
Gains less losses from finandal investments 150 an
Dividend incomes 10 Fia]
Het insurance premium income 2 1,613 1,873
Othar cperating income ar 163
Total eperating income 14,918 14,2002
Het insurance daims, benefits paid and movement in liabilities to palicyholders 3 |2, 0u8) {24,318)
et operating income before loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisions: 12,870 11,885
Loan impairment charges and other credit risk provisons 4 (481} {a45)
et operating income 4 12,389 11,437
Employes compensation and benefits 5 (4,331) {4,144)
General and administrative expenses (4,568 4,211}
Deprecation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 254 {311}
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 2531} {211}
Total operating experses (9,430} {9,457}
Operating proft 2,989 1,950
Share of profit in assooltes and joint venbures 2 3
Profit before tax 2471 1,953
Tax expense g {597} |5E4)
Profit for the year 1,974 1,359
Profit attribatabile to shareholders of the parent company 1,942 1,354
Prafit attributable to non-controlling interests 3z EL]

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the asdited sections of the Report of the Directors: Risk" on pages 19 to 71 and the ‘Report
of the: Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal staternents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Tatal Tatal
£m Em
Profit for the year 1974 1,353
Other comprehensive incoma | expense]
tems that will be redassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific comditions are met
Available-for-sale investments
— fair value gains 35 1,003
— fair value gains redassified to the income statement on disposal |164) {407
= amounts reclassified to the income statement in respect of impairment losses 5 EL
— Income taes F] {218}
Cash flow hedges
— fair value gains 168 £ ]
— fair value gains redassified to the income statement {352) {575}
= Income taes 51 {74)
Exchange differences and other |7a5) {axa)
ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Artuarial gains on defined benefit plans
= before income taaes Fi-] 1,638
— Income taes 14} [EF=]]
Other comprehensive inoome for the year, met of to |951) 1,15
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,023 2,518
Total comprehensive incom e for the year attributable toc
— shargholders of the parent comgpany 1,018 2,504
— nan-controlling interests 5 14
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,023 2,518

1 Mowements in the cosh flow hedging resenee indude omounts tronsferred to the income stotement of £ 252 millon (2014:£575 million) comprising a
£245 milkon gain (2014 £250 milon goin) foken fo Wet interest imoome’ ond a £107 miWon gain (2014 £325 milon gain] token to Wet froding

income”.

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the audited sections of the ‘Report of the Directors: Risk” on pages 1980 71 and the ‘Report
of the: Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal statermnents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2015

15 M4

Mates Em £m
Assets
Cashi and balances at central banis 19,749 42,853
ttesms in thae courss of collection from other banks 1,38 a7
Trading assets 11 110,585 130,037
Financial asseis desknated at fair value 14 6,28 ¥ -]
Denhatives 15 166,785 187,738
Loans and advances to banks i 23,212 25 M7
Loans and advances to oustome s L 258 508 257 353
Rewverse repuarchase agresmsents — non-rading I6 30,537 41,945
Financial investments 17 71352 6154
Prepayments, aconsed income and other assets i) 11,733 20,319
Current tax assets 1 190
Interests in associabes and joint venfures 20 (=] [=5]
Goodwil and intangible assets Fi 7011 T4
Deferred tax assets g 110 1Té
Total assets T27.541 i -]
Liabilitles and equity
Liabilitles
Dieposits by banks Fi ) 24,202 27,500
Customer accounts i 332,530 346 507
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 16 17,000 23353
Items in the: course of transmission to other banics 583 4T
Trading kabili ties Fxd 73483 42,800
Financial lizbilities designated at fair value 24 19,001 12,552
Denhatives 15 162 254 188,078
Diebt secunities in issus i 26,089 2891
Aronsals, deferred income and other liabilities Fii 575 12,417
Current tax liabilities 243 o]
Liabilities under insurance contracts issued F. 16,664 17,833
Prostsions Fra 2,057 1,707
Deferred tax liabilities g ] 354
Subordinated kabilities F 8,537 L]
Total liabilities BRY, 16 i, 581
Equity
Called up share capital EFs Fi-rg Tar
Share premivm account 20,733 20, 7H
Other egquity instruments 2 3,584 1196
Other reserves (218} T2
Retained earnings 12,599 11 580
Total shareholders' squity 37457 36,078
Mom-congrolling interests 7= ] &bl
Total equity 38,175 36, dal
Tatal equity and kabdities 727,541 7597 80

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the audited $ections of the ‘Report of the Directors: Risk” on pages 19 to 71 and the ‘Report
of the Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal statemnents.

AP S Simoes, Director 22 February 2016
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adustmets for:
—non-cash ibems included in profit befone tax
—change in operating assets
— change in operating labilities
—elimination of exchange differences!
—niet gain from investing activities
—share of profit in assodates and joint venbares
—contributions paid to defined benefit plans
— tax paid
Het cash used in operating actvities
Cash flows from Irvesting activities
Purchase of financial investments
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial investmends
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipmsnt
Purchase of goodwill and intangible assets
Proceeds from the sale of imangile assets
Het cash outfiow from acquisition of | and subsidi
Proceeds from disposl of subsidianes
Cash outflow from disposal of associates
Het cash disposed of on sale of subsidianies
Purchases of HSEC Hialdings plc shares to satishy share-based payment trarsactions

Het cash generated from{used inj imvesting activibies
Cash flows from financing activities

Ismse of ordinany share capital

|ssse of capital securities

Subordinabed kablibthes tssued

Subordinated kabilities repaid

Met cashi inflow froms dhange in stake of suhsidiaries
Dividends paid to shareholders

[ividends paid to non-controling intenests

Het cash used in finandng activibies

et decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash squivalents at 1 January
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash squivalents at 31 December

1 Adp ent o bring chang
s details covnar be determingd without unvactonaive sxpense.

2015 2014

Mates £m £m
2,971 1,543

3 2,515 2,918
3 17,158 14,051
a3 {33,087) {58,560)
1845 2528
(174) {38a)
121 3
(20} (254}
(711} {574}
{9,745) (33,425)
(30,540} (26,250}

33,876 26,152
(831} {411}

) 414
[217) {231)

2 F]
- (&1}

a1 11z

{2} i
- {457}
= 11}

2,810 {1,378)

- 08

1,388 2098

1,140 2103

(2,3%3) (224

0 T

{1027} {1274}

{15} 118}

(E=3) {750}

|7.82) {35,553}

71,500 108,765

(877} {1,718}

3 62,995 71,500

apening ond dosing balance sheet armounts b overage rtes. This & not done on @ lne-by-fline basis,

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the audited $ections of the Report of the Directors: Riss” on pages 19 o 71 and the ‘Report
of the Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal statermnents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other reserves
D Bnilabhe. Ttal
Called up equity for-sale  Cash flow Faaaign shari- K-

Share  Share  instre:  Retained falivibe  hedging eschange  holders’ costrolling Total
capital  presium manls  CARigS  (ESeTWE  MSSTUR  PRREIVE BguUily  iMeresis equity

Em Em Em £m Em £ £ Em Em Em

Ar 1 anuary 2015 187 073 2,196 11580 1,070 176 (474] 36078 620 36,838
Profit for the year = = = 1,942 = = = 1,942 3z 1574
Other comprehensive inooms (net

of tax} - - - et (e [an  (7e4)  (s24) 27 (esy
wwaiabie for sake - =1 = -l e[ - S| el ][ e
Cash flow hedges - - - - -1l nam e -
MArtuarial gains on defined benefit plans - - - B - - - &4 1 &5
Exchange differences and other = = = = = = |Te4) [T&4) [22) [786)
Total comprehens ive income for the

year = = = 2,006 [a1) [133) [7e4) 1,018 5 1,003
Capital sacuritios issued” = = 1,328 = = = = 1328 = 1328
Dividends to shareholers - - - fnez) - = - LT (a5} (1.082)
Het impact of eguity-settled share-

bazed payments - - - 44 - - - a4 - 44
Change i business combinations and

other movements = = = [4) = = = 4] 18 14
At 31 December 2015 87 733 3584 12539 a7a 43 _[1238) 37487 638 38125
At 1 lanuary 2014 T 0427 — 10325 &34 {13y o0 33370 549 32919
Prafit for the year - - - 1,354 - - - 1,334 EL] 1,389
Other comprehensive income (net of

tax) - - = 1321 436 189 (9] 1,180 (H} 1,138
Available-for-sale iInvestments - - - - 438 - - 436 B 444
Cash flaw hedges - - - - - 188 - 1%3 - 148
#ctuarial gains/{losses) on defined

benefit plans - - - 131 - - - 1,31 (L] 1,316
Exchange differences and other - - - - - - | o) (Ta) {2y (&0
Taotal comprehensive income for the

year = = = 1675 436 189 (T98) 2,504 14 1518
Share capital issued, net of costs' - T - - - - - 306 - 206
Capital securities issued” = = 2,196 = = = = 2,196 = 2,196
Dividends to sharsholders - - ! ] - - - {1,274 {16 {12004
Het impact of eguity-settied share-

bazed payments - - - 15 - - - 15 - 15
Armesitions and disposals - - - - - - i prd -
Changs i business combinations and

other movements - - - [&1) - - - {E1) T3 12
Ak 31 December 314 ey T3 2196 11580 1,07 176 (474) 38,078 EM)  3E4a8

1 Al rew copifal subscribed during the yeor wos issued To HSSC Holdings plc. See Nafe 32 for fonther details.

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the asdited sections of the Report of the Directors: Risk” on pages 19 to 71 and the ‘Report
of the: Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal statermnents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

HSBC Bank plc statement of financial position at 31 December 2015

s Pt

Maotes Em Em
Assets
Cash and balances at central banis IBTHS 41,434
ttems in the: course of collection from other banis 993 2]
Trading asseis 11 a0,244 43757
Financial assets designated at fair value 14 - a
Denhvatives 15 150,454 160,35
Loans and advances to banks L 16,881 18,708
Loans and advances to oestomers i 205398 201,871
Rewerse repurchase agreemsents - non-trading 16 14,853 36391
Financial investments r 39,858 A8 4%
Prepayments, aconsed income: and other assets 15 9,308 12,508
Cirrent tax assets L2 15
Interests in associates and |oint ventures F.rl [ L7
Investments in subsidiany undertakings g 11,230 11,33
Goodwill and intanghble assets Fi e o]
Dieferred tax assets g T L]
Total assets 588,850 630,715
Labilities and equity
Liabllitles
Deposits by banis Fi 29,073 31,343
Customer accounts i 271,536 282 EET
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 16 11,278 18,293
Items in the: course of transmission to other banks = I
Tracling kabdi thes Fxd 57,436 54,009
Financial lizhiities designated at fair value F2 3 11,813 16,17
Denhatives 15 148 249 161,442
Diehé secunities in issue 29 12,358 14,950
#consals, deferred income and other liabilities 5 3,566 5289
Current tax liabilities 1385 180
Prostsions Fra 1, M0 1,345
Dieferred tax liabilities 4 453 345
Subordinated kabilities F. 7,497 a5
Total liabilities 555,358 Girg, 250
Equity
Called up share capital EF Fi-r) Tar
‘Share premium acoount 20,733 20,733
Other equity instruments 1 3,584 2,198
Other reserves 354 L -]
Retained sarnings B0 7350
Total equity 33,532 11,465
Tatal equity and kabdities SAH, 250 630,715

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the audited $ections of the Report of the Directors: Riss” on pages 19 to 71 and the ‘Report
of the Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal statemnents.

AP S Simoes, Director 22 February 2016
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

HSBC Bank plc cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2015

s 014
Mates Em Em
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,252 1,367
i justmeents for:
—non-cash items included in profit before tax EE] 2,033 1537
—change in operating assets EES 19,009 18304
—change in operating labilities EE] (30,397) (43,541}
— glimination of exchange differences' 1,045 1,703
—net gain from imeesting actiities [133) (433}
—contributions paid to defined benefit plans (241} {242}
—taxpald {536) {208)
Met cash used in cperating actvites |6,554) {20,743}
Cash flows from irvesting actities
Purchase of financial investments {17,551} {14,253}
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of financial imestments 20,415 16,188
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment 297) {3ea)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eguipment ] 401
Purchase of goodwill and intangible assets (228} {1&32)
Met cash outflow fram acquisition of businesses and subsidianies [2) 1]
Proceeds from disposal and liguidation of businesses a7 112
Het cash generated from{used in) imvesting activibes 2472 {3,065)
Cash flows from financing activities
Ismse of ordinany share capital - 306
lssise of capital securities 1328 2196
Subordinated kabilities tssued 1,073 -
Subordinated kablities repaid 12371) |2, 203)
Met cashi outflow Erom imcrease in stake of subsidiaries - {244)
Dividends paid to shareholders |1,004) {1,271}
Met cashi used in financing activibies (924) {1,218}
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents 15,418} (25,004}
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Janusary 61,942 BEO1T
Effect of enchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (436} 11,081}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December EE] 56,080 B1,5942

1 Adjustrment to bring chonges betwesn apening ond dosing baignce sheet amounts to overoge retes This & not dong on o Mne=by-fine bosis,
5 details cavnal be determined with Bl g

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the asdited sections of the Report of the Directors: Risk" on pages 19 0 71 and the ‘Report
of the: Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandial staternents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Financial Statements (confinued)

HSBC Bank plc statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2015

DOther resenmes
Bvailable-
Called up Other forsale  Cash flow Faoreign
share Share gguity  Aetained  fair value hedging  exchange Total
cpital  premium  instruments  earnings TESETVE reserve TEsETVE euity
£m £mi £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 anuary 2015 Tay 0,733 2,196 7,350 339 100 =] 31465
Frofit for the year = - - 1,608 - - - 1,609
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) = - - m 76 (&7] 24) 45
hwalabie-forsale - _ ~ — P — — ™
Cash flow hedges = - - - - &7} - (&7]
MArtuarial gains on defined benefit plans - - - T0 - - - 0
Exchange differences and other = - - - - - [ETT) (34
Taotal comprehensive income for the year = - - 1,679 16 (&7] 34) 1,654
Capital securities issued” - - 1388 - - - - 1,388
Dividends to sharsholdiers - - - {1,.034] - - - {1,024)
Het impact of equity-settied share-based
payments = = = a7 = = = a7
Changs in business combinations and other
MovEmEnts = = = F = = = 2
At 31 December 2015 a7 30,733 3,584 8,054 415 a3 24} 33,532
A 1 January 2014 Tar 20427 - 6,342 {217} %) {47} 27,194
Profit for the year - - - 4978 - - - ars
Other comprehensive inoome (net of tax) = - - 1,383 E5h 10 (3} 1114
bailabile-for-sale = - - - a5E - - 858
Cash flow hedges = - - - - 108 - 108
#ctuarial gains on defined benefit plans - - - 1,383 - - - 1,383
Exchange differences and other = - = - - - 1] 13
Tatal comprehensive income for the year = - = 2,328 ESE 10 E]] 3089
‘Share capital issued, net of costs® - ETe ) - - - - - e
Capital securities ssued® - _ 3,188 - _ _ _ 3 186
Dividends to shareholders - - - {1,271) - - - [1,271)
Met impact of equity-ssttied share-hased
paymS - - - 1 - - - 12
Changs im business combinations and other
_ movements - - - (E1) - - - (B1)
Az 31 December b4 Tar 30,733 3,156 7,350 EEx] 100 {54} 31,465

1 Al mew copifal subscribed during the yeor wos imsued fo HSSC Holdings phe. See Nafe 22 for forther details.

The accompanying notes on pages 102 to 186 and the audited sections of the ‘Report of the Directors: Risk” on pages 19 to 71 and the ‘Report
of the: Directors: Capital Management’ on pages 72 to &1 form an integral part of these finandal staternents.
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

MNotes on the Financial Statements

1 Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

{a) Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

International Financial Reporting Standards [1FRSs') comprise accounting standards ssued or adopted by the International
Accounting Standards Board ['LASE’) and interpretations issued or adopted by the IFRS Interpretations Committee 'IFRS IC').

The consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financlal staternents of HSBC Bank plc have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs &s issued by the IASE and &s endorsed by the EU. EU-endorsed IFRSs could differ from IFRSs
a5 issued by the LASE if, at any podnt in time, new or amended IFRSs were not to be endorsed by the EU.

At 31 Decernber 2015, there were no unendorsed standards effective for the year ended 31 December 2015 affecting these
consolidated and separate financlal statements and there was no difference between IFRSs endorsed by the EU and IFRSs
issued by the IASE in terms of their application to the group. Accordingly, the group's financial statements for the year ended
31 Decernber 2015 are prepared In accordance with IFRSs as ssued by the MASE.

Standards adopted during the year ended 31 December 2015
There were no new standards applied during the year ended 31 December 2015,

During 2015, the group adopted a number of interpretations and amendments to standards which had an insignificant effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financial statements of H3BC Bank plc.

|b) Futwure accounting developments

In eddithon to completing (ts projects on revenee recognition, financial instrurment accounting and leasing, discussad below,
the 1A5EB |s working on & project on inswrance accounting which could represent significant changes to accounting
requirements in the future.

Minor amendments to IFRSs

The IASE has published & number of minor amendments to IFRSs through the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013-2014 cycle
and In a series of stand-alone amendments, one of which has not yet been endorsed for use in the EU. HSBC has not early
applied any of the amendments effective after 31 December 2015 and it expects they will have an insignificant effect, when
applied, on the consolidated financial statements of growp and the separate financial statements of HSBC Bank plc.

Major new IFRSs

The I4SE has published IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers” and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’.
None of these IFR%s have yet been endorsed for use in the EU.

IFRS 9 “‘Financial Instrurments’

Im July 2014, the 1ASE issued IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrumenits’, which is the comprehensive standard to replace 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and Includes requirements for dassification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilithes, impalrment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

Classification and measurement

The classification and messurernent of financial assets will depend on how these are managed (the entity's business model)
and thelr contractual cash flow charscteristics. These factors determine whether the financial assets are measwured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income ['FYOCI) or fair value through profit or loss ('FVPL'). In many
Instances, the classification and measurement outcornes will be similar to 145 39, although differences will arise, For example,
under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are not separated from host financial assets and equity securities are measured at FVFL
or, In limited circumstances, fair value movernents will be shown in OCI. The combined effect of the application of the
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristhcs tests may result in some differences in the population of financial
Basets measured at amortised cost or fair value compared with 1AS 39, The classification of financial Rabilities is essentially
unchanged. For certain liabdlites measured at fair value, gains or losses relating to changes in the entity's own credit risk are to
be included in other comprehensive income.

The group conducted an assessment of potential classification and measurement changes to financial assets based on the
composition of the balance sheet &< at 31 December 2014. This may not be fully representative of the impact &s at 1 January
2018 because IFRS 9 requires that business models be assessed based on the facts and circumstances from the date of indtial
application. In addition, the contractual terms and conditions of the financial assets assessed as at 31 December 2014 may not
reflect the contractual terms and conditions of the group®s financial assets at transition. Howewer, besed on the assessment of
financial assets as at 31 December 2014 and expectations around changes to balance sheet composition, the group expects
that generally:

* Loans and advances to banks and to customers and non-trading reverse repurchase agreements that are classified as loans
and recelvables under 145 39 will be messured at amortised cost under IFRS 9;

# Financlal assets designated at FVPL will remain at FYPL, because it is required under IFRS 9 or designation will continue;

= Debt securities classified as avallable for sale will primarily be measured at amortised cost or FWOQ, with & small minority at
FWPL either because of their contractual cash flow characteristics or the business model within which they are held;
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® Treasury and other eligible bills classified as available for sale will be meesured at amortised cost or FVOC] depending upon
the business model in which they are held; and

» Al equity securities will remain measured at fair value. A significant majority will have fair value movements shown in
prafit or loss, while & minority will have fair value movements presented in other comprehensive income ['OC1'). The equity
securities for which falr value movements will be shown in OC1 are business facilitation and other similar investments where
the group holds the investments other than to generate a capital returmn.

Impairment

The impadrment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortisad cost and FVOQ, and lease receivables and
certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, allowance [or provision in the case of
commitments and guarantees) is required for expected credit losses [ECL") resulting from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months ["12-month ECL'). In the event of & significant increase in credit risk, allowance [or provision) is
required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument [Nfetime ECL).
Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognised are considered to be ‘stage 1°; financial assets which are considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in 'stage ¥'; and financial assets for which there is objective evidence of
Impalrment so are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impadred are in ‘stage 3"

The assessment of whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition ks performed for each reporting
period by conskdering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financlal instrument, rather than
by considering an increase in ECL.

The assessrent of credit risk and the estimation of ECL are required to be unblased and probability-welghted and should
Incorporate all available information which is relevant to the assessment, including Information about past events, current
condithons and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions at the reporting date. In
addition, the estimation of ECL should take into account the time value of money. #As a result, the recognition and
rmeasurement of impairment is intended to be more forward-looking than under 1AS 39 and the resulting impairment charge
willl bend to be more volatile. It will also tend to result in an Increase in the total level of impalrment allowances, since all
financial assets will be assessed fior at least 12-month ECL and the population of financial assets to which lifetime ECL applies is
likely to be larger than the population for which there Is objective evidence of impairment in accordance with LAS 39.

Hedge accounting

The general hedge accounting requirements alm to simplify hedge accounting, creating a stronger link with risk management
strategy and permitting hedge accounting to be applied to a greater variety of hedging instruments and risks. The standard
does not explicitly address macro hedge accounting strateghes, which are belng considered in a separate project. To remove
the risk of amy conflict betwesn existing macro hedge sccounting practice and the new general hedge accounting
requirerments, IFRS 9 includes an accounting policy chodce to remadn with A5 39 hedge accounting.

Based on the analysis performed to date, the group expects to exercise the acoounting policy cholce to continue LAS 39 hedge
socounting and therefore ts not currently planning to change hedge accounting, although the group will implemant the revised
hedge sccounting dischosures required by the related amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

Transition

The classification and measurerment and impalrment requirerments are applied retrospectively by adjusting the opening
balance sheet at the date of initial application, with no requirement to restate comparative perbods,

The mandatory application date for the standard a5 a whole i 1 January 2018, bt it is possible to apply the revised
prasentation for certain Nabilities messured at falr value from an earlier date. The group intends to revise the presentation of
fair value gains and losses relating to the entity’s own credit risk on certain Nabilities &s spon as permitted by EU law. If this
prasentation were applied at 31 Decemnber 2015, the effect would be to decrease profit before tax with the opposite effect on
other comprehensive income based on the change in fair value attributable to changes in the group’s credit risk for the year,
with no effect on net assets. Further information on change in fair value attributable to changes in credit risk, including the
group’s credit risk, ks disclosed in Mote 24

The group ks assessing the inpact that the financial asset classification and impairment requirernents will have on the financial
statements.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

InMay 2014, the LASE [ssued IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’. The original effective date of IFRS 15 has been
delayed by one year and the standard is now effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2018 with early
application permitted. IFRS 15 provides a principles-based approach for revenue recognithon, and introduces the concept of
recognising revenue for obligations as they are satisfied. The standard should be applied retrospectively, with certain practical

expedients avallable. The group has assessed the impact of IFRS 15 and it expects that the standard will have no significant
effect, when applied, on the consolidated financial statements of the group and the separate financlal statements of HSBC

Bank plc.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

In Januwary 2016, the IASE |ssued IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ with an effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary 2019,
IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most leases within the scope of the standard in 2 manner similar to the way in which
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finance leases are currently accounted for under 1AS 17 ‘Leases’. Lessees will recognise & ‘right of use’ asset and a
corresponding financial Rability on the balance sheet. The asset will be amortised over the length of the lease and the financial
lizbility measured at amortised cost. Lessor accounting remadns substantially the same 25 in LAS 17. The group s currently
easessing the impact of IFRS 16 and It Is not practicable to quantify the effect as at the date of the publication of these financial
ctatements.

(c) Presentation of information
Disclosures under IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’ concerning the nature and extent

of risks relating to insurance contracts and fimancial instruments are iIncluded in the audited sections of the ‘Report of the
Directors: Risk' on pages 19 to 71.

Capital disclosures under 145 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” are included (n the audited sections of ‘Report of the
Directors: Capital’ on pages 72 to 81.

Disclosures relating to the group’s securitisation activities and structured products are included in the audited section of
‘Report of the Directors: Risk’ on page 47,

In publishing the parent company financlal stabements together with the group financial statements, the bank has taken
advantage of the exemption in section 408(3) of the Companles Act 2006 not to present (s individual income statement and

related notes.

The functional currency of the bank s Sterling, which is also the presentation currency of the consolidated financlal statements
of the group.

{d) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and judgements about future conditions. n view of the
Inherenit uncertainties and the high level of subjectivity imiolved in the recognition or measurement of items listed below, it ks
possible that the outcomes in the next financlal year could differ from those on which management's estimates are based,
resulting in materially different conclusbons from those reached by management for the purposes of the 2015 Financial
Statements, Management's selectbon of the group’s eccounting polickes which contaln critical estimates and judgements is
listed below; it reflects the materiality of the items to which the policies are applied, the high degree of judgement and
estimation uncertainty iwolved:

» Impairment of loans and advances: Note 1{i);
» Valuation of financial instruments: Note 12;
» Goodwill impairment: Note 21;

* Provishons: Note 27,

(e} Going concern

The financial stetements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Directors are satisfied that the group and parent
comparny have the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Directors have
considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, Including future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources.

(f) Consoclidation and related disclosures

The grouwp controls and consequently consolidates an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to veriable returns from its
irvohement with the entity and has the ability to affect those retumns through its power over the entity. Conftral ks initially
assessed based on consideration of all facts and circumstances, and 5 subsequently reassessed when there are significant
changes to the initial setup.

Where an entity & governed by woting rights, the group would consolidate when it holds, directly or indirectly, the necessary
voting rights to pass respluthons by the goveming body. In all other cases, the assessment of controd s more complex and
requires judgement of other factors, including having exposure to variability of returns, power over the relevant activities or
holding the power &s agent or principal.

Business combdnations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acguisition s measured at the fair value
of the consideration, Including contingent consideration, given at the date of exchange. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as an expense in the Income stetement in the period in which they are incurred. The soquired identifizble assets,
lizbilities and contingent liabilities are generally measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition. Goodwill s measured
as the excess of the aggregate of the conskderation transferred, the amount of non-controlling Interest and the fair value of the
group's previously held equity interest, if any, over the net of the amounts of the (dentifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assurned. The amount of non-controlling interest is measured elther at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquires’s (dentifiable net assets. For acquisitions achieved in stages, the previously held equity
iriterest is remeasured at the acquisition-date fair value with the resulting gabn or loss recognised in the income statement.

Al intre-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation.
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The consolidated financial statements of the group also incude the attributable share of the results and reserves of jolnt
ventures and assoclates, based on either financial staternents made up to 31 December or pro-rated amounts adjusted for any
material transactions or events ocourring between the date of financial staternents available and 31 December.

(@) Foreign currencies

Transactions in forelgn currencles are recorded in the functional currency &t the rate of exchange prevalling on the date of the
transaction, Monetary assets and lebdlities denominated in forelgn currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. Any resulting exchange differences are inchuded in the Income statement.
Non-rmonetary assets and liabilities that are measured &t historical cost in a forelgn currency are translated into the functional
currency using the rate of exchange at the date of the inktial transaction. Mor-monetary assets and liabilites measured at fair
value in & forelgn currency are translated into the functional currency using the rabe of exchange at the date the fair value was
determined. Any forelgn exchange component of a gain or loss on & non-monetary item is recognised elther in other
comprehensive income or in the income statement depending where the gain or loss on the underlying non-monetary item s
recognised.

In the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabdlities of branches, subsidiaries, joint ventures and assoclates
whose functional currency is not Sterling, are translated into the group’s presentation currency at the rate of exchange at the
belamnce sheet date, while thelr results are translated into Sterling at the average rates of exchange for the reporting perbod.
Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of opening forelgn currency net assets, and the retranslation of the results
for the reporting period from the average rate to the exchange rate at the period end, are recognised in other comprehenshve
income. Exchange differences on a monetary item that is part of & net investment In a foreign operation are recognised in the
income statement of the separate financlel statements and In other comprehensive income in consolidated finamcial
statements. On disposal of a forelgn operation, exchange differences previously recognised in other comprehensive Income
are reclassified to the income statement &s a reclassification adjustrment.

(h) Loans and advances to banks and customers

These include loans and advances originated by the group, not classified as hald for trading or designated at fair value, They
are recognised when cash is advanced to & borrower and are derecognised when either the borrower repays its obligations, or
the loans are sobd, or substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are trancsferred. They are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
iriterest method, less impalrment allowance.

Loans amnd advances are reclassified to “Assets held for sale’ when they meet the criterla presented in Note 19; though their
measurement remains in sccordance with this policy.

The group may commit to underwrite loans on fieed contractual terms for specified periods of tme. When the loan arising
from the lending commitment k5 expected to be held for trading, the commitrment to lend & recorded as a derivative. On
drawdown, the loan is classifled as held for trading. ‘When the group intends to hold the loan, & provision on the loan
commitment is only recorded where it is probable that the group will incur & loss. On inception of the loan, the loan to be held
Is recorded at its fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost. For certaln transactions, such as leveraged finance
and syndicated lending activities, the cash advanced may not be the best evidence of the fair value of the loan. For these
loans, where the initial fedr value |s lower than the cash amount advanced, the difference is charged to the income statement
in other operating income. The write-down s recovered over the life of the loan, through the recognition of interest income,
unless the loan becomes impaired.

(i) Impairment of loans and advances and available-for-sale financial assets
Crifical accounting esfimates and judgements
Impairment of loans and advances

Loan impakrment allowances represent management's best estimate of losses incurred in the loan portfolios at the balance
sheet date. Management |s required to exercise judgement in making essumptions and estimates when caloulating boan
impairment allowances on both individually and collectively assessed loans and advances. See the ‘Movement in
Iimpairment allowances by industry sector tabbe” on page 38 for a breakdown of individual and collective impalrment
ellowances.

Collective impalrment allowances are subject to estimation uncertainty, in part because it ks not practicable to identify losses
on an individual loan basis due to the large nurmber of individually insignificant loans in the portfolie. The estimation
methods include the use of statisthcal analyses of historical Information, supplemented with significant management
judgement, to assess whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual level of incurred losses (s
likehy to be greater or less than historical experience.

‘Where changes in economic, regulatory or behavloural condithons result in the most recent trends in portfolio risk factors
being not fully reflected in the statistical models, risk factors are taken into account by adjusting the impairment allowances
derived solely from historical loss experience.

Risk factors inclede loan portfolio growth, product mix, unemployment rates, bankruptey trends, geographical
concentrathons, boan product features, economic conditions swch &s national and local trends in housing markets, the level of
Interest rates, portfolio seasoning, account management policles and practices, changes in laws and regulations and other
Infleences on customer payment patterns, Different factors are applied in different reglons and countries to reflect local
economic conditions, laws and regulations. The methodology and the assumptions used in calculating impalrment losses are
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reviewed regularly in the light of differences between boss estimates and actual loss experience. For example, roll rates, loss
rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure they
remain appropriate.

For individually assessed loans, judgement is required in determining whether there is objective evidence that a loss event
has occurred and, if so, the measurement of the impairment allowance. In determining whether there is objective evidence
that a boss event has occurred, judgement i exercised in evaluating all relevant information on Indicators of iImpakrment,
inchuding the consideration of whether payments are contractually past-due and the consideration of other factors indicating
deteriorathon in the financial condition and outlook of borrowers affecting their abllity to pay. A higher level of judgement ks
required for loans to borrowers showing signs of financial difficulty in market sectors experiencing economic stress,
parthcularky where the Nkelihood of repayment Is affected by the prospects for refinancing or the sale of & specified asset.
For those loans where objective evidence of Impalrment exists, management determine the size of the allowance required
based on a range of factors such as the realisable walue of security, the likely dividend available on liquidation or bankruptcy,
the wiability of the customer’s business model and the capacity to trade successiully out of financial difficulties and generate
suffickent cash flow to service debt obligations.

The group might provide loan forbearance to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties by agreeing to modify the
contractual payment berms of keans in order to improve the management of customer relationships, maximise collection
opportunities or avodd default or repossession. Where forbearance activities are significant, higher levels of judgement and
estirmation uncertainty are involved In determining their effects on loan impairment allowances, Judgements are Involved in
differentiating the credit risk characteristics of forbearance cases, including those which retwrn to performing status
following renegotiation. Where collectively assessed boan portfolios include significant levels of loan forbearance, portfolios
are segmented to reflect the different credit risk characteristics of forbearance cases, and estimates are made of the
Incurred losses inherent within each forbearance portfollo segment. Forbearance activities take place in both retall and
wholesale loan portfolbos.

The exercise of judgement requires the use of assumptions which are highly subjective and very sensitive bo the risk factors,
in particular to changes in economic and credit condithons across geographical areas. Many of the factors have a high degree
of interdependency and there is no single factor to which our loan impairment allowances as a whole are sensithve.

Impairment of loans and advances

Losses for impaired loans are recognised promptly when there is objective evidence that impalrment of a loan or portfolio of
loans has occurred. Impairment allowances that are caloulated on individual loans or on groups of loans assessed collectively,
are recorded as charges to the income statement and are recorded against the carrying amount of impaired loans on the
balamce sheet. Losses which may arise from future events are not recognised.

Individually assessed loans and advances

The factors considered In determining whether a loan ks individually significant for the purposes of assessing impalrment
indlude the size of the loan, the number of loans in the portfolio, and the importance of the individual loan relationship, and
hiow this s managed. Loans that are determined to be individually significant based on the above and other relevant factors
will be individually assessed for impairment, except when volumes of defaults and losses are sufficent to justify treatment
under & collective methodology.

Loans considered as individually significant are typlcally to corporate and commerchal customers, are for larger amounts and
are managed on an individual basis. For these loans, the group considers on a case-by-case basks at each balance sheet date
whether there Is any objective evidence that a boan |s impaired. The criteria used to make this assessment include:

— known cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;
— contractual payments of elther principal o interest being past due for more than 90 days;
— the probability that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial realisation;

— & concesshon granted to the borrower for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty that
results in forgiveness or postponement of principal, interest or fees, where the concesskon |s not Insignificant; and

— there has been deterloration in the financial condition or outhook of the borrower such that its ability to repay ks considered
doubtiul.
For loans where objective evidence of impairment exists, impairment losses are determined considering the following factors:

— the group's aggregate exposure to the customer;
— the viability of the customer's business model and thelr capacity to trade successfully out of financial difficutties and
generate sufficient cash flow to service debt obligations;

— the amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;
— the likely dividend available on liquidation or bankruptcy;

— the extent of other creditors’ commitments ranking ahead of, or par passu with, the group and the likelihood of ather
credibors continuing to support the compary;

— the complexity of determining the aggregate amount and ranking of all creditor claims and the extent to which legal and
irsurance uncertalnties are evident;
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— the realisable value of security (or other credit mitigants) and likelihood of successful repossession;
—  the lilkety costs of obtaining and selling collateral as part of foreclosure;

—  the ablity of the borrower to obtain, and make payrments in, the currency of the loan if not denominated in local currency;
and

— when available, the secondary market price of the debt.

The determination of the realisable value of security is based on the market value at the time the impairment assessment ks
performed. The value ks not adjusted for expected future changes in market prices, though adjustments are made to reflect
local conditions such as forced sale discounts,

Impairment losses are calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows of a loan, which includes expected future
recelpts of contractual interest, at the loan's original effective interest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the
lzan's current carrying amount. The impairment allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed at least guarterly
and more regularly when circumstances require.

Collectively assessed loans and advances

Impairment Is assessed collectively to cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject
to individual assessment or for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant.

Retall lending portfolios are generally assessed for impairment collectively as the portfolios are generally large homogeneous
loan pools,
Imcurred but not yet identified impairment

Individually assessed loans for which no evidence of impalrment has been specifically (dentified on an individual basis are
grouped together according to thedr credit risk characteristics for a collective impairment assessment. These credit risk
characteristics may Inclede country of origination, type of business imiohved, type of products offered, security obtaimed or
other relevant factors. This assessment captures impakrment bosses that the group has incurred as & result of events cocurring
before the balance sheet date, which the group is not able to identify on an individual loan basts, and that can be reliably
estimated. When information becomes avallable which identifies losses on individual loans within the group, those loans are
remowed from the group and assessed individually.

The collective impalrment allowance ts determined after taking into account:

— historical loss experience in portfolios of similar credit rsk characteristics (for example, by industry sector, loan grade or
product);

— the estimated period between a loss eccurring and the loss being identifled and evidenced by the establishment of an
appropriate allowance against the individual loan; and

— management's judegment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual blevel of inherent
losses at the balance sheet date ks likely to be greater or less than that suggested by historical experience.

The periad between an impairment occurring and its ientification is estimated by local management for each identified
portfolie based on economic and market conditions, customer behaviour, portfolio management information, credit
management technigues and collection and recovery experiences in the market. As it ks assessed empirically on a perlodic
basks the estimated period may vary over time &s these factors change.

Homogeneous gnoups of loans and advances

Statistical methods are used to determine collective impalrment losses for homogenaows groups of loans not conskdered
individually significant. The methods that are used to calculate collective allowances are:

— When appropriate empirical informathon is available, the group utilises roll-rate methodology, which employs statistical
analyses of historical data and experience of delinquency and default to reliably estimate the amount of the loans that will
eventually be written off as a result of the events occurring before the balance sheet date but which the group is not able
to identify individually. Individual loans are grouped using ranges of past due days; statistical analysks is then used to
estimate the likelihood that loans in each range will progress through the varous stages of delinguency and become
irrecoverable. Additionally, individueal loans are segmented based on their credit characteristics as described above. In
applying this methodology, adjustments are made to estimate the periods of time between & loss event occurring and its
discovery, for example through a missed payment, (known as the emergence period) and the period of time between
discovery and write-off (known as the outcome period). Current economic conditions are also evaluated when calculating
the appropriate level of allowance required to cover inherent loss. In certain highly developed markets, sophisticated
midels also take into account behavioural and account management trends as revealed In, for example, bankruptcy and
rescheduling statistics.

— When the portfolko size s small or when information ks insufficient or not relizable enough to adopt a roll-rate methodology,
the group adopts & basic formulaic approach based on historical loss rate experience, or a discounted cash flow model.
Where a basic formulakc approach is undertaken, the period bebween a boss event occurring and Its identification is
explicitly estimated by local management and it is typically between six and twelve months.

The inherent loss within each portfolio ks assessed on the basts of statistical models using historical data observations, which
are updated perodically to reflect recent portfolio and economic trends. When the most recent trends arising from changes in
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economic, regulatory or behavioural conditions are not fully reflected in the statisthcal models, they are taken into account by
adjusting the impairment allowances derived from the statistical models to reflect these changes as at the balance sheat date,

Write-off of loans and advances

Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there ks no
realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after recelpt of any procesds from the realisation of
security. In circumstances where the net realisable value of any collateral has been determined and there s no reasonable
expectation of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.

Reversals of impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impalrment was recognised, the excess is written back by reducing the loan impairment allowance account
asccordingly. The write-back |5 recognised in the income statement.

Assets acquired in exchange for loans

Non-financial assets acquired in exchange for loans as part of an orderly realisation are recorded as “Assets held for sale’ and
regorted n ‘Other assets’ if those assets are classified as held for sale. The asset acquired Is recorded at the lower of its fair
walue less costs to sell and the carnging amount of the loan (net of iImpairment allowance] at the date of exchange. No
depreciation is charged in respect of assets held for sale. Write-downs of the acguired asset to fair value less cost to sell and
any reversals of previous write-downs are recognised in the income statement, in ‘Other operating income’, together with any
realised gains or losses on disposal.

Renegotiated loans

Loans subject to collective impeairment assessment whose terms have been renegotiated are no longer considered past due,
but are treated as up to date loans for measwrement purposeas once & minimum number of payments required have been
recelved. Where collectively assessed |loan portfolios include significant levels of renegotiated loans, these loans are
segregated from other parts of the loan portfolio for the purposes of collective impairment assessment, to reflect thelr risk
prafile. Loans subject to individual impalrment assessment, whose terms have been renegotiated, are subject to ongolng
review to determine whether they remain impaired. The carrying amounts of loans that have been classified as renegotiated
retaln this classification until maturity or derecognition.

A loan that Is renegotiated ks derecognised if the existing agreement ks cancelled and & new agreement made on substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified, such that the renegotiated loan is substantially a
different financial iInstrument. Any new boans that arse following derecognition events will continue to be disclosed as
renegotiated loans and are assessed for impalrment as above.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are assessed at each balance sheet date for objective evidence of impalrment. If such
evidence exists as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initlal recognition of the financial asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss ewent has an impact, which can be reliably measured, on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset an
impalrment boss is recognised.

If the avallable-for-sale financial asset is impalred, the difference between its acquisition cost [net of any principal repayments
and amortsation) and its current fair value, less any previous impairment loss recognised in the income statement, s
recognised in the Income statement.

Impalrment losses are recognised in the income staterment within ‘Loan impalrment charges and other credit risk provisions’
for debt instruments and within ‘Gains bess losses from financial investments’ for equithes. The impalrment methodologles for
avallable-for-sale financial assets are set out as follows:

— Awailable-for-sale debt securities. |n assessing objective evidence of Impairment &t the reporting date, the group considers
all available evidence, including observable data or information about events specifically relating to the securities which
may result in a shortiall in the recovery of future cash flows. Financial difficulties of the issuer, &s well as other factors such
as information about the Bswers’ bguldity, business and financial risk exposures, levels of and trends in default for similar
financlal assets, national and local economic trends and conditions, and the fair value of collateral and guarantees may be
considered indhvidually, or in combination, to determine if there is objective evidence of impakrment.

In addition, the performance of underlying collateral and the extent and depth of market price declines is relevant when
ssessing objective evidence of impairment of avadlable-for-sale ABSs. The primary indicators of potential impalrment are

considered to be adverse fair value movermnents and the disappearance of an active market for & security, while changes in
credit ratings are of secondary importance.

— Awvailable-for-sale equity securities. Objective evidence of impairment may include specific information about the ssuer &
detalled sbove, but may also include information about significant changes in technobogy, markets, econombcs or the law
that provides evidence that the cost of the equity securities may not be recovered.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the equity below its cost is also objective evidenoe of impalrment. In
assessing whether it ks significant, the decline in falr value is evaluated against the original cost of the asset at inktial
recognitien. In assessing whether it is prolonged, the decline s evaluated against the continuous perod in which the fair
walue of the asset has been below its original cost &t initial recognition.
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Once an impairment loss has been recognised, the subsequent accounting treatment for changes in the fair velue of that asset

depends on the type of asset:

— for an evallable-for-sale debt security, & subsequent decline in the fair value of the instrument |s recognised in the income
statement when there s objective evidence of impairment as a result of further decreases in the estimated futwre cash
flows of the financial asset. Where there s no further objective evidence of Impairment, the decline in the fair value of the
financial asset is recognised In other comprehensive income. If the fair value of a debt security Increases in a subsequent
period, and the incresse can be objectively related to an event ocourring after the impalrment loss was recognised In the
Income staternent, or the instrument Is no longer impaired, the impairmernt loss is reversed through the income statement;

— for an avallable-for-sale equity security, all subsequent increases in the fabr value of the instrurment are treated as a
revaluation and are recognised in other comprehensive income. impalrrment bosses recognised on the equity security are
ot reversed through the income statement. Subsequent decreases in the fair value of the avallable-for-sale equity security
are recognised in the income statement, bo the extent that further cumulative impabrment bosses have been incurred,

{iy Non-trading reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements

When securities are sobd subject to a commitment to repurchase them at & predetermined price (‘repos’), they remain on the
belance sheet and a Habllity is recorded in respect of the consideration recelved. Securithes purchased under commitments to
resell ["reverse repos’) are not recognised on the balance sheet and an &sset |s recorded in respect of the indtial consideration
paid.

Non-trading repos and reverse repos are measured at amortised cost, The difference between the sale and repurchase price
or between the purchase and resale price Is treated as interest and recognised in net interest income over the life of the
Bgreement.

(k) Operating income
Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments except for those classified as held for treding or designated at fair
value |except for debt securities issued by the group and derivatives managed in conjunction with those debt securities) are
recognised in ‘Interest income’ and ‘Interest expense’ in the income statement using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discownts estimated future cash recelpts or payments through the expected life

of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carnying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability.

Interest on impalred financial assets s recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impalrment loss.

Mon-interest income and expense

Fee income s earmed from a diverse range of services provided by the grouwp to its customers. Fee income is accounted for as
follows:

— income eamed on the executhon of a significant act is recognised as revenue when the act s completed [for example, fees
artsing from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for & third party, such as an arrangement for
the acquisition of shares or other securities);

— Income earned from the provision of services Is recognised as revenue as the services are provided (for example, esset
rmanagement, portiolio and other management advisory and service fiees); and

— Income that forms an integral part of the effective interest rabe of a financial instrument ks recognised as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate (for example, certain loan commitment fees) and recorded in Interest income’.

Net trading income cornprises all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and financial lkabidlites held
for trading, together with the related interest income, expense and dhiidends.

Net income from financial instruments designated at fair value includes:

— all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities designated at fair valuwe through profit or
boss, Including lizbilities under investment contracts;

— all gains and losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are managed in conjunction with financial assets or
liabdlities designated at fair value through profit or loss; and

— Interest income, interest expense and dividend income In respect of
- financial assets and Mabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss; and
- derivatives managed in conjunction with the above,

- except for interest arising from the group's issued debt securities and derivatives managed in conjunction with those
debt securities, which |s included in ‘Interest expense’,

Dividend income is recognised when the right to recelve payment is established. This is the ex-dividend date for listed equity
securities, and usually the date when shareholders approve the dividend for unlisted equity securities.

The accounting policies for net insurance premium income are disclosed in Note 2.
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2 HNet insurance premium income

Accounting policy

Premiurns for life insurance contracts are acoounted far when recedvable, except in unit-linked insurance contracts where premiums ane
accounted for when liabilites are established.

Reingurance premiums ane accounted for in the same accounting period as the premivms for the dinect ingurance contracts to which they
relake.

Net earned Insurance premium income

Irnsestrmenk

Nonelinked Linked |Hie contracts
Insurance® insurance with DFF? Tatal
Emi £m Em Emi
Gross insurance premium income: 220 135 1,375 1,730
Reinsurers’ share of gross premium income (113} 4} - (217}
Year ended 31 December 2015 107 131 1,375 1,613
5ross insurance premium income 263 153 1,458 1,54%
Reinsurers’ share of gross premium income {116} (£} - {130}
Yoar ended 31 Decemnber 2014 148 179 1,498 1,80

1 includes non-life inswronce.
& Discretionony porticpotion featunes.

3  Net insurance claims, benefits paid and movement in liabilities to policyholders

Accounting policy

Gras insurance claims for Bfe msurance contracts reflect the total cost of claims arising during the year, mcluding daim handling costs and
any policyholder bonuses allocated in anticipation of a bonus declaration.

Maturity daims are recognised when due for payment. Surrenders are recognised when paid or at an earlier date an which, following
natification, the policy ceases to be induded within the calculation of the related msurance liabilities. Death claims are recognised when
notified.

Reinsurance recoveries are accounted for in the same period as the related claim.

Net insurance claims, benefits paid and movement in Nobilities to policyholders

Irvestmenk

Monelinked Linked |Hfie Contracts
i © i & with DPF* Tatal
Em Em Em Em
Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 13 94 1375 1,798
Wowement in liabilites 56 108} 419 367
‘Gross claims, benefits paid and movement in labiities 185 185 1,794 2,165
Reinsurers’ share of daims, benefits and surrenders paid (72} [a) - (]
Rei * share of mo tin kabdities [32) [a) - fa1)
Reinsurers’ share of daims, benefits pakd and movement in liabilities 104} [RET] - (217}
‘Year ended 31 December 2005 &1 173 1,794 2,048
Claims, benefits and surrenders paid 140 4T 1,407 1,744
Mowemant in liabilites o ar Er. ] E4h
Gross claims, benefits paid and movement in labilities prs) pr-t 1,933 24480
Reinsurers’ share of daims, benefits and surrenders paid (&0} (3) - [L-E1]
Rei * share of mo tin kabilities [37) {a) - (C31]
Reinsurers’ share of daims, benefits paid and movement in liabilities {117} {7} - {124}
Yoar ended 31 Decenber 2014 106 XY 1,933 X316

1 Discretionovy porticipotion features
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4 Operating profit

Operating profit ks stated after the following items of iIncome, expense, gains and losses, and loan impairment charges and
other credit risk provisions:

205 2014
£m Em
Income
recognized on impaired finandal assets &0 T
Interest income o koans and adwvances to customiers 7431 7250
Interest income: on financial investrnents BEs 1049
Fes=s mammied on financial assets or kabdities not held for trading nor designated at fair value, other than fees
inchuded im effecthe inferest rate calodations on thess types of assets and Nabilites 2,552 2852
Fes=s marmied on trust and other fiducany activitles where the group holds or invests assets on behalf of its
Customers ] B&D
Expense
Interest on finandal instr excluding on financial kabilities held for trading or designated at fair
walup 2,080 2,508
—om customer accounts 1,508 1677
—om debt secunities in issue and subordinated abilibies, socluding inberest on financial labelities held for
trading or designated at fair valuss a2 434
—other 294 247
Fes=s payahile on finandal assets or liabilities not held for trading nor designated at fair valus, other than fees
inchuded im effechive interest rabe calodations on these types of assets and liabilites 456 513
Fes=s payabile on brust and other fiduoiary activities whene the growp holds or invests assets on behalf of its
oustomers 1 1
Paymenis under lease and sublease agresments 174 174
—minimum lease payments 171 172
—contingent rents and subl pay I I 3“ 2|
Galnsfjlosses)
Impairment of avikble-for-sale squity seomities [FET] {28}
Gains/{loszes) on disposal or settlement of loans and adwances 12) -
‘Gains{{losses) on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 4 &0
Losses recognised on assets held for sale =) -1}
‘Gainsf{losses) on disposal of property, plant and equip \gible assets and fi al 16 11
Lo imypairmeent changes and other credit risk provisions (421} (443}
Met impairment charge on lcans and advances [E=01] {E47)
Met impairment of avallable-for.-sale debt seourities Er ) iz
Het impairment in respect of other oredit risk prosisions [13) (5}
5 Employee compensation and benefits
Total employes compensation
2015 2014
£m Em
‘Wages and salaries 3,584 3,357
Social seourity costs 450 458
Post-employment benefits 287 ESL]
Year ended 31 December 4,331 A4 144
Average number of persons employed by the group during the year
2015 2014
Retail Banking and ¥Wealth Management 9,298 0,763
Commercial Banking 8,603 8717
Global Banking and Markets 7072 B7a5
Global Private Banking 824 33
Othar 21,453 21927
Year ended 31 December 67,290 68,038

In the last quarter of 2015, 12065 employess mcluded in ‘ather’ were transferred to the ServCo Group ($ee page 3). Their remuneration and
numbsers have been incuded in the tables abowve as they have been seconded back to group employers on an interim basis.
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Post-employment benefit plans
Accounting policy
The group ¢ a number of pengion and other past-ermployment benefit plans throughout the world. These plans indude bath defined

benedit and defined contribution plans and various other post-employment benefits such as post-employment healthcare.

Paryments to defined contribution plans and state-managed retirement benefit plans, where the growg's obligations under the plans are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are charged as an expende as the employeses render service.

The defined benefit pension coste and the present value of defined benefit obligations are calculsted at the reparting date by the ichemes’
actuaries wsing the Projected Unit Credit Method. The net change to the income staternent mainly comprises the service cost and the net
interest on the net defined benefit Babdity and i presented in operating expenses.

The past service cast, which i charged immediately to the income staternent, is the change in the present value of the defined benefic
obligation for employee service in prior periods resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction or withdrawal of, or changes to, a
defined benefit plan] ar curtailment [a sgnificnt reduction by the entity in the number of employees coversd by a plan). A settlement isa
transaction that eliminates all further begal and constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan,
other than a payment of benefits to, or on behalf of, employees that is set out in the terms of the plan and induded in the actuarial
asurnptions.

Re-meazurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gaing and losses, return on plan assets [exchuding nberest)
and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any, excluding nterest), are recognised immediabely in other comprehensive income.

Actuarial gaing and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previows actuarial assurmptions and
what has actually occurred), as well as the effects of changes in actuasial assemptions.

The defined benefit asset or liability represents the present value of defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of plan assers.
Ay net defined benefit sunplus is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions o the plan.

The cost of obligations arising from other past-employment defined benefit plans, such as defined benefit health-care plans, are accounted
For on the seme basis as defined benefit pension plans.

Income statement charge
s 014
£m £
Defined benefit pension plans
= HSBL Bank LK) Pension Schems 3) o
= Otheer pilams 2 i)
Diefined combribution pension plans 258 196
Pension plans 277 3z
Diefined banefit healtheare plans 10 T
‘Year ended 31 December 287 319
Net assets/|liabilities) recognised on the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans
Present value of
Farvalue of  defined benefit
plan assets ohilgations® Total
Em Em £m
At 31 December 2015
HSBC Bank (UK Pension Schemas 11,876 (18,508) 33m
Other defined benefit pension plans EE 555) 153}
Defined bensdit heakthcare plans = (201} (201}
Tatal 2,242 [19,168) 3,076
Total employes benefit liabilties (within “Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities") |300)
Total employes benefit assets (wathin ‘Prepayments, acorued income and other assets') 3376
At 31 December 2014
HSBE Bank (UK) Pension Scheme 22,611 (19,585} 3,088
Other defined benefit pension plans EL] {581} 1217}
Defined benefit healthcare plans - {113} {113}
Tatal 22,975 (20,245} 2,706
Total employes benefit labilties fwithin *Accrals, deferred incomie and other liabilites") {333)

Total employes benefit assets (sithin ‘Prepayments, acorued income and other assets')
1 thie defined bemefit ohiigation was colnoted bosed an the censws doto used fior e 2014 Trisnnial voivehion (2004 updieted dote from the 2011

Cumulative actuarial gains/{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income

2015 014

Em Em

Ar 1 lanuary 273 {1,385)
HSBC Bank {UKE) Pension Scheme: o LETE
Other plans 12} 52}
Healthcare plans 11 12
Taotal actuarial gains{{losses) recognised in other comprehensive income for the year = 1,638
At 31 December 352 173
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Pension planz

Defined benafit pension arrangements for bank employees who are members of defined benefit pension plans, as well as
certain other employees of the group and HSBC, are provided principally by the HSBC Bank [UK] Pensbon Scheme [the
"Scheme’), the assets of which are held in 8 separate trust fund. The Pension Scheme is adminkstered by & corporate trustes,
HSEBC Bank Pension Trust (UK) Limited (the Trustee), whose Board |s comprised of 13 Directors, four of whorm are elected by
employess and two by pensioners. The Trustee Directors of the Pension Scheme are required to act in the best interest of the
Scheme's beneficlaries.

Post-employment defined bensfit pianz’ principal actuanal assumpfions

The principal actuarial financial assumptions used to calculate the group’s obligations under its UK defined benefit pension and
post-ernployment healthcare plans at 31 December were as follows. These assumptions will also form the basis for measuring
periodic costs under the plans in the following year:

Rate of Healthoare

Discount Inflation  increase for Rateofpay  cost trend

rate ate pensions Imcrease rates

k. ] ] k] k] k3

2015 a.m 330 3.00 .70 .70
2014 am 3.0 300 E ) B.50

The group determines the discount rates to be applied to its obligations In consultation with the plans' local actuaries, on the
basis of the current average yield of high quality (AA rated or equivalent) debt instruments, with maturities conststent with
those of the defined benefit obligations,

The mortabity tables used and implied average life expectancy at 65 in the UK at 31 December were as follows:

Life: empectancy at Life expectancy at
Mortality age &5 for a male age 65 for a female
tabile mambser currenty: mambser currentiy:
Ageds  AgeddS  Aged€s Agedds
2015 Sap% 51" 236 s0 249 26.7
2014 SApS 510 238 52 %0 289
1 SeifAdministened Pension Scheme [“S4AP5'] with O Mdartality A igation 2015 i (2012 2004 improvements] ond o 125 per

et fong-tenm anneal improvement. MIMM&MMMMMWIWM_&WM

Acfuarnal assumpdion sensitivitiea
The discount rate ks sensitive to changes in market conditions arising during the reporting period. The mortality rates used are

sensitive to experience from the plan member profile. The following table shows the effect of changes in these and the other
key assumptions on the principal plan:

HESAC Bank [UK] Pension Scheme
s 2014
Emi Em

DMscownt rate
Change i pension obligation at year end from a #5hps increase |73s) {aa1)
‘Changs in pension obligation at year end from a 25bps decrease Tas arr
Change in following year pension cost from a 25bps increase 137 {45}
Change in following year pension cost from a 28hps decrease EL 47
Rate of inflation
Change in pension obligation at year end from a 2Shps increase 500 [ ]
‘Changs in pension obligation at year end from a 256ps decrease: |571) {Fea)
Changs in following year pension cost from a 25bps increase 19 F-}
Change in following year pension cost from a 25hps decrease 22} {31}
Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred persions
Change im pension obligation at year end from 2 2Shps increase BAT Thx
Changs in pension obligation at year end from a 25hps decrease {651} {F3)
Changs in following year pension cost from a 25bps increase 7 -
Change in following year pension cost from a 25bps decrease 125) {¥9)
Rate of pay increase:
‘Changs in pension obligation at year end from a 25bps increase 51 152
Change in pension obligation at year end from a 25hps decrease (51} {145)
Change in following year pension cost from a 25bps increase 2 ]
Change in following year pension cost from a 25bps decrease 12) 7y
Mortality
‘Changs in pension obligation from each additional year of longevity assumed 448 4493
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Defined benefit pension plans
Net asset/{lability) under defined benefit pension plans
Present value of defined
Falr value of plan assets benefit obligath Net benefit asset/|llablity)
HE8C Bank HEBC Bank HSEC Bank
K] Pension Other  |UK) Pension Other (LK) Pension Other
Scheme plans Sarhemmiz plans Srheme plans
£m Em £m Em £m £m
At 1 Jarmary 2015 22511 EL [19,555) (=81} 3,056 (217)
Current service cast - - 79 f1£) 179) f18)
Past service cost and {gains)y losses from setdements = = {353 1 {35} i
Service cost = = [i14) (17} {114) [17)
Het imterest {income)fcost on the net defined benefit labibty 228 & [711) 10} 117 [4)
Re—measurement effects recognised in other comprehenshs
= refurn on plan assets (ecluding interest income) [996) 4 = = |996) 4
- actuanal gainsfi{losses) - - 1,068 1] 1,068 B}
= othwer changes - -
Exchange differences - 13) - 17 - 14
Tramsfer to anather HSBC scheme® [160) - 160 - - _
Comtribartions by the group 241 19 - - 241 19
e A+ [ 1
spedal
Contributions by employees 11 = 11y 1} = [1)
Benefits paid [638) (24) 638 33 15
Administrative costs paid by the plan 21) = 21 = = =
At 31 December 2015 X187 365 [18,508) (554} 3,370 (253}
Present vabue of defined benedit obligation relating to :
actives - - e (341) - -
deforreds - - s (=1} - -
pensioness - - (s (127) - -

1 A trovesfer was made to the Serwlo section [page 3} in respect of the pansion bemefits artsing from futere sofory lncrease obowe O for employees
transferred to SenvCo during the yeor.

Present value of defined
Fair value of plan assets benefit obligations Nt benefit asset,{iabdity}
H5EC Bank HEBL Bank HEBL Bank
{LIK] Pension Other  {UK] Pension Other UK} Fension Other
Scheme: plans Scheme plans Schems plans
£m Em £m Em £m £m
A 1 January 2014 19,156 E- {17.922) {547} 1,234 {293}
Current service cost - - [128) (14} (138) 18}
Past service cost and {gains) losses from settements - - (1E) 1 18] 1
Service cost - - [154) (17} (154) [17)
Het imterest {income)fcost on the net defined benefit labilkty 842 11 [784) (16} 52 L]
Re—measurement effects recognised in other comprehenshs
Income 2954 10 (1,278} (&2} 1678 (52}
= refurn on plan assets (ecluding interest income) 2,954 1 - - 2,958 i
= actuanal losses - - {1,40%) (55§ 11,408} (55)
- other changes - 132 17 13 L]
Exchange differences - {24) - 44 - 25
Contributions by the group 240 14 - - 240 14
o -] I -1 -
- spedal i - = - -a) -
Contributions by employess 23 - 23y (7} - (7}
Benefits paid (5800 (1} 580 19 - 18
Administrative costs paid by the plan [24) - 4 - -
A 31 December 2014 22611 354 {149,555) {581} 3058 {217}
Present value of defined benedit obligation relating to :
ackhves [6.276) {374}
deferreds [5.645) (73}
pensianers [7.634) (134}
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Benefits expected to be pabd from the HSBC UK Pensbon Scheme to retirees over each of the next five years and in aggregate
for the five years thereafter, are as follows:

2016 Hazr W18 2019 020 2021-2025
£m £m £m £m £Em Em
HSBC Bank [UE) Pension Scheme 679 ol T4 746 210 4312
Fair value of plan assets by asset closses
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Mo quoted Mo quahed
Ouoted market Cuoted market
market price jprice in market price price in
Fair I acthee acthee Thereaf Fair in active active Thereof
walue et market HSaL value markoet market HEBl
Em £m Em £m £m £m Em £m
HSBC Bank [UK] Pension Schems
Fair vahse of plan assets 21,576 212,611
Equities 3,866 3,368 S00 - 3,530 280 06 -
Bonds 15318 15,318 - - 14,778 14,778 - -
Denkatives 582 - a2 EEL] &78 a3 B45 597
Other 2,010 1,008 1,002 - 3427 23m 1,048 -

The actual return on plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 was a negative return £158 million [2014: positive
return of £3,817 million). The group expects to make £216 milllon of normal contributions to defined benefit penshon plans
during 2016.

Triennial waluation

UK regulation requires that pension schemes be valued formally every three years and a funding plan agreed between the
trustes and scheme sponsor. The most recent triennlal actuarial valuation of the UK Scheme performed by the Scheme Actuary
on behalf of the Trustee has been carried out as at 31 December 2011, At that date, the market value of the Scheme's assets
was £17.2 billlon. The market walue of the plan represented 100 per cent of the amount expected to be required, on the basis
of the assurnptions adopted, to provide the benefits accrued to members after allowing for expected future increases in
earnings, and resulted in neither surples nor deficit. The method adopted for this valuathon was the projected unit method.

As part of the 31 December 2011 valuation, calculations were also carried out &s to the amount of assets that might be needed
to meet the liabilities if the Scheme was discontinued and the members’ benefits bought out with an Insurance company
[elthough in practice this may not be possible for a plan of this size) or the Trustee continued to run the plan without the
support of the bank. The amount required under this approach was estimated to be £26.2 billion as at 31 December 2011. In
estimating the solvency position for this purpose, 8 more prudent assurmption about future mortality was made than for the
assessment of the ongoing.

The 31 Decembeer 2014 valuation has been agreed in principle, and & expected to be finalised by its statutory deadline of 31 March
2016, The final agreement should result in a surplus of circa £500 million.
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Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate emolumerits of the Directors of the bank, computed in accordance with the Compandes Act 2006 as amended by
statutory instrument 2008 No.410, were:

ais mi4

E000 i
Foes' 1,807 1393
Salaries and other emcluments® 4,095 3 A58
Annual incentives® 2009 1,053
Long term incenhves! 1,384 14872
Year ended 31 December B0 8284

1 Fees inclirded fees paid to non—sxscutive directors.

Z Solaries and other emolunents incivde Ficed Poy Allowances.

I Dizcretiomary annual incentives for directors are hased on 0 combination of individun! and corpanote performance ond are determingd by the
Rerumeration Committes af the bank s parent compony, HEEC Holdings ple. incentive awards made to execwtive directors are delivered in
the form af cosh and HEBC Holdings plc shares. The totol amount shown of £2,008.574 i comprised of £954, 464 (200 4; £525,420) in cash
ond £1,055 110 {201 4:£526 420) in Restrictad Shaves, which ix the vpfrant portion af the snnusl incantive grartad in respact of parformonce
oo 2015, | The total cbove ala includes deferred owards of £544, 134 aworded to one director wiva retired as o dirsctar duning 2015 and
which 5 considered to be artributable to his quolifang services in 2005,

4 The eenownt shown ks comprised of £483 838 in deferred cosh, £472, 781 in deferred Restricted Shoves, and £402,073 in shares under the
Growg Perfarmance Shave Pign ["GPEF). These amounts refate to the portian of the owaerds that wil! vest following the substantial
completian of the westing conditian attached to thede awards dn 2015, Far 2014, the amawnts include £789,529 in deférred cath owards,
E£788 E29 in deferred Restricted Shares awards, and £292 455 awarded under the GPAP and other long-term deferrad owords under the HSBC
Share Plan 2011, The total vesting period of deferrad cosh and share owards i no kess than three years, with 23% of the oward wvesting on
sach of the first and second anniversaries af the date of the award and the balance vesting an the thied annvversory of the date of the awand,
The deferred shove awands are subject to g six manth retention period vpon vesting. GPSF owards ore suhiect to @ five pear vesting period
ond o retention réquirement witil cessotion of employment upon vesting.  Details af the Plans are contoined witivn tie Directors”
Rerumeration Repart of WEBC Haoldings ple. The cast of any owords subject b senvice conditions under the HEBC Shave Pion 2011 are
re fsad through an anawal chorge based on the foir volue of the awards, oppartionsd over the period of service fo wivdh the oward

refates.
One Director exercised share options over HSBC Holdings plc ordinary shares during the year.

Awards were made to three Directors under long—term Incentive plans In respect of qualifying services rendered in 2015
[2014: four Directors). During 2015, four Directors recetved shares in respect of awards under long term incentive plans that
vested during the year (20014: fowr Directors).

Retirement benefits are accruing to two Directors under money purchase schemeas in respect of Directors’ qualifying services.
Contributions of £42,150 were made during the year to money purchase arrangements in respect of Directors’ gualifying
services (2014: £48 T15).

In addition, there were paymerits under retirement benefit agreements with former Directors of £801,187 (2014: £805,005),
Inchuding payments in respect of unfunded pension obligations to former Directors of £679,551 (2014: £684,104). The
provision a5 at 31 December 2015 in respect of unfunded pension obligations to former Directors amounted to £10,099,902
[2014: £10,849,954).

Of these aggregate figures, the following amounts are attributable to the highest pakd Director:

2015 14
£000 000
Fees = -
Salaries and other emoluments 1,185 1,340
Annual incenties* s00 EEL]
Long term incentives” 501 &2
Year ended 31 December 2 I86 2281
1 Awords made fa the highest poid Divector are delivarsd bn the form af cash dand HEBE Haldings ple shares. The shenwn b5 camprised af

E300,052 (2014 £168, 416) in cosh, £300,052 [X14: £169.416) in Restricted Shores.

Z The omawnt shown & comprised of £166, 909 in deferred cash, £165, 182 in deferred Restricted Shares and £1 70, 758 in shores under the
GFEF. These amownts rélate to o portion of the owaerds that wil! vest following the substantial completion of the vesting condition attoched
b these awds in X5, For 2014, the amoursts incivde £254,124 in deferred cath mwards, £254,124 in deferred Restricted Shaves mwards,
ond £54,120 aworded under other long-ténm deferred awords under the HSBC Shave Plon 2011, The tote! westing peviad of deferred cosh
nd shove awards i no less than three years, with 33% of the award vesting on sach of the first ond second anmiversaries of the date of the
uard and e bolance westing on the third onmiversory of the date of the oward. The share owords are subjiect to g siv month retention
periad upan vesting. GPAP awards are subyjact to o five yeor westing peniad and & retention requirernent unatil ¢ ian af employmant uoon
vesting.

The highest pald Director received shares in respect of qualifying services under & long term incentive scheme.

Pension contributions of £35.838 were made by the bank in respect of services by the highest pakd Director during the year.
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6 Share-based payments

Accounting policy

The group enters into both equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payment arrangements with its employees 3 compensation for
services provided by employees. The cost of share-based payment arrangements with emgployees is measured by reference to the fair valwes
of equity instruments on the date they are granted and recognized a8 an expente on a straight-Fre basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding credit to 'Retained Earnings’.

For cazhesettied share based payment arrangements, the sendoes scquired and the liablity incurred are measured at the fair value of the
liabiity and recognised as the ermployees render services. Until setthement, the fair value of the lab@ty is re-measured over the vesting
period with a corresponding credit to ‘Retained samings’.

Fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation models. Vesting conditions include service conditions and performance conditions;
any ather features of the arangement are non-vesting conditions. Market performance conditions and non-vesting conditions are taken
into accownt when estimating the fair value of the award at the date of the award. ¥Yesting conditions, other than marfost performanoe
conditions, are not taken nto sccownt in the initial estirate of the fair value at the grant date. They are taken into acoount by adjusting the
number of equity instruments induded in the measwrement of the transaction

A cancellation that oocurs during the vesting period is treated a3 an acceleration of vesting and recognized immediately for the armount that
would otherwise have been recognised for Services over the vesting period.

HESBC Haldings ple is the grantor of it equity instrument for all share awards and share options acrods the group. The credit to "Retained
earnings' ower the vesting period on expensing an award regresents the effective capital contribution from HS8C Holdings ple. To the extent
the group will be, or has been, required o fund a share-based payment arrangement, this capital contribution is reduced and the fair walee
of shares expected bo be released to employess is recorded within 'Other liablities’

Income statement charge
The share-based payment income statement charge (s recognised In wages and salarbes (Mote 5) as follows:
2015 4
£m £m
Restricted share awards 188 143
Sawings-related and other share option plans 4 15
Year ended 31 December 212 162
HSBC Share Awards
Award Palicy Purpose
Restricted share =  An amsesment of performance over the relevant period ending on 31 =  Todriwe and reward pesformance
arwards Depcember is used to debermine the amount of the award to be granted. consistent with strategy and align to
fincluding annual o pufared awards generally requine employees to rernain in employrment shareholder interests.
incenthee awards  guer phe vesting period and are not subject to performance conditions after = Deferral provides an incentive fora
defivered in thee grant date. lemger-term commitment and the
ﬂ::l"mpﬁp s Deferred share awards generally vest over a period of thres years and GRgp  ability to apply malus.
v ros west after five pears.
®  Vested shares may be subject boa retention requirerment [restriction) post-
vesting. GPSP swards are retained untl cesiation of ermployrnent.
»  fwards granted from 2010 ormwards are subject toa malus provision prior to
westing.
®  Awards grarted to Material Risk Takers from 2015 onwards are subject i
clawback post westing.
International = The plan was firét introduced in Hong Kong in 2013 and now includes =  Toalign the interest of employees with
Emplayes Share ermployess in other participating countries. thee creation of shareholder value.
Purchase Plan

= Shares are purchased in the market eadh guarter up to a madmum value of

("Sharehdatch™] £750, ar the squivalent in bacal currency.

= Matching awards ane addesd at a ratio of one free share for every three
purchased.

= Matching awards west subject bo continued employment and the retention
of purchased shares for three years beyond the start of the plan year.
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Movement on H5BC share owards
Restricted thare awands

015 014"
MNurnber Humber
DO [iilic
Outstanding at 1 January 38,262 38,148
Additions during the year 15372 g a57
Released in the year {28,533) {27,375
Forfeited in the pear (728) [1,368)
Outstanding at 31 December 34,273 I8 262
‘Weighted average fair value of swards granted [£) &A7 619

1 Rewised to oniy present shore-hosed owords. Sestrichsd owards prewious(y reported included deferned performance owards poyaie bn cosh,

HSBC Share Option Plans

Main plans Palicy Purpese

Savings-related  »  Twes plans: the UK Plan and the International Plan. The kst grant of options = To align the mterests of all employees
share option under the International Plan was in 2012, with the creation of shareholder value.
plans

= From 2014, eligible employess can save ug to £500 per mankh, with the
choice to use the savings to acquire shares.

s  Exerdiable within six months following either the thind or fifth anniversaries
of the commencement of a three-year or five-year contract, respectively.

s  The exercise price is set at a 30% | 2014; 2088) ditcount to the market valus
immediately preceding the date of invitation.

Calculation of fair values

The fabr values of share options are calculated wsing a Black-Scholes model. The fair value of & share award k5 based on the
share price at the date of the grant

Movement on HSBC share oplion plans

option plans share option plan
Humber WAER® Number WAER®
(000s) £ (B00s) £

2015
Outstanding at 1 lanuary 51,319 4.98 4,837 .39
Granted during the year 45,253 4.08 - -
Exercised during the year {14, 208) 4.50 = =
Expared francelied during the year (18,511} 5.18 (4,837) 1.8
Outstanding at 31 December 63,261 4,35 = =
‘Weighted average remaining contractual life fpearsh 348

Savings-related shane HSBC Holdings Group

—  ootionplans
Mumbser WAEP Number WAEP
(D00s) £ (000s) £

214
Dhutstanding at 1 lanuary 53,308 421 25,989 123
‘Granted during the year 26,396 519 - -
Exercised during the year {24, 418) 351 - -
Tramsferred during the year 1337} 4.4r {354} 128
Expired during the year [EXr=] 4.590 (20,773} 722
DOutstanding at 31 December 51,215 4,58 4,837 7.29
‘Weighted average remaining contractual life fypears) 244

1 Weighted oweroge exevcise price
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T  Auditors’ remuneration

2015 2014
£m Em

Mhﬁﬁpﬂphhb-phsmq:hml 9.6 1]
Husdit fees payable by other HSBC Growp companies” 28 -
Other audit fees payabile s (]
Year ended 31 December 129 15
The following fees were payable by the group to the group's principsl suditor, Pwc:

2015 014

£m Em

Ausdit fees for HSBE Bank pic's statutory audit™ 4.3 17
= fees relating to curment year 43 14
—fees relating to prior year - 0.3
Fiesss fior other sendoes prowided to the group 10.6 24
—audit of the growp's subsidiaries’ 53 11
—audit-related assurance services” x2 a0
Tax services
— tauation compliance services a1 0.1
— taxartion advisory services a1 a1
All ather services
Othar assurance series :K ] 0.4
Other non-audit serdioes 2.8 4.7
Total fees payable 1449 111

1 Pwi beoome the growg's principel ouditor in 2018, KPWMG wos the principal cuditor through 014

& Audit fees in 2015 include an afocation of amowats paid by other HSBC Group companies for which the oudit work undertoken benefits the growp.

1 Fers poyoble to Pwl (2014 KPAMG Audit Pic) for the stotutony owdit of the consolidated financim! statements of the group ond the separote fimancio!
stotements af the HSAC Bank phe. They swciude amounts payabie for the stotitory vt of the bankk’s subsiciories which bove been included in Fees
poyoble to Pw [M0E4: KPMG] for other sevvices prowided to the group’.

4 Including fiees payable o Pl [7014: KPMG) for the statutary audit of the bank’s subsidiaries.

5 including services for mssurance and other senaces Hhat reiote fo shetwtony and' reguigtony filings, fecluding comjfor? fetters and intenim reviews.

Fees payable to Pwl for non—audit services for HSBC Bank plc are not disclosed separately because such fees are disclosed on

& consolidated basis for the group.
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8 Tax

Accounting policy

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred ta Income tax is recognised in the income staternent except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensine inoome or directly in eguity, in which Gse it is recognised in the same statement in whid the
related itern appears.

Current tax is the tan expected to be payable on the tacable profit for the pear, calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date, and any adjustrment to tax payable in respect of prewious years. Current tax asets and liabilities are offset when
the group intends to settle om a net basis and the legal right o offset exists,

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of adsets and liabilities in the balance sheet and the
amourits attributed to swch assets and liabfities for tax purposes, Deferred tax liabdites are generally recognised for all tacable temparany
differences and deferred tax asseets ane recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible termporary differences cn be utlised.

Deferred tax is calculated wsing the tix rates expected to apply in the pericds in which the assets will be realised or the labilities settled,
baded on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax asiets and liabilities are offset when
they arise in the same tax reporting group and relate to mcome times levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group has a legal
right to offset.

Deferred tax relating bo actuarial gains and losses on past-employment benefits is recognised in other comprehensive income. Deferred tax
relating to share-based payment transactions is recognised directly in equity to the extent that the amount of the estimated futwre tax
deduction exceeds the amount of the related comiulative remuneration expense. Deferred tax relating to fair value re-mieasurements of
available-for-sabe investments and cash flow hedging instruments is credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recogniged in the income staternent when the deferred fair value gain or logs is recognised in the income statement.

015 14

Em £m

Curent tax 795 a8
— for this year 203 L1
— adustment in respect of prior years 18 9
Deferned tax 202 [34)
— ongination and reversal of temporany differences 123 12y
— effect of changes in tax rates B2 {13)
— adustment in respect of prior years 13 {14
Total tax expense for the year ended 31 Decembser a7 Shd

The UK corporation tex rate applying to HSBC Bank plc and its subsidiaries was 20.25 per cent {2014: 21.5 per cent). Other
overseas subsidiaries and overseas branches prowided for taxation at the appropriate rates in the countries in which they
operate.

The maln rate of corporation tax in the UK was reduced from 21% to 20% on 1 April 2015 and will be gradually reduced to 18%
by 1 April 2020. From 1 lanuary 2016, there will also be an £% supplementary surcharge on bank profits, therefore the group’s
effective tax rate ks expected to increase going forward.

The tax charged to the income statement differs from the tax expense which would apply if all profits had been taxed at the

UK corporation tax rate as follows:

2015 2014

Em * £m *
Tamation at UK carporation tax rate of 20.25% (014: 21.5%) [=ird .25 430 s
Effect of taxing overseas profit at different rates 104 as 15 LI} ]
Hom-tamble income and gains subject o tax at a lower rate (-1} 0.5 (30} (1.5)
Deferred tax assets writben off n 1.0 - -
Deferred tax assets previously not recognised (11} [0.4) 43} (2.2
Permanent disallowables 06 (] 198 101
Changes in tax rates -+ 28 13 or
Local taxes and cwverseas withhalding tamms =4 1.8 30 15
Other ibems 32) [1.09 4=} (2.5)
Adjustment in respect of prior years (11} [0.4) 10 0.5
Taotal tax charged,{oredited) to the income statement a7 33.6 564 8.9

The Growp's profits are taxed at different rates depending on the country in which the profits arise. The key applicable tax
rates include UK [20%) and France [38%). If the Group's profits were taxed at the statutory rates of the countries in which the
profits arise then the tax rate for the year would have been 23 75% (2014: 22.3%). The effective tax rate for the year was
33.6% (2014: 28.9%). The effective tax rate has increased since 2014 primarily due to the introduction of the 8% surcharge on
UE banking profits, which increased the value of deferred tax liabilities, and Increased profits in France, which had a statutory
tex rate of 38%.

Accounting for taxes involves some estimation because the tax law is uncertain and the application requires a degree of
judgement, which authorities may dispube. Liabilities are recognised based on best estimates of the probable cutcome, taking
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Into account external advice where appropriate. 'We do not expect significant liabilithes to arise in excess of the amounts
provided. The current tax asset includes an estimate of tax recoverable from HMRC with regards to past dividends recelved
from EU resident companies. The ultimate resolution of this matter involves litigation for which the outcome ks uncertain and
Is unlikely to be resolved in the short term.

Movement of net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) before offsetting balances within countries

The group
Loan Property, fxailables Goodwill
Rethrement  Impairment plant and for=sale and
bemefits  allowances  equipment  Investments  intangibles Orthert Total
Emi Em Emi Em £m Em Em
Astets = 7 269 = L) 104 550
Liabillities [s42) - - [114) 114) [ (728
A 1 lanuary [S42) k] 269 (114} a5 36 (158}
Incomes statement [x23) (11} &7 1 S | 1] (202}
Other comprehensive inoome {12p = = = = 33 i}
Equity = = = = = 2 F
Fareign exchange and ather 8y (L] f20) 2 1 (27 [28)
At 31 Decembaer [T81) &0 316 [85) 117 (23) (396}
Assets = &2 31e = 121 178 e53
Liabillities 781 12 - ls) [ f201) {L073)
2014
Assets - -] 28 - mn ab E41
Liabilftes [186) - i f92) 114) i) [343)
Ak 1 lanuary [158) -] 289 [=2) £y 42 198
Incomes statement [0y (&} (15) - 14 71 EH
Other comprehensive inoome [Ex2) = = (r=}} = (7ay [Cr=1]
Equity - - - - - o ()
Farelgn exschange and other (4} (4} (L] ? 14 E 14
At 31 December [242) T8 269 {114} 25 36 {158}
Assets = T4 269 = - 104 550
Lisbillities [842) - - {114) 114) 68y {78
1 Oeher defevred tox essets and Oabiithes redote fo wnused tor kosses, share bosed poyments and cosh flow hedges.
The bank
Property, Goodwill
Retirement phant and and
benefits  equipment  intangibies Other Towl
Em Em £m Em
Assets - 163 ] a5 306
Liabilites i614) - - i32) (548}
Ar 1 lanuary [B14) 163 ] 13 (340}
Incomes statenmsent [223) &0 EL:] [§1 (134}
Other comprehensive income 11} - - [H] [13)
Equity - - - 2 2
Farelgn exchange and other - - - [£1] iy
At 31 Decembser [(84g) x23 128 11 (426}
Assets - xz3 128 &4 415
Liabilities i8ag) - - is3) {801
24
Asgets - 176 a7 ) 333
Liabilities (248) = - {1p {247}
Ar 1 lanuary [248) 176 a7 -] L]
Incomes statemsnt (309 13} 11 (19% (&1}
Other comprehensive income: (338) - - (27 {385)
Equity - - - 9 15}
Farelgn exchange and ather - - = [11] (1}
Ak 31 Decemiber (B14) 163 £ 13 340}
Assets - 163 ] 45 308
Liabilites (B14) - - 32y |4}
1 Other deferred tox essets and Babilites relote fo doan impaok . s, o tow Aoz ses, share based poymends end cosh fow hedges.
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After netting off balances within countries, the balances as disclosed in the accounts are 83 follows:

Thiz group The bank
2008 214 018 Hiid
Em Em Em Em
Deferred tax assets 110 178 T 5
Dieferred tax labilities (508} el [a33) {345}
328} |1E8} (426} {240}

The amount of temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the
group balance sheet was £476 milon (2014: £1 088 milion). These amounts include unused tax losses and tax credits arising
in the US branch of £472 million [2014: £1,036 million).

The amount of temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits for which no deferred tax asset ts recognised in the
bank balance sheet was £E473 million (2014: £1.036 millon). These amounts include unused tax losses and tax credits arising
In the US branch of £472 million [2014: £1,036 million).

The unrecognised losses in group and bank expire after 10 years.
There are no unrecognised deferred tax liabilithes arising from the Group's investments in subshdiaries and branches.

9 Dividends
Dividends to shareholders of the parent company were &s follows:
2015 24
Dividends dedared on ordinary shanes £ per share £m £ per share £m
Second intenim divid end in respect of the previous year 040 ENL o &30
First intenim dividend in respect of the osment year 0.7 540 075 &S00
1.07 BSS 154 1,330
2015 2014
Dividends on preference shares dassified as equity £ per share Emi £ par share £mi
Dividend on HSBC Bank plc non-curmulative
third dollar preference shares 1.3 43 1.16 41
133 43 118 41

A second interim dividend for 2015 of £272 millkon to shareholders of the parent company was declared by the Directors after
31 December 2015 (Mote 39). The total dividend declared on ordinary shares in respect of 2015 was £812 milllon (2014: £915
il lben).

Other equity instruments
015 014
Total coupons on capltal securtties dassified as equity First call date Em £m
Undated Subordinated additicnal Tier 1 instruments
£1,05Em Dec 2019 &2 =
£1,100m Dec 2024 (] =
126 =
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10 Segment analysis

Accounting policy

Measurement of segmental assets, liabilities, Income and expenses is in sccordance with the group’s accounting policies.
Segmental iIncome and expenses include transfers between segments and these transfers are conducted on arm’s length
terms and conditions. Shared costs are Included in segments on the basis of the actual recharges made.

The types of products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenue are discussed in the ‘Report of
the Directors: Operating and Financial Review — Products and Services’.

Profit/{loss) for the year
‘¥ear ended 31 December 2015

Inter-
REWM ona GEEM GFa Other  sepment Total
Emi £m Emi Em Em Emi Em
et interest income 3,352 2245 1,174 33 (63) 123) 818
Het few income 1,081 1,101 5e3 107 1 - 2,863
Het trading income 71 19 24m 13 55 13 2,951
Other income L] F1] 143 15 314 (L] 438
Met operating incomet 2,553 3388 3,350 358 307 =5~ 1220
Loan impairment charges and ather credit nsk provisions 1171} [311) 1] [1a) 1 - (481
Net operating income 4,382 3077 4,380 158 308 [E3] 12,389
Emplayes compensation and benefits fss) (624 [L35) 93 [1484) - (aam)
‘General and administrative expenses (2.421) [822) [2.508] 113y 1,206 56 |4,566)
Beprecation and impairment of property, plant and
equipment i6) i10) i) W ey - e
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets (=5} i24) &3] - 157) - (253)
Tatal operating expenses (3807)  (Lams)  j392)  (z13) _ [s79) B (s420)
Operating profit BES 1,597 633 145 [2m) - 2,969
Share of profit in associates and joint venbures 1 - 1 - - - 2z
Profit before tax BES 1,597 634 145 [271) = 2,971
Cost efficlency ratio T1.15% 43.68% 25 GEN 57.88% T3.19%
1 Netopermting fecome before ban impalrment chorges and other credit iisic provisians, slso refierred to oS revenue.
Year ended 21 December 2004
Inter-
REAWM CMEB GHAM GPH Other  segment Total
Em £m £m Em £m £m Em
et interest income 1,158 1,195 1,180 o3 (42) ES] BEXM
Het few income 1,356 1,153 E43 112 2 - 1,268
Het trading income {144} 21 1,837 11 24 S 1,508
Other income {157} 65 19 [} 340 B3] 52
Hiet operating income’ 4,308 3434 3,673 24 324 (83 11,586
Loan impairmant charges and other credit risk provsions {1E2) [08) 16 4 1 - {445)
Net operating income: 4,046 3126 3,855 ] 325 183) 11,437
Emplayes compensation and benefits {1020} (s64) (1070 [ (139 - aas)
‘General and administrative expenses {2, 730) 240y (2,582) {114} 1,472 -] 4,811}
Deprecation and impairment of praperty, plant and
equinment 18} ) 1) SV ) - {221
Amertisation and impairment of intangible assets {78} Z2) (E1) - (50) - {211}
Tatal operating sxpenses (3534} (1535) (.78 {213} [£73) £ {5457}
Operating profit 13 1,581 {an) 118 [+] - 1,980
Share of profit in assoclates and joint ventures 1 1 1 - - - 3
Profit before tax 13 1,553 {15) 115 52 - 1,953
Cost effickncy ratio 91.11% A4T0% 100.98% BE.T4% 19.80%
1 Wetoperoting income before doan impoérment chorges ond ofher credit risk prowisions, aiso ref  boras
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Cther information about the profit!(loss) for the year

Invtizrs
REWM oaa GBEM GPB Other  segment Total
£m £m Em £m £m Em £m
Year ended 31 December 2005
Hiet operating incomae: 8382 3077 4,380 158 308 (s€] 12388
o e B~ e ™
— inter-segment 206 137 {730} 34 523 (L] =
Year ended 31 December 2014
Net operating income: 4,046 3128 3,885 128 328 53] 11,437
— external | 3,,?:4|I 3,204 || 4,401 ” :Jm” pen]” - | 11,4!?|
— inter-segment 132 || (168) [Eie] 20 615 (&3} -
Balance sheet information
Inter=
REWSM cMB GEEM GPFB Other sepment Total
Em £mi Em £m £m Em £m
Year ended 31 December 2005
Loans and advances to cusstomsers (net) 105,358 74633 70,822 74T 14 - 258508
Investment im assocates and jaint ventuns 1 18 an - - - &3
Taotal assets 150,270 BO,919 543,803 15,044 10,484 [72,579] 727541
Customer accounts 135,234 HG 586 55,048 12,543 Erd ) - 332,830
Total liabilities 140,573 73,096 528,784 14,247 5,695 [72,579] 689,816
Year ended 31 December 2014
Loans and advances to oustomers (net) 105,929 E8,225 75,044 7811 243 - 257242
Investment Im assodates and joint ventune 3 | 18 0 - - - &9
Total assets 153,325 14996 &048,140 15,508 14,811 [69.888] 797289
Customer accownts 129,241 B7,148 116,558 12,778 182 - 346,507
Taotal liabilites 143,616 £7,141 293,122 15207 11,493 [63.888] 780,591
Information by country
31 December 2005 31 ecember 2004
External net Extemnal net
Opsrating Naon-cunment Operating Won-current
income™' assets” income™" assets’
Em Emi Em Em
United Kingdom 9,618 4,310 BE1T 4,760
France 1,768 5786 1532 B, 048
Genmany 47 163 509 17
Turkey 457 57 559 T
Other countries: 540 04 L] 209
Tatal 12,870 10,530 11,888 11,387
1 Netoperoting income 5 attributed o countries on the basis of the customers' docotion.
& Won-currevt ossets consist of properfy, plont ond epui gondwill, otber nmtongible essefs and oerhoin otber ossets evpected fo be recoversd more

than fwelve manths ajfter the reparting peniod.
1 Netoperoting income before loan impoérment chovges ond other credit risk prowisions, oiso refermed foas rewemue.
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11 Trading assets

Accounting policy

Financial assets are clagsified as held for trading if they hawe been acquired prindpally for the punpose: of sellng in the near term, or form
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidenoe of a recent pattern of short-
term profit-taking. They are recognised on trade date, when the group enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are
normally derecognised when sobd. They are inftially measured at fair value, with transaction costs @ken to the income stabement.
Subseguent changes in their fair values are recognised in the income statement in *Net rading income’.

Trading assets
The group The bamk
205 I 2015 2014
Emi Emi £Em Emi
Trading assets:
=which may be repledged or resold by counterparbies 14,957 4,18F 5,578 4,555
—niot subject o repledge or resale by counterparties 95,628 1405, 548 B4 BEs BA I
110,585 130,137 20,244 47,757
Treasury and other eligible bils 875 E53 54 154
Diebt secunities 37 36T 49,595 21,935 25,150
Equity secunties 40,583 44247 38848 41,259
Loans and advances to banks 14,248 15,640 13,817 13,039
Loans and advances to ouestomers 17,712 159,555 15,750 17,518
110,585 130,137 0,244 47,757

1 Indhuded within the above figures for the group are debt securities isswed by banks and other financial nstitutions of £8, 211 million {2014:
£11, 278 million), of which £557 million [2004: £1,857 million) are guarartesd by various govermments.

# Incdluded within the above figures for the bank are debt securities Bsued by banks and other financial institutions of £5,56F milon [2014:
£7, 228 million], of which nil [2004: nd] are guarantessd by govermments.

12 Fair values of financial instruments carried at fair value

Accounting policy

All financial instrurnents ane recognied initially at fair value. Fair valee is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liakifty in an erderly transaction beteeen market participants at the measurernent date. The fair value of a finandal instrument on initial
recognition is generally its transsction price (that &, the fair value of the consideration given or received]. However, sometimes the fair
walue will be based on other observable current market transsctions in the same ingtrument, without madification or repackaging, or on a
valuation technigue whose variables indude only data from obsenable marfets, such as interest rate yield curves, option volatilities and
currency rates. 'When such evidence exists, the group recognises a trading gain or kot at inception {'day 1 gain or lods'], being the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value. When significant unobserable parameters are used, the entire day 1 gain or
loas is deferred and is recognised in the income staterment over the life of the transaction wntil the transaction matures or is dosed ouwt, the
valustion inputs become obsenable or the gn:l.lp enters inbo an offtetting transsction.

The fair value of financial ingtr i is g ed on an individual basis. However, in cases whers the group manages a group of
finandal assets and liabdities according toe it net rnllh:t or credit risk expasure, the fair value of the grows of finandial instruments is
measured an 3 net basis but the underlying financial assets and liabdities separately in the financial statements, unbess they satisfy the IFRS
offsetting oriteria as described in Mote 300

Crifical accounting esfimates and judgements

Valuation of financial instruments

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an actively traded principal market. The fair values of financial instruments that are
quoted in acthve markets are baged on bid prices for assets held and offer prices for liabilites issued. When a financial instrurnent has a
quoted price in an active market, the fair value of the total holding of the financial instrument i caloulated as the product of the nember of
units and quoted price. The judgement as bo whether a market is active may include, but i$ not restricted to, consideration of factors such as
the magnitude and frequency of trading activity, the avalability of prices and the size of bid/offer spreads. The bid/offer spread represents
the difference in prices at which a market participant would be willing to buy compared with the price at which they would be willing to sell
Waluation technigues may incorporate assumptions about factors that other market participants would wse in their valuations, ncheding:

= the likelihood and expected timing of future cash flows on the instrument. Judgement may be reguired to assess the counterparty’s
ahility to service the instrumant in accordance with its contractual terms. Future cash flows may be sengithve to changes in market rates;
= selecting an appropriate discount rate for the instrument. Judgemment is reguired to assess what a markes participant would regand
2 the approgriate spread of the rate for an nstrument over the approoriate risk-free rate;
=  judgement to determine what model to use to caloulate fair value in areas whene the chodcoe of valuation model is particularty subjective,
for examiple, when valuing complex derivative products.
A ramge of valuation techniques is employed, dependent on the instrument type and available market data. Most valuation technigues are
baged upon discounted cash flow analyses, in which expected future cash flows. are calculated and discounted to present walue using a
dizoounting curve. Prior to considering credit risk, the expected futwre cash flows may be known, as would be the case for the foed leg of
an interest rake Swag, or may be uncertain and requine projection, as would be the case for the floating beg of an interest rate swap.
‘Projection” utilises market forward curves, if available. In option models, the probability of different potential furture outcomes must be
considered. Inaddition, the value of some products (s dependent on more than one market factor, and in these cases it will typically be
nipessary bo consider how movements in one market factor mary affect the other market factors. The model inputs necessary to perform
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such caloulations include interest rate yield curves, exchange rates, wolatilities, correlations and prepayment and default rates, For interest
rate derivatives with collateralsed counterparties and in Sgnificant currendiess, the groug wses a discounting curve that reflects the
owernight inberest rate,

The majority of valustion technigues ermploy only observable market data. However, certain finandal instruments are valued on the basis of
valuation techrigues that feature one or more significant market inputs that are unobservable, and for them the measurement of fair valwe
is mare judgemental. &n ingtrument in it entirety is clasified a5 valued wing significant unohservable inguts if, in the apinion of
managerment, a significant proportion of the instrument’s inception profit or greater than 5% of the instrument's valuastion is driven by
unohservable inputs. Unobservable” in this context means thak there is little or no current market daga avadlable from which to determine
this price at which an arm's length transsction would be Bosly to accur. |t generally does not mean that thers i no data available at all upon
which to base a determination of fair value jconsensus pricing data may, for example, be used).

Control framewaork

Fair values are subject to a control framework designed to ensure that they are either determined or validated by a function
Independent of the risk-taker,

For all financial instruments where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing
Inputs to models, independent price determination or walidation is utilised. In inactive markets the group will source
alternative market information to validate the financkal instrument's falr value, with greater weight given to information that is
considered to be more relevant and reliable. The factors that are considered in this regard are, inter alio:

= the extent to which prices may be expected to represent genuine traded or tradable prices;

» the degree of similarity between financial instruments;

s the degree of consistency between different sources;

& the process followed by the pricing provider to derive the data;

& the elapsad time between the date to which the market data relates and the balance sheet date; and
# the manner in which the data was sourced.

For fair values determined using valuation models, the control framework may include, as applicable, development or
validation by independent support functions of (i) the logic within valuation models; (i) the inputs to these maodels; (iil] any
adjustrnents required outside the valuation models; and (iv) where possible, model outputs. Valuatien models are subject to a
process of due diligence and calibration before becoming operational and are calibrated against external market data on an
ongoing basls,

Financial liabilities measured at fair value

In certain clroumstances, the group reconds its own debt in ssue at falr value, based on quoted prices in an active market for
the specific Instrument concerned, where avallable. An example of this s where own debt in [ssue ks hedged with interest rate
derivatives. When quoted market prices are unavallable, the own debt in issue s valued using valuation technigues, the inputs
for which are either based upon quoted prices in an inactive market for the instrument or are estimated by compartson with
quoted prices in an active market for similar instruments. In both cases, the fair value includes the effect of applying the credit
spread which |s appropriate to the growp’s Nabilities. The change in falr value of issued debt securities attributable to the
group's own credit spread |s computed as follows: for each security at each reporting date, an externally verifiable price is
obtained or a price is derived using credit spreads for similar securities for the same Issuer. Then, using discounted cash flow,
each security ts valued using & LIBOR-based discount curve. The difference in the valuations i attributable to the group™s own
credit spread. This methodology is applied consistently across all securities.

Structured notes lssued and certaln other hybrid instrument Nabilities are included within trading liabilities and are measured
at fair value, The credit spread applied to these instruments s derived from the spreads at which the group issues structured
notes.

Gadns and bosses artsing from changes in the credit spread of liabilities sswed by the group reverse over the contractual kife of
the debt, provided that the debt ks not repaid at a premium of & discount.

Changes in falr value are generally subject to a profit and loss analysis process. This process disaggregates changes In fabr value
into three high level categories; (i) portfolio changes, such as new transactions or maturing transactions, (M) market
maowvernents, such as changes in forelgn exchange rates or equity prices, and (ill) other, such as chamges in fair value
adjustrnents, discussed below.

Fair walue hierarchy

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined according to the following hierarchy:

»  Level 1 —valuation technigue using guoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments
In active markets that the group can access at the measurement date.

& Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: financial instruments with quoted prices for simdlar instruments in
active markets or guoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued
using models where all significant inputs are observable.
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® Level 3 — valuation technique with significont unobservable inputs: financlal Instruments valued wsing valuation technigues
where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

The following table sets out the financial instruments by falr value hierarchy.

Fimancial instruments carried at fair value and bases of wvaluation

The group
Valuation technigues
Lewel 1 Ll 2 Lewel 3
guited using  with significant
market ohzenabile unishssnmable
price impurts Inputs Total
Em Em Em Em
Recurring fair value measurements at 31 December 2015
Asseis
Trading assets 67 ETS 40,264 2,847 110,585
Financial assets designated 2t fair value 5,516 ES G 2 6,829
Denivatives 549 164,778 1,458 166,785
Financial ilable-for-sal 55,887 14,205 1,465 71353
Liabilrtses
Tracing kabdi thes 18,343 54,649 497 Faasa
Financial liabiities at fair value 2,572 16,007 2 19,001
Denhatives ] 161,157 T4 162,864
Recurring fair value measurements at 31 December 2004
dssets
Trading assets 83,749 44,108 2153 130,127
Financial assets designated 2t fair value BE18 e 5 ¥ ]
Denhatives 1,549 184,173 1614 187,736
Financial ilable-for-sal S, S50 13,852 1,545 6104
Liabilities
Tracing kabdi thes 22 888 LN 1,443 #2600
Firancial liabiities at fair value 1,107 21,440 g 22857
Denhatives 1,598 185 1%F 11 188278
The bank
Valuation techndques
Lewel 1 Leswsl 2 Lewel 3
market nblum “_H‘-duunﬂl
price Imputs Inputs Tatal
£m £m Em Em
Recurring falr value at 31 ber 2005
Assets
Trading asseis 51,002 36,780 2,432 80,244
Financial assets designated at fair value - = = =
Deriatives il ] 148,735 1,501 150,454
Financial ilable-for-sal 33,864 4,257 1,778 39,899
Labilrtses
Tracing kabdi thes 11,16 45,980 331 57,436
Firancial liabilities at fair value - 11,5313 - 11,813
Denhatives L] 146,51 917 148 249
Recurring fair value measurement at 31 Decembaer 2014
Azsets
Trading assets 56,5908 EL R 1132 47,757
Financial asseis designated at fair value - ] - a
Denivatives 1,500 156,711 1,821 160,232
Financial investments: svailable-for-sale JEITE 4801 1361 A48 430
Liabilities
Trading kabdities 11,433 46370 1,13 55,0%
Firancial liabiities at fair value - 168137 - 16,17
Derkatives 1,500 158,145 137 161,442
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Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 foir values:

Assets Labilities
Designated Designated
at fair value at falr value
Avallable for Held for through Held far through
sale trading profitorioss  Derivatives trading profit or boss  Derivatives
Em Em Em Em Em Em Em
At 31 December 2015
Tramsfers from Level 1 to Level 2 = L] = 7 1,055 = &7
Tramsfers from Level 2 to Level 1 = i = 2 338 1 -
Ar 31 December 2014
Tramsfers from Level 1 to Level 2 1,641 11,004 - 18,989 - -
Tramsfers from Level 2 to Leved 1 - - - - - - -

Transfers from Level 1 to Level 2 in the held fior trading liabilites category reflect reclassification of notes Bsuwed by the group
bearing & return closely linked to & referenced asset.

Fair value adjustments

Fair value adjustrnents are adopted when the group considers that there are additional factors that would be conskdered by a
market participant which are not incorporated within the valustion model. The group classifies falr value adjustrments as
either ‘risk-related’ or ‘model-related’. The majority of these adjustments relate to GBEM.

Movements in the level of falr value adjustrments do not necessarily result in the recognithon of profits or losses within the
Income statement. For example, as models are enhanced, fair value adjustments may no longer be required. Similarly, fadr
value adjustments will decrease when the related positions are unwound, but this may not result in profit or loss.

Risk-related adjustments

Hid-offer

IFRS 13 requires use of the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of fair value. Valuation models will
typically generate mid-market values. The bid-offer adjustrment reflects the extent to which bid-offer costs would be incurred
if substantially all residual net portfolio market risks were closed using available hedging instruments or by disposing of or
uriwinding the position.

Uncertainty

Certain model inputs may be less readily deterrninable from market data, and/or the choice of model itself may be more
subjective. Inthese circumstances, there exists a range of possible values that the financial instrument or market parameter
may &sswme and an adjustment may be necessary to reflect the likelihood that in estimating the fair value of the financial
Instrument, market participants would adopt more conservative values for uncertain parameters and/or model assumptions
than those used in the valuation model.

Credit valuation odjustrment

The cradit valuation adjustrment ['CVA') is an adjustment to the valuation of OTC derivative contracts to reflect within fair value
the possibility that the counterparty may default and that the group may not recelve the full market value of the transactions
[see below]).

Debit valuation adjustrment

The debit valuathon adjustment ("DVA') s an adjustment to the valuation of OTC derivative contracts to reflect within fair value
the possibility that the group may default, and that the group mey not pay the full market value of the transactions [see
below).

Funding falr walue odjustment

The funding fair value adjustrment [ FFVA®) ks calculated by applying future market funding spreads to the expected future
funding exposure of any uncollateralised component of the OTC derivative portfolio. This Includes the uncollateralised
component of collateralised derivatives in addition to derivatives that are fully uncollateralised. The expected fubure funding
exposure is calculated by a simulathon methodalogy, where avallable, The expected future funding exposure s adjusted for
events that may terminate the exposure such as the default of the group or the counterparty. The FRYA and DVA are
calculated independently.

Maodel-related adjustments
Madel limitation

Models used for portfolio valuation purposes may be based upon a simplifying set of assumptions that do not capture all
material market characteristics. Additionally, markets evolve, and models that were adequate in the past may require
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development to capture all material market characteristics in current market conditions. In these circumstances, model
limitation adjustments are adopted. As model development progresses, model limitations are addressed within the valuation
madels and a model limitation adjustrment is no longer needed.

Inception profit {Day 1 PEL reserves)

Inception profit adjustments are adopted when the fair value estimated by a valuation model ks based on one or more
significant unobservable inputs. The sccounting for Inception profit adjustments |s discussed on page 125.

Credit valuation adjustment'debit valuation adjustment methodalogy

The group calculates & separate CVA and DA for each group legal entity, and within each entity for each counterparty to
which the entity has exposure. The group calculates the CVA by applying the probability of default ['PD’) of the counterparty,
conditional on the non-default of the group, to the group's expected positive exposure to the counterparty and multiplying the
result by the loss expected in the event of default. Conversely, the group calculates the DVA by applying the PD of the group,
conditional on the non-default of the counterparty, to the expected positive exposure of the counterparty to the group and
muttiplying the result by the loss expected in the event of default. Both calculations are performed over the life of the

potential exposure,

For most products, the group uses a simulation methodology to calculate the expected positive exposure to a counterparty.
Thits incorporates a range of potential exposures across the portfolio of transactions with the counterparty over the life of the
portfolio. The simulation methodology includes credit mitigants such as counterparty netting agreements and collateral
agreements with the counterparty.

For certain types of exotic derivatives where the products are not currently supported by the simulation, or for dertvative
exposures in smaller trading locations where the simulation tool ks not yet avallable, the group adopts alternative

methodologies.

The methodologies do not, in general, account for "wrong-way risk’. Wrong-way risk arises where the underlying value of the
derivative prior to ary VA ks positively correlated to the probability of default of the counterparty. When there s significant
wrong-way risk, a trade-specific approach s applied to reflect the wrong-way risk within the valuation.

With the exception of certain central clearing parties, the group includes all third party counterparties in the CVA and DVA
calculations and does not net these adjustments across group entites. The group reviews and refines the OV and DVA

methodologies on an ongodng basks.
Fair value valuation bases

Fimancial instrunrents measured ot folr value using @ valugtion technigue with significant unobservable inputs — Level 3

The group
Asnets Liabsilities
Avallable- Hizdd for At fair Held for At fair
for-sale trading value  Derhvathves trading wvalue  Derivathes
Em Em £m £m £m Em Em
Private equity investments 77 4 = = Fi ) = =
Mzset-backed secunities Tob 250 - - - - -
Struchured notes - 3 - - am - -
Dertvatives = = = 1,458 = = 5
Othar portfolias X2 2,185 2 - - 2 -
At 31 December 2015 1,465 2,443 2 1,458 457 2 45
Private equity investments k-1 S - - Fi 3 - -
Azset-tacked secunities 34 Fi ] - - - - -
Struchured notes - - - - 1,285 - -
Derivatives - - - 1,614 - - 1,2
Other portfolios 17 1,782 5 - - 5 -
Ar 31 December 2014 1,546 2,153 & 1,614 1,293 - 1,331
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The bank
Assets Liabilities
Avallable- Hizdd for At fair Held for At fair

for-sale trading walue  Derluatives trading walue  Derhvathes
Em Em Em £m £m Em Em
Private equity investments 474 = = = = = -
Asset-backed securities 1304 26T = = = = =
Struchured notes = = = = EES = =
Derivatives = = = 1,501 = = ik
Other portfolios = 2,185 = = = = =
At 31 December 2015 1,778 2,432 = 1,501 331 = 17
Private equity investments 415 [} - - - - -
Azset-backed securities 1946 aTe - - - - -
Structured notes = T = = 1,236 = =
Dierivatives - - - 1,821 - - 1377
Othar portfolios - 1,782 - - - - -
A% 31 December 2014 1361 4,132 = 1,621 1,335 = 1377

Level 3 instruments are present in both ongoing and legacy businesses. Loans held for securitisation, certabn derivatives and
predominantly all Lewel 3 asset-backed securities are legacy. The group has the capability to hold these positions.

Private equity including strategic investments

The group’s private equity and strategic investments are generally classified as avallable for sale and are not traded in active
markets. In the absence of an active market, an Investrnent’s fadr value Is estimated on the basis of an analysis of the investee’s
financial position and results, risk profile, prospects and other factors, as well as by reference to market valuations for similar
entithes guoted in an active market, or the price at which similar companies have changed ownership.

Asset-backed securities

‘While quoted market prices are generally used to determine the fair value of these securities, valuation models are used to
substantiate the reliability of the limited market data available and to identify whether any adjustrments to quoted market
prices are required. For ABSs induding residential MB5s, the valuation uses an industry standard model and the assumpthons
relating to prepayment speeds, default rates and loss severity based on collateral type, and performance, as appropriate. The
valuathons output ks benchmarked for consistency against observable data for securithes of & similar nature.

Loans, induding leveraged finance and loans held for securitisation

Loans held at fair velue are valued from broker quotes and/or market data consensus providers when avallable. in the absence
of an ohservable market, the falr value 5 determined using alternative valuation techniques. These technbgues include
discounted cash flow models, which incorporate essumptions regarding an appropriate credit spread for the loan, derived
from other market instruments issued by the same or comparable entities.

Structured notes

The fair value of structured notes valued using & valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs ks derived from the
feir value of the underhying debt security, and the fair value of the embedded derivative s determined as described in the
paragraph below on derivatives,

Lewel 3 structured notes principally comprise equity-linked notes which are lssued by the group and provide the counterparty
with a return that is linked to the performance of certain equity securities, and other portfolios. The notes are classified as
Lewel 3 due to the unobservability of parameters such as long-dated equity volatilithes and correlations between equity prices,
between equity prices and interest rates and between interest retes and foreign exchange rates.

Derivatives

OTC [i.e. non-exchange traded) derivatives are valued using valuation models. Valuation models calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows, based upon ‘no-arbitrage’ principles. For many vanilla derivative products, such as interest rate
swaps and European options, the modelling approaches used are standard across the industry. For more complex derivative
products, there may be some differences in market practice. Inputs to waluation models are determined from obsarvable
market data wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers or providers of consensus pricing.
Certain inputs may not be observable in the market directly, but can be determined from observable prices via model
calibration procedures or estimated from historical dats or other sources. Examples of inputs that may be unobservable
Inchude wolatility surfaces, inwhole or in part, for less commonly traded option products, and correlations between market
fectors such as forelgn exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

130

415/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

HEEBC BAMK FLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

Derivative products vabued using valuation technbgues with significant unobservable inputs include certain types of correlation
products, such as foredgn exchange basket options, equity basket options, foreign exchange Interest rate hybrid transactions
and long-dated opton trensactions. Examples of the latter are equity options, interest rate and forelgn exchange options and
certain credit derivatives. Credit derivatives include certain tranched CDS transactions.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement between opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial
Instruments, measured at fair value using valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs:

The group
Assets Liabilties
Diesignated Designated
at fair valus at fair value
fxailable- Held for through Held for through
for-sake trading profitorioss  Dervatives trading profit orloss  Desivatives
£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 Jarmary 2015 1546 2153 5 1,614 1,293 5 1271
Total gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss [E]] ) = 157 |228] = (271}
- trading income sxchuding net
Interest incomes = 64 = 157 (226} = [a71)
- gains less losses from financial
inwestments 13) - - - - - -
Taotal gains or losses recagnised in other
comprehensive incame? 263 12 - 2 2 - [13)
- avallable-for-sale investments: air
value gains/{losses) 250 = = = = = =
- cash flow hedges: fair value
gains/{losses) = = = 0 = = f11)
- exchange differences 13 8} = 12} 2} = 2}
Purchases 132 1049 = = 2 = =
|smses - - - - 15 - -
ol f252) 763) @) - ) i) -
Settlements (21) (&3) = [&5) |120] = (157}
Transfer ot [e28) j122) - [516) 1s0¢) - {188}
Tramsfer in 525 142 = Fry 144 = &1
At 31 December 2015 1465 2443 2 1,458 457 2 745
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in
profit or loss relating to and kabilibies
held at 31 December 2014 {19y 13} 13 [26) 1207) [§1] 224
- trading income sxchuding net
Interest incomes = 3) = 26) (207} = 124
- et income/|eapenses) from other
financial instrsments - - (kD] - - [§1] -
- loan impairment charges and other
credit sk provisions 1159) = = = = = =

1 included in ‘Avmioble-for-soie investments: foir volee gobes, Tlosses)” and Escionge diffierences” in the consolidoted stofement of comproheans e
ncome.
Movement of Level 3 avallable-for-sale assets are driven by ABS activity, predominantly in the securithes imestment conduits,
Transfers out of Level 3 avallable-for-sale assets demonstrates increased confidence in pricing and price coverage, and
transfers in reflect imited availability of third-party prices. Increase in Level 3 held for trading assets ks driven by an increase in
recently-lssued syndicated loans, The decline in Level 3 held for trading liabilities reflects a decline in the outstanding balance
of Level 3 equity-linked notes, both as a result of market movement and reduced [ssuance. The decline in Level 3 derivative
assets and liabilities reflects market movement.
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]
Aszets Liabalities
Designated Designated
at Far valkue at Fair value:
Available- Held for through Held for through
for=sale trading profitorioss  Dedwabies trading  profit or loss Denkatives
£m £m £m Em £m £m Em
£m £m £m Em £m £m Em
A 1 lanuary 2014 1,453 1,562 - 1,072 1,381 - 1,147
Total gains or losses recognised in profie
or loss (7 123 - T34 L - 193
- trading income exchuding net
Interest income - 1x3 - T34 &7 - 193
- gains less losses from financial
Investments L] = = = = = =
Total gains or losses recognised in other
comprrehensive incoms 104 i} - = (L] - 2}
- avadable-for-sale investments: fair
valur gain5f{losses) B& - = - - - -
- exchange differences E] ] (2} - - [4] - (2}
Purchases L Frl L - - L -
Issses - - - - a3s - -
Salus 1258 i204) - - - - -
Settlements [74) (18] - 1% (385) - [0}
Tramsfer cut 1023} {52) - {221} (202) - (233}
Tramsfer in 431 i - 74 27 = 6
42 31 December 2014 1586 2,183 5 1,614 1,283 5 1321
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in
profit or loss relating to and kabilibies
held at 31 December (1) L] - E12 (108) - 118
- trading income sxchuding net |
Interest income = 5 = 612 {20E) = 118
- loan impairmaent charges and other
credit rsk provisions B ] - - - - - -
The bank
Assets Liahilities.
Designated Designated
at fair value: at fair value
Available Held for through Held for through
for-sale trading profitorioss  Derivatives trading profitorloss  Derivatives
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Jarmary 2015 2361 2,132 = 1621 1,238 = 1377
Total gains or losses recognised im profis
of loss 122 20 = 154 (232] = (151}
- trading income excluding net interest
Income = 0 = 154 |23z} = [151)
- gains less losses from finandal
investmests 132 - - - - - -
Taotal gains or lesses recognised in other
comprehensive income 29 7 - 10 - - -
- lable-for-sale i fair
vahse gains (losses) 29 = = = = = =
= cash flow hedges: fair value
gains/|loszes) - - - 10 - - -
= exchange differences = [7)] = = = = =
Purchases B9 1,102 - - - - -
|smses 3 - -
Sales [L012) 1822) - 132) -
Settlements ™ e - f20) 170) - [188)
Tramsfer ot 1476} 1132) - [312) is04) - {254
Tramsfer in 70 139 = 48 EL] = 34
At 31 December 2015 1,778 2,432 = 1,501 EEN = 217
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in
profit or loss relating to and kabilibies
held at 31 December = 3] = [F3L]] (212) = 202
- trading income sxchuding net
Interest income = 2} = [219) (212} = 202
= loan impairment charges and other
credit fisk provisions = = = = = = =
132
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Aszets Liabalities
Designated Designated
at i value at fair value
Available- Held for through Held for through
for-sale trading  profit or loss Derivatives trading profitorloss Derhvatives
£m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Ak 1 anuary 2014 717 1583 - 1,083 1,280 - 1,367
Taotal gains or losses recagnised in profie
of loss (4} 138 = ) a = 268
- trading income excluding net interest
Income - 138 - a9 21 - 268
- gains less losses from finandal
Investments (L] = = = = = =
Total gains or losses recognised in ather
comprehensive incomes 576 - - - - - -
- available-for-sale investments: fair
value gains{losses) Ly - - - - - -
exchange differences 4 - - - - = -
Purchases 208 4 = = = = =
Issises - - - - A3 - -
Sales {1,042) {254) - - - - -
Lettloments 7 {1%) - 8 (30 - {227}
Tramsfer cut {128 {52) - {202} (202 - {197}
Tramsfer in Ex] BSO - a2 - - L]
A 31 December 2014 1361 2232 = 1,421 1,238 - 1,377
Unrealised gains/{losses) recognised in
profit or loss relating to and kabilibies
held at 31 December {1, 11 - s42 (10) - 147
- trading income exchuding net
Interest income - 11 - a2 {208} - 147
- |oan impairment charges and other
oredit risk provisions {1) - - - - - -

Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives

The following table shows the sensitivity of Level 3 fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions:

The group
Beflected in other
Reflected im profit or loss comprehensive income
= = 2 = = = = =
Em £m £m m
At 31 December 2015
Diertatives/trading assets/trading labilties' ag [82) - -
Finanicial assets and liabilities designated at fair valse - 1) - -
Financial ilable-fo | T (&) BE (28}
A 31 December 2014
Benkhativesftrading assetstrading liabibties' 161 {14a) - -
Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair valee - (1} = =
Financial investments: available-for-sale 11 [Ty T3 [E=]]
The bank
Eeflected in other
Reeflected im profit or loss comprehensive income
Favourable Unfavourable Favourabls Unfavourabls
£m £m £m £m

At 31 Diecember 3015
Denkvativestrading assetstrading labiltins’ 153 |114) = =
Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair valee - - - -
Financial investments: available-for-sale - - 4 43}
A 31 December 2014
Denkvativestrading assetstrading liabilities! 162 {150) - -
Firanicial assets and labilities designated at fair value - = - -
Financial ilable-fo | - - " (=)

1 Derivatives, troding assets ond troding Fabities are presented a3 one category fo reflect the monmer in which these financinl instruments
e risk-managed.,
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Sensithity of Level 3 falr values to reasonably possible altemnative assumptions by instrument type

Reflected in other
Reflected in profit or loss comprehensive |
Favourabile Unfavourabils Favourable Unfavourable
dhanges changes changes changes
Emi Em Em £m
At 31 December 2015
Private equity imsestmants 4 14) 52 52}
Asset-backed securities L 2 34 34)
Structured notes 7 7 = =
Denivatives 13 [13) = =
Other portfolios 73 (&0} = =
Ak 31 December 314
Private equity investments & (&} E-} {&d)
Asset-backed securities Fi] {11} 5 {3%5)
Struchured notes & (&} - -
Dienivatives L] {75} - -
Other portfolios (3] {50} = -

Favourable and unfavourable changes are determined on the basis of sensithvity analysis. The sensitivity analysks aims to
measure a range of falr values consistent with the application of & 95% confidence interval. Methodologles take account of the
nature of the valuation technique employed, as well as the avallability and reliability of observable proxy and historical data.
‘When the avallable data is not amenable to statistical analysis, the quantification of uncertainty Is judgemental, but remains
guided by the 95% confidence interval_

‘When the fair walue of & financial instrument is affected by more than one unobservable assumption, the above table reflects
the most favourable or the most unfavourable change from varying the assurnptions indhvidually.

Key unobservable inputs fo Level 3 financial instrumenis

The table below lists key unobservable inputs to Level 3 financial instruments, and provides the range of those inputs as at 31
Decembser 2015. The core range of inputs ks the estimated range within which 90% of the inputs fall. A further description of
the categories of key unobservable inputs is ghven below.

Fair value Koy Full range ‘Core range
Assets Liabilitles unobsenmble of inputs of inputs
£m Em  Valuation technigue imputs Lower Higher Lower Higher
At 31 Diecember 3015
Private equity TEL 4 Sow motes below Sen notes below nfa nfa nfa nfa
Azset-backed securities a56 -
cLofenn® Barket prowy Bid quotes 1] 494 EL brs
Other ABSs Idarket prowy Bid quotes i) 100 50 -
Struchured notes 3 4T3
Equity-inked notes - 268 | Model — Option model  Eguity volatlity e % 18% ]
Model = Opticn model  Equity correlation EL L 45% A
Fund-linked notes - 3 | Model —Option model  Fund valatility B o =] =
FEdinked notes - 48 | Model —Option model  FX volatlity &% EL ] EL
Ogher 3 148
Dienkvatives 1458 745
Inferest rate derfabives:
— spouritisation saaps 257 325 | Model - DCF Frepayment rate (i G0 1 TG
—llong-dated swaptions 83z B0 | Model —Option model 18 volatility % B 14% 47
—ather 24 15
Foreign exchange derivatives:
~ foreign eachange options 138 100 | Bodel - Opticn model — FX volatlity i 5% i
Equity derivatives:
—llong-dated single stock options L] 83 | Model - Option model  Eguity volatliny e 104% 15% T
—ather 141 134
Credit derivatives: 0 2
Other portfolios 2,189 2
—structured cerbificates 1053 - | Model - DCF Credit volatiity i 4% L] %
—ather 1138 2
5367 1,244
1 Coly fised Inor obiigation/tollaferolsed debt ohligation

& Discounted cosh flow
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Fair value Koy Full range ‘Core range
Assets Liabilites unokservable of inputs of inputs
£m Em Valmtion technigue inputs lower Higher Lower Higher
Ak 31 December 314
Private equity ae1 28 fow motes bolow Sen notes below nfa nfa nfa nfa
Azset-backed securities 1,208 -
cuyeno? BOO Mdarket prowy Bid quotes - 10 L] L]
Other ABSS B9 Idarket prowy Bid quotes - 46 5 53
Struchured notes - 1,265
Equity-inked notes = &1 | Model — Option model — Eguity volatliny ¥ EE% 15% 438
Model —Opticn model  Equity correlation EL2 L1 4% T
Fund-linked nates - 362 | Model —Option model  Fund walatility &% o =] %
Fe-linked notes - 182 | Model — Option model  FX wolatlity % s I T
Other - 120
Derivatives 14514 1,.:21
Inferest rabe derivathes:
— spouritisation saaps -] 655 | Model - DEF Frepayment rate i Sive &% 1k
—llong-dated swaptions BET 123 | Model — Option model 18 volatility % 1%
—ather Elec] a4
Foreign exchange dervaties:
= foreign eachange options bdodel - Option model B wolatlity i v T
Equity derivatives:
=llong-dated single stock options a7 112 | Model = Option model  Eguity volatlity il B 14% EL ]
—ather 132 188
Credit dervatives: BT 0
Other portfolios

1,504 5
—structured cerbificates 1 Madel - DEF Credit volatility 1% % 1% E
—ather a3

5,318 1519

1 CoNoterolised loon cbligation/tollaterolsed debt obligation
& Discounted cosh flow

Private equity

Given the bespoke nature of the analysis in respect of each holding, it is not practical to quote & range of key unobservable
Inputs.

Market prowy

Market proxy pricing may be used for an instrument for which specific market pricing ks not available, but evidence & available
in respect of instruments that have some characteristics in common. In some cases it might be possible to kdentify & specific
praxy, but more generally evidence across a wider range of instruments will be used to understand the factors that influence
current market pricing and the manner of that influence. The range of prices used as inputs into a market prowy pricing
methodology mey therefore be wide. This range is not indkcative of the uncertainty associated with the price derved for an
individual secwrity.

Vaolatility

Volatility ks 8 measure of the anticipated futuwre variability of &8 market price. Volatility tends to increase in stressed market
conditions, and decrease i calmer market conditions. Volatility ts an important input in the pricing of options. In general, the
higher the volatility, the more expensive the option will be. This reflects both the higher probabdlity of an incressed return
from the option and the potentially higher costs that the group may incur in hedging the risks assoclated with the option.
option prices become more expensive, this will increase the value of the group’s long option positions (Le. the positions in
which the growp has purchased options), while the group’s short option posithons (i_e. the positions in which the group has sold
opthons) will suffer losses.

Volatility varies by underlying reference market price, and by strike and maturity of the option. Volatility also varies aver time.
As a result, it is difficult to make general statements regarding volatility levels.

Certain volatilities, typbcally those of & longer-dated nature, are unobservable. The unobservable volatility ks then estimated
from observable data. The range of unobservable volatilithes guoted in the table reflects the wide variation in volatility inputs
by reference market price. The core range is significantly narrower than the full range because these examples with extreme
volatilities occur relatively rarely within the group's portfolio. For any single unobsereable volatility, the uncertainty in the
volatility determination is significantly less than the range quoted above.
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Correlation

Correlation is & measure of the inter-relationship bebween two market prices and ks expressed &s 8 number between minus
one and one. A positive correlathon implies that the two market prices tend bo move in the same direction, with a correlation
of one implying that they always move in the same direction. & negative correlation implies thet the bwo market prices tend bo
move in opposite directions, with a correlation of minus one implying that the two market prices slweys move in opposite
directions.

Correlation is used to value more complex instruments where the payout ks dependent upon more than one market price.
There Is a wide range of instruments for which correlation is an input, and consequently a wide range of both same-asset
correlations (e.g. equity-equity correlation) and cross-asset correlations (e.g. forelgn exchange rate-interest rate correlation)
are used. Ingeneral, the range of same-asset correlations will be narrower than the range of cross-asset correlathons.

Correlation may be unobservable. Unobservable correlations mey be estimated based upon & range of evidence, including
consensus pricing services, group trade prices, proxy correlations and examination of historical price relationships.

The range of unobservable correlations gquoted in the table reflects the wide variathon in correlathon inputs by market price
pair. For any single unobservable correlation, the uncertainty in the correlation determination s likely to be less than the
range quobed above.

Credit spread

Credit spread is the premium over a benchmark intenest rate required by the market to accept a lower credit quality. Ina
discounted cash flow model, the credit spread increases the discount factors applied to futwre cash flows, thereby reducing the
value of an asset. Credit spreads may be implied from market prices. Credit spreads may not be observable in more (lliguid
markets.

Inter-relationships between key unobservable inputs

Key unobservable inputs to Level 3 financial instruments may mot be independent of each other. As described above, market
variables may be correlated. This correlation typically reflects the manner in which different markets tend to react to macro-
economic or other events. Furthermore, the effect of changing market variables upon the group's portfolie will depend upon
the group's net Ask position in respect of each varable.
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13 Fair values of financial instruments not carried at fair value

The group
Fair walues
Waluation technlgues
Lewed 3 - with
Lewel 1-  Lewel 2 = using significant
Camrying quoted observable  unobsereahle
amount  market price linpuks Inputs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
MAssets and |labiities not held for sale ot 31 December 2015
Azspts
Loans and advances to banks fc i) - 23605 17 23353
Loans and advances to oustomers Z58,508 = 764 257419 258,743
Reverse repurchase agreemsnts = non-trading 30,537 - 29,894 543 30,537
Liabilities
Deposits by banis 14,202 = 4,202 = 2402
Customar accouts 332,530 - 332,226 549 332875
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 17,000 - 17,000 - 17,000
Diebt secunities in issue 26,063 - 26,067 - 26,067
Subordinated kabilities 8,537 - 8251 - 8261
Azsets and liabilities not held for sale at 31 December 2014
dssets
Loans and advances to banks 25,283 - 24,061 1.2 2542
Loans and advances to ostomers 257,252 - 2130 257,384 255514
Reverse repurchase agreemsnts - non-trading 41,5945 - 39,055 2850 41945
Liabilities
Deposits by banis 7,590 - 27,590 - 27550
Customer accounts 345,507 - 345, 721 24 345 545
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 23,383 - 5 383 - 231383
Diebt secunities in issue 7,91 - 27681 a4 Fird-ri]
Subordinated kabilities 4,858 - 8695 - 2645
The bank
FFair values
Waluation technigues
Lewed 3 - with
Lewel 1—- Lewel 2 - using significant
Carmying quoted observable  unobsersable
amount  market price linpuks Inputs Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Assets and |labiities not held for sale ot 31 December 2015
dssets
Loans and advances to banks 16,681 - 186,562 a5 16,661
Loans and advances to customers 205,358 = 582 205988 206,570
Reverse repurchase agresmsents — non-trading 24,893 - 24,893 - 24893
Liabilities
Deposits by banis 9,073 - 29,073 - 28,073
Customer accounts 71,526 - 271526 - 271526
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 11,278 - 11,275 - 11,778
Diebt secunities in issus 12,356 - 12 356 - 12,356
Subordinated kabilities 7457 - 7180 - 7,190
izsets and liabilities not beld for sale at 31 December 3014
Mzsets
Loans and advances to banks 18,7H6 - 145,536 2k 18,70
Loans and advances to oustomers HLETL - 1,513 202,532 204,145
Reverse repurchase agreemsnts = non-trading 36,3491 - 2,341 - 36341
Liabilities
Deposits by banis 31,383 = 31,383 - 31,383
Customer accownts a3 paT - 23 By - 282 8y
Repurchase agresments — non-trading 18,293 - 18,393 - 18343
Diebt secunities in issue 14,520 - 14,950 - 14,950
Subordinated kabilities 7854 - 7854 - Th54

Fair values are determined according to the hierarchy set out in Note 132,
Other financial instruments not carried at fedr value are typhcally short-term in nature and reprice to current market rates
frequently. Accordingly, thelr carrying amount is & reasonable approdmation of fair value.
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Valuafion

The fair value measurement |5 the group’s estimate of the price that would be received to sell an &sset or paid to transfer a
lizbility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It does not reflect the economic
benefits and costs that the group expects to flow from the instruments’ cash flows over their expected future lves. Other
reporting entities may use different valuation methodologhes and assumptions in determining fair values for which no
observable market prices are avallable.

Fair values of the assets and liabilities set out below are estimated for the purpose of disclosure as described below:

Loans and advances to banks and customers.

The fair walue of boans and advances is based on observable market transactions, where available. In the absence of observable
market transactions, fair value s estimated using valuation models that incorporate a range of input assumptions. These
assurnptions may include value estimates from third-party brokers which reflect over-the-counter trading activity, forward
locking discounted cash flow models using assumptions which the group believes are consistent with those which would be
used by market participanits bn valuing such loans, and trading inputs from other market participants which include observed
primary and secondary trades,

Loans are growped, as far as possible, into homogeneous groups and stratified by leans with similer characteristics to improve
the accuracy of estimated waluation outputs. The stratification of a loan book considers all material factors including vintage,
ongination period, estimates of future interest rates, prepayment speeds, delinguency rates, loan-to-value ratios, the guality
of collateral, default probability, and internal credit risk ratings.

The fair value of a loan reflects both loan impabrments at the balance sheet date and estimates of market participants’
expectations of credit losses over the life of the loans, and the fair value effect of re-pricing between origination and the
balance sheet date.

Financial investments

The fair values of kisted financial investments are deterrmined using bid market prices. The fair values of unlisted financial
Investments are determined using valuation techndgues that take into consideration the prices and future earnings streams of
equivalent quoted securithes.

Deposits by banks and custormer accounts

Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows, applying current rates offered for deposits of similar remaining
maturities. The fair value of & deposit repayable on demand Is approximated by its carrying value.

Debt securities in issue and subardinated liabilities

Fair values are determined using quoted market prices at the balance sheet date where avallable, or by reference to quoted
market prices for similar instruments.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements — non-trading

Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flows, applying current rates. Feir values approximate carrying amounts as
their balances are generally short dated.

14 Financial assets designated at fair value

Accounting policy

Financial instruments, other than those held for trading, are clazsified in this cakegory if they meet one ar more of the criteria set out below,

and are so designated irrevocably at inception. The group may designate financial instruments at fair value when the designation:

= elminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistendes that would otherwise arise from measuring finandal
instruments, or recognising gaing and losses on different bases from related positions. Under this criterion, the main dass of financial
agsets desigrated by the groun are finandal assets under unit-linked ngsurance and unit-linked fvestmient contrad. Lishilities to
custormness under linked contracts are determined based on the fair valus of the assets held in the linked funds. IF ne Eair value
designation was made for the related assets, the assets would be classified as available for sale, with changes in fair value recorded
in ather comprehensive mcome. The related finandal adsets and Babilities are managed and reported o managemenk on a fair value
basis. Designation at fair value of the financial assets and related liabilities allows the changes in fair values to be recorded in the income
statemert and presented in the same Ene;

= apples to groups of financial instruments that are managed, and their performance evalusted, on a fair valee basis in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and where information abouwt the groups of fnancial instruments is reported to
management on that basis. For example, certain financial atoets are held o meet liabilities under nonelinked ingurance contracts. The
groug has documented risk managerment and ir t strategies designed to and monstor market risk of thode asets on net
basis, after considering non-Enked liabilities. Fair valwe m went i also oonse with the regulatory reporting requirements undes
the appropriate regulations for those insurance aperations;

= refates to finandcal indstruments containing one or mone non-closely related embedded derivatives.

Designated financial assets are recognised at fair value when the group enters into contracts with counterparties, which is generally on

trade date, and are normally derecognised when sold. Subsequent changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement in Met

incorme from financial instruments designated ak fair valws'.
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Fimancial assets designeated of faie walue

The group The bank
2015 FI ) s 014
Em Em Em Em
Financial assets designated at fir value:

—not subject to repledge or resale by counterparties &8 B250 = g
Treasury and ather elighle bills - 3 - -
Diebt secunities 1,003 oET - a
Equity securities 5,712 L% - -
Securities designated at fair value 6,748 B, 245 - -]
Loans and advances to banks &1 = = =
At 31 Decembser 6,829 B2 = ]

15 Derivatives

Accounting policy

Derivatives

Deriwatives are financial instruments that derive their value from the price of underlying iterns such as equities, bonds, intenett rates,
foreign exchange, credit spreads, commaodities and equity or other indices.

Deriwatives are initially recognised, and are subtequently re-measured, st fair value. Fair valees of derivatives are obtained sither from
quoted mariet prices or by wsing waluation techniques.

Embedded derivatives are bifurcabed from the host contract when their economic characteristics and risks are not clearly and dosely
related o those of the host nor-desivative contract, their contractual terms would otherwize meet the definition of a stand-alone derivative
and the combined contract is not held for trading or designated at fair value. The bifurcated embedded desfvatives are measured at fair
value with changes thersin recognised in the income staterment.

Derwatives ane dassified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when thedr fair value is negative.

Deriwative aisets and liabikties arsing from different transactions are only offéet for accounting purposes if the offfstting criteria presented
in Note 30 are met.

Gaing and logses frorm changes in the fair value of desiwatives, ncluding the contractual interest, that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are reported in “Net trading income’. Gains and basses on derivatives managed in conjunction with finandal instruments designated at fair
walue, are reported in *Net income from financial instroments desigriated at fair value’ together with the gaing and losses on the
ecenomically hedged items. Where the dervatives are managed with debt securities Bzued by the group that are desigrated at fair valus,
the contractual interest is shown in ‘Interest expense’ together with the interest payable on the isswed debt.

Hedge accounting

When derivatives are designated as hedges, the group classifies them as either: (i) hedges of the change in fair value of recognised assets or
liabiities ar firm comimitments [ Fair value hedges'); (i) hedges of the variability in highly probable future cash flows attributable to a
recognised asset or liability, or a forecast transaction ('csh flow hedges"|; or (i) a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation ('net
inwestment hedges').

At the mception of a hedging relationship, the group documents the relationship beteeen the hedging instruments and the hedged items,
its risk management objective and its Strategy for undertaking the hedge. The groun requires documented assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether or not the hedging instrurments are highly effective in offsetting the changes attributable to
the hedged righs in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged ftems.

Faiir walue hadige

Changes in the fair valwe of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair valee hedging instruments are recorded in the income
statemment, along with changes in the fir value of the hedged assets, Babilities or group attributable to the hedged risk. If a hedging
relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge accounting i discontinued; the cumulative adjustment to the
carrying amaount of the hedged item is amortised to the income statement on a recalculated effective interest rate over the residual period
to maturity, unless the hedged item has been derecognised, in which case it is recognised in the income statement immediateky.

Cash flow hedge

The effective partion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify 3 cash flow hedges & recognised in other
comprehensive intome; the meffective portion of the changs in fair value & recognised fmmediately in the income statermnent, within “Met
trading income’.

The accumulated gains and laises recognised in other comgres e income are redassified to the income statement in the pedods in
which the hedged item affects profit or logs. In hedges of forecast trangactions that result in recognition of a non-financial asset or lab#ty,
previous gaing and losses recognised in other comprehensive income are included in the initial measurerment of the asset or liability.

When a hedging relationship is discontinued, any cumulative gain or lods recognised in other comprebensive income remains in eguity wntil
the forecast trangaction & recognised in the income statement. When a forecast transaction & no longer expedted to ocour, the cumulative
gain or lass previously recognised in other comprehensive income & immediately redasified o the intome statement.

Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investrments in foreign operations are accounted for in a similar way to cash fiow hedges. A gain or loss on the effective
partion of the hedging instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income; the residual change in fair valoe is recognised immediatedy
in the income statement. Gaing and losses previowsly recognised in other comprehensive income ane reclassified to the income statement
on the dispasal, or part disposal, of the foreign operation.

Hedge effectivensss testing

To qualify for hedge accounting, 1AS 39 requires that at the inception of the hedge and throughout its Bfe sach hedge must be expected o
be highly effective, both prospectively and retrospectively, on an ongoing basis.

The docwmentation of each hedging relationship sets out how the effectiveness of the hedge it assessed and the method adopted by an
entity to asseis hedge effectivensis will depend on it fisk management strategy. For praspective effectiveness, the hedging mitrument
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must be expected to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash fows atiributable to the hedged risk during the perdod for
which the hedge is designated, with the effectiveness range being defined as 80% o 125%. Hedge ineffediveness is recognized in the
income statement in Net trading ncome’,

Deviwatives that do not guaiify for hedge aocounting

MNan-qualifiying hedges ane derivatives entered into as sconomic hediges of assets and Esbilities for which hedge sceounting was niot appliad.

Fair wolues of derivatives by product contract type held by

Thi group Assets Liabilitles

Trading Hexging Total Trading Hedging Tatal

£m Emi £m £m £m Emi

Farelgn exchange 45220 429 45,718 {45, 795) [123) (45922)
interest rate 166,236 E24 167,120 [160,623) [1,549) (162,172}
Equities 6,684 - 6,684 [7,555) - (7.555)
Credit 3,882 = 3,88 [3.891) = 13.231)
‘Commuodity and other 1,531 - 1,531 [1,475) - |1,475)
Grass total fair values 273563 1,383 224,536 [219,343) {1,672} {221,015}
Offset _ i58,51) 58151
At 31 December 2015 166,785 !lw
Farelgn exchange 43,265 178 43,543 {44,754) {53 (44,207}
Interest rate arean 1,087 ITE A0 {271,602) {2,068y (273,870}
Equities 7.3 - 737 [B818) - {8,516}
Credit 4,650 - 4,550 [5,214) - (5,214}
Commadity and ather 1826 - 1,630 [1,841) - {1,841}
‘Gross total fair values 332,491 1,415 33,5086 {332,32%) {2,121y (334, 448)
Offzst [146,170) 148,170
Ax 31 December 2014 183,738 ;uu.zmt
The bank Aszels Liabilitles

Trading Hedging Total Trading Hadging Tatal

£m Emi £m £m £m Emi

Farelgn exchange 44,990 42 45,412 {45, 708) [121) (45, 230)
interest rate 143,963 &7 144,634 {140,276 {1,098} {141,377}
Equities £,504 - 6,504 [7,191) - (7291}
Credit 3,280 - 3,880 [3,887) - (3,227}
Commadity and ather 1,540 - 1,540 [1,485) - (1,485}
Grass total fair values 200,877 1,003 201,570 (128,548 11,217} [195,745)
Offset 51,508] 51,516
At 31 Diecember 2015 150,454 |us,z-ut
Farelgn exchange 43315 136 43,651 {44,865) (43 (44, 50%)
Interest rate 192,861 BE0 193,541 (129,841) (1802 {191, 243)
Equities L1 - B854 [8,548) - {8,545}
Credit 4,650 - 4,850 [8,208) - {5,208}
Commadity and ather 1,843 - 1,843 [1,858) - {1,855}
‘Gross total fair valuees 249,538 1,016 250,554 {250,315) {1,445) {251, Te4)
Ar 31 December 2014 160,23 ;m,.uzp
Use of derivatives

The group transacts derivatives for three primary purposes: to create risk management soluthons for clients, bo manage the
portfolio risks arising from clent business and to manage and hedge the group's own risks.

The group’s derivative activities give rise to significant open posithons in portfolios of derivatives, These positions are managed
constantly o ensure that they remain within scceptable risk levels. When entering into derivative transactions, the group
employs the same credit risk management framework to assess and approve potential credit exposures that it uses for
traditional lending.

Trading derivatives

Maost of the group's derlvative transactions relate to sales and trading activities. Sales activities include the structuring and
marketing of dervative products to customers to enable them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current or expected risks,
Trading sctivites include market-making and risk management. Market-making entails quoting bid and offer prices to other
market participants fior the purpose of generating revenues based on spread and volume. Risk management activity is
undertaken to manage the risk arising from chent transactions, with the principal purpose of retaining client margin.
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Other derhvatives classified as held for trading include non-gualifiying hedging dervatives, ineffective hedging derivatives and
the compoenernts of hedging derivatives that are excluded from assessing hedge effectiveness.

Notional contract amounts of derivatives held for trading purposes by product type

Foreign exchange
Inberest rate

Equities

Credit
Commadity and other

At 31 December

Derivatives valued using models with unobservable inputs

The group The bamk
2018 014 205 2014
Emi Em Em Em
2,633,560 150473 2,644,406 1,539,975
7,528, 04 11,608,407 £,5909,434 024, 780
L] 362,678 341,507 354,081
ZBT TS5 269,378 287549 269,366
29,043 40,00 27131 40,173
10,825,851 14,801,564 10,210,087 12,232,385

The difference between the fair value &t initial recognition [the transaction price] and the value that would have been derived
hiad valuathon techniques used for subsequent measurament been applied at initial recognition, less subsequent releases, s as

Tollows:

Unamortised bolance of devivatives valved using models with significant unobservable inputs

Unamartised balance at 1 January

Dizferral on rew transactions

Recognised in the income stabement duning the year:
—amartisation
—subisequent to unochservable inputs becoming abserable
— maturity, termmination or offsetting derivative

Othar

Unamortised balance at 31 December’

Tha The barik
2005 24 05 4
Em Emi Em Em
= -] 56 &1
a2 TE a1 T
157) {5} is5) i56)
- 18 - i#)
57) {4} 7) 4}
- T - T
=7 ] 55 3

1 This omount is pet to be recognised dn Hhe consoldoted income shefement.

Hedge accounfing derivatives

The group uses derivatives (principally interest rate swaps) for hedging purposas in the management of its own asset and
lizbility portfoles and structural pesitions. This enables the group to optimise the overall cost to the group of accessing debt
capital markets, and to mitigate the market risk which would otherwise arise from structural imbalances in the maturity and

other profiles of its ssets and liabilities.

The nothonal contract amounts of derivatives held for hedge accounting purposes indicate the nominal walue of transactions
outstanding at the balance sheet date; they do not represent amounts at risk.

Notional controct amounts of derivatives held for hedge accounting purposes by product type

Foreign exchange
Interest rate

At 31 December

Foreign exchange
Interest rate

The group
2015 2014
Cash flow Fair valuz Cash flow Fair value
hedge hedge heddge hedge
Em Emi Em £m
6,985 s 6,286 72
44476 34,468 82077 20,732
51,461 34,683 BE 463 29,794
Thie barik
2015 2014
Cash flow [Falir value Cash flow Fair valus
hedge hedge hedge hedge
Em Emi Emi Em
6,891 - LX) -
27871 25,766 44,977 23,363
34,562 25,766 50,759 23,363
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Fair value hedges

HSEBLC's fair value hedges principally consist of interest rate swaps that are used to protect against changes in the fair value of
fixed-rate long-term financial instruments due to movements in market interest rates,

Fair volue of dertvatives destgnated as falr value hedges

215 14
Aszets Liabiities Azzets Liabilities
Em Em Em Em
Thi group
Farelgn exchange 16 - - (1}
Interest rate 333 (1,443 194 11,241}
At 31 Diecember 345 {1,445) 156 11,843}
Thiz bank
Inberest rate EL {1, el ar: {1,321}
At 31 December 355 |1, o) Fard {1,311}
Gains or losses arising from fair value hedges
The groap The bank
2015 2014 M5 4
Em Em Em Em
Gains/{loszes):
— on hedging instruments 160 {1,013} 152 {E73)
— on the hedged ibems attnibutable to the hedged rise |156) 1,005% (152} BAT
‘Year ended 31 December 4 ) = 14

The gains and losses on ineffective portions of fair value hedges are recognised iImmediately in "Net trading Income’.
Cash flow hedges

HSEC's cash flow hedges consist principally of interest rate swaps, futures and cross-currency swaps that are used to protect
agalnst exposures to variabllity in future interest cash flows on non-treding assets and liabilities which bear Interest at variable
rates of which are expected to be re-funded of reinvested in the future. The amounts and timing of futwre cash flows,
representing both principal and interest flows, are projected for each portfolio of financlal assets and Babilities on the basis of
thelr contractual terms and other relevant factors, including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The aggregate principal
belamces and interest cash flows across all portfolios over thme form the basks for identifying gains and bosses on the effective
portions of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges of forecast transactions.

Fair walue of derfvatives designated as cash flow hedges

2015 2014
Aszets Liabiities fzgets Liabilities
Emi Em Em ]
Thi group
Fareign exchange 483 13) E 7] [52)
Interest rate 551 (100) 241 {27}
At 31 December 1,034 [Pz 1,219 {279}
The bank
Farelgn eschange 42 (3] EE 43}
Interest rate 276 &} 408 &1}
At 31 December 698 (137} T4 (124}
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Farecast principal balances on which intevest cash flows are expected to arlse
More than 3 S yoars or less

3Amonths monthsbutless  but more than Bore than
or less than 1 year 1 year 5 years
Em £Em Em Em
Tha group
et cash inflows outflows) exposure:
Assois 40,226 38,687 28,923 130
Liablities 5,282 5,208 fa, 281} (1,451
At 31 December 2015 34,944 33,581 24,762 11,321
The: bank
Het cash inflows/{outflows) sxposure:
Assets 34,661 33,355 26,961 41
Liabilities - - - -
At 31 Decembaer 2015 34,661 33,355 26,961 41
The group
Met cash inflows outflows) sxposure
Aotz 59,008 54,0801 33,547 %]
Liakdlities (17534} {13,608} (140, 358} 13,280}
A 31 December 2014 42171 40,4482 23,559 13,15)
The bank
Met cash inflows outflows) sxposure
Assets 44,425 44,458 30242 41
Liabilities 15,215} |5, X6} 14,741} 11,258}
Ar 31 December 214 35,170 29,232 26,101 11,194}

Thits table reflects the interest rate repricing profile of the underlying hedged items.

The gains and losses on ineffective portions of dervatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised immediately in ‘Net
trading income’. During the year to 31 December 2015 & net boss of £1 milllon (2014: gain of £8 million) was recognised due to
hedge ineffectiveness. Additionally, £103 million was transferred from the cash flow hedging reserve to the income statement
In respect of cash flow hedges determined not to meet all the hedge socounting criteria of WAS 39,

16 Non-trading reverse repurchase and repurchase agreement

Accounting policy

‘When securities are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined price, they remain on the balance sheet and 2
liability is recorded inrespect of the consideration received. Securities purchased under commiitments to resale are not recognised on the
balance shest and the right to receive back the initial consideration paid is recorded in Loans and advances to banks', ‘Loans and sdvances
to custormers” or Trading assets” as appropriate. The difference betwesn the sale and repurchase price or betwesn the purchase and resale
price is treated as interest and recognised in net interest income over the life of the agreement for loans and adsvances to banks and
customers. Securities lending and bormowing transactions are generally secured against cash or non-cash collateral. Securities lent or
borrowed do not mormally result in derecognition or recognition on the balance shesst. Cash collateral advanced or received is recorded as.

an asset or a Eability respectively. Repos and reverse repos measured at amortised cost, or nonetrading, are presented a4 separate lines in
the balance shest.

The extent to which non-trading reverse repos and repos represent amounts with customers and banks (s set out bebow,

Thiz group The banik
2005 2014 15 4

Em Emi Em Em
Assets
Banks 10,756 22,477 B354 20,713
Customers 19,781 19,468 16,529 15,678
At 31 December 30,537 41,5945 24,853 38,391
Liabilties
Banks 8,825 9,793 4,080 6,302
Customers B,175 13,560 7195 11,991
At 31 December 17,000 23,353 11,275 18,393
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17 Financial investments

Accounting policy: financial investments

Treasury bills, debt securities and equity securities intended to be held on a continuing bass, other than those designated at fair valwes, are
clasified as available for ale or held to matwrity. They are recognised on trade date when the group enters inbo contractual arrangements
to purchase those nstruments, and are normally derecognised when either the securities are sold or redeermed.

i Avadable-for-tale financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus direct and incremental transaction costs. They are subseguenthy
remneasured at fair valuee, and changes therein ane recognised in other compre henshve intome untill they are either sold or beoome
impaired. When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other com prehensive
income are recognised in the income statement as ‘Gains less lostes from financial investments’.

Interest income is recognised over the debt asset’s expected life. Premiums andfor discounts arising on the purchase of dated debt
securities are included in the interest recognised. Dividends from equity assets are recognised in the moome statement when the right
o receive payment is established.

{i) Held-to-maturity investrments ane non-derivative fnandal assets with fived or determinable payments and fived matwities that HSBC
positieely intends and is able to hald to maturity. Held-to- maturity nvestments are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs, and are subseguently measured at amortised oost, kess any impairment losses.

Thie accounting policy relating to impairments of svailable-for-sale securities & presented in Nate 1{k)

Fimoncial investments:

Thee group The bani
201% 14 FiikE 2014
£m £m £m £m

Financial investments

— which may be repledged or resold by counterparties 3314 14,831 2,398 13,552
— not subject to repledge o resale by courterparties 68,038 61,363 37 504 34,886
At 31 December 71,352 76,1594 19 899 48 438
Treasury and other eligible bills - available fior sale 3158 2849 1909 2,081
Debt securities — available for sale &7 088 72336 742y 45920
E|:||.|i‘t||l.'u:u:l.lrll.'it:‘!—il.l'lilll:h.-I'|:lr.1.‘l||:1 1109 1,009 563 437
At 31 December 71382 76,154 19 899 48 438

1 The finir volue of the group’s ftarsst in Visa Evrape has bean sasested ogoinst the supected cash cansidevation of £201 millian ta be
received from the propased sale to Wiso inc to be completed in 2016,

For the group, £9,213 milllon (2014: £56,172 million), and for the bank, £5,947 million [2014: £4,131 million), of the debt

securities [ssued by banks and other financial institutions are guaranteed by various governments,

18 Assets transferred, assets charged as security for liabilities, and collateral accepted as security for
assets

Accounting policy
Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derscognised when the contractual rights to receive cash fiows from the assets has expined; or when H5BC has
transferred its contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, and either:

= substantially all the risks and reswards of ownership have been transferred; or
= the group has neither retained nor transferred substartially all the risks and resards, but has not retained contral.

Fimancial assets not gualifying for full derecognition and associated financlal Dobilities

The group
Carrying
amount of Carrying Canrying Fair Fair
assets amaount of amount of value of value of
before transferred assodated transferred associated Met
transfer assets liahilities amsots liabilees pasition
Em Emi £m E£m Em
At 31 December 2015
Repurchase agresments 14513 14,615
Securities kending agreements 3112 3,048
Other sales [recowrse to transferred asset onby) SO2 537 503 503 =
Securftisations recognised to the extent of
continuing insodvemsent ATE 3 x 3 2 i
Ar 31 December 214
Repurchase agresments 31,0%0 31,880
Securities kending agreements Baa2 5ETE
Other sales [recowrss to transferred asset only) e SEd LEE] LEE -
Securitisations recognised to the extent of
continuing invodemaent 3,550 T 3 T E 4
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The bank
‘Carrying
amount of Camying Carrying Falr
assets amount of amount of valseof  Fairvalue of
before transferresd assodated transferred assoclated Met
transfer assets liabilizies assots liabilitses pasition
£m Em £Em £m £m Em
At 31 December 2015
Repurchase agresments 4,506 4,508
Securities kending agreements 3,047 3,047
Other sales [recowrse to transferred asset ondy) Sa2 a7 503 503 -
Securitisations recognised to the sxtent of
continuing invodnemaent 3,776 3 2 3 2 1
Ar 31 December 2014
Repurchase agresments 15073 16,674
Serurities kending agreements 5963 L¥.x ]
Other sales [recowrse to transferred asset only) ] S LEE] LTk -
Securitisations recognised to the: extent of
continuing invodement 3,550 T 3 T 3 4

Continwing imvolvement in financlol ossets and assoclated financiol Nobifities qualifying for full derecognition

The group and the bank
At 31 December For the year
Carrying amount of Incomef
continuing Emolvement in Gaimorkoss  [expenses) Imcomae/
statement of finamcial ~ Fairvalue of continuing recognised  recogrised  (mepemses)
positian inumdy it M at fer  In reporting
expasune date period LM
Assets  Uabilities Assets  Labilites o loss latively
Em £m £mi £m Em £Em Em £Em
Interest in structured entities
31 December 2015 - - - - - - - -
31 December 2014 ] - o8 - o8 - - 43

The assets in the table above represant our continuing involvement in securitisations where the group has transferred assets
to an unconsolidated structured entity, bat has retained some of the notes issued by the structured entity. These notes are
reported in loans and adwvances to customers. The maximum exposure to loss |s the carrying amount of the notes.

Fimancial assets pledged to secure Nabilities

Groug assets pledped at Bank assats pladped at

31 Decermnber 31 Decembier
2015 2014 2015 2014
fm £m £m £m
Trezsury bills and other elighle securities T 160 - -
Loans and adwances to banks 8,635 9,608 4,587 G, 240
Loans and advances to asstomers 43,058 35,572 18,374 15,061
Giehé securities 27,718 53,578 14,302 27,694
Equity shares 3,13 7051 3,047 &, 063
Othar 100 1,264 55 3,247
Assets pledged at 31 December 83,353 110,033 41,735 58,205

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to secure liabllities on a legal and contrectual basks. The
amount of such ascets may be greater than the book value of assets utilised as collateral for funding purposes or to cover
lizbilities. This ks the case for securitisations and covered bonds where the amount of llabilities lssued, plus any mandatory
over-collateralisation, |s less than the book value of financial assets avallable for funding or collateral purposes in the relevant
pool of assets. This is also the case where financial assets are placed with a custodian or settlement agent which has & floating
charge over all the financial assets placed to secure any lLabilities under settlement accounts.

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to collateralised transactions including, where
relevant, standard securities lending and repurchase agreements.

The financlal assets shown above include amownts transferred to third parties that do not qualify for derecognition, notably
debt securities held by counterparties as collateral under repurchase agreements and equity securities lent under securities
lending agreements. As the substance of these transactions is secured borrowings the asset collateral continues to be
recognised in full and the related liability reflecting the group's obligation to repurchase the transferred assets for a fixed price
at & future date s recognised on the balance sheet. As a result of these transactions, the group s unable to use, sell or pledge
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the transferred assets for the duration of the transaction. The group remains exposed o interest rate risk and credit risk on
these pledged instruments. The counterparty’s recourse ks not limited to the transferred assets.

Collateral accepted as security for assets

The fair value of financial assets accepted as collateral that the group is permitted to sell or repledge in the absence of default
Is £80,118 million (2014: £207,775 million) (the bank: 2005 £53,721 milllon; 2014 £76,602 million). The fair value of amy such
collateral that has been sold or repledged |s £57,295 milllon (2014: £66,080 millien) (the bank: 2015 £37,239 millon; 2014
£40,468 million). The growp |s obliged to retwrn equivalent securities,

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard securities borrowing and reverse
repurchase agreaments.
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19 Prepayments, accrued income and other assets

Accounting policy

Azsets held for sale

Asgets and Eabilties of disposal grouns and non-cumrent assets are dassified as held for ale | HFS') when their carmying amounts will be
recowered principally through sale rather than through continuing use. HFS assets are generally measured at the lower of their carmying
amourtt and fair valwe less cost to sell, except for those assets and llabftes that are not within the scope of the meagurement requirements
of IFRS & “Non-current Assets Hedd for Sale and Discontinued Operations’.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the relevant assets and Babilities are measured in
accordance with applicable IFRSs. On subsequent remeasurement of a disposal group, the carmying amounts of any assets and Eaxbilities that
are ot within the scope of the measurernent requirements of IFRS 5, but are mcluded in a disposal group classified as held for sale, shall be
remeasured under applicable IFRSs before the fair value bess costs to Sell of the disposal group is determined.

Property, plant and eguipment

Land and buildings are stated at historical cost, or fair walue at the date of transition to IFRSs ['deemed cost’), less impainrment losses and
depreciation over their estimated wseful bees, a3 follows:

= freehiold land & not depreciated;

= freehold buildings are depreciated at the greater of 28 per annum on a straight-line basis or aver their remaining wseful Bees; and

= |easehold land and buildings are depreciated ower the shorter of their unexpired terms of the leases or their remaining useful lives.
Equipment, fdures and fitting: {induding equipment on operating leases whene the group is the lessor) are stated at cost less impairment
lossess and depreciation over their useful Bees, which are generally between 5 pears and 20 years.

Property, plant and &gquipment s subject b an mpainment resiew iF their carrying amount may not be recoverable.

HEBC holds certain properties as investrments o eam rentals or for capital apprecation, or both, and those investment properties are
included en balance sheet at fair value.

Prepayments, occrued income ond other assets

Thiz group The banik
205 2514 05 014

Em Em Em Em
Prepayments and acorued income 2,078 2,353 1,237 1,184
Assets held for sale 7 4,378 17 15
Bullior 2,226 2,73 2,31 2,733
Reinsurers’ share of kabilities under insurance contracts 182 129 = -
Endorsements and acceptances 581 541 478 354
Employes benefit assets 3,376 3,089 33713 3,050
Dther accounts! 1,504 Lk -] 1,181 4,741
Property, plant and eguipment 1,758 1,614 S0z 21
At 31 December 11,732 20,319 9,308 12,508
1 \Wariation margin balances meeting th offset oriterka have heen reported os o deduchion from denivatie boionoes (Mote 307
Assefs held for sale

The group The bank

2015 1 s 014

Em Em Em Em
Hom-current assets held for sale:
- property, plant and equipment Fa) » 17 15
- Assets of dispasal groups beld for sale! - 4,353 - -
- other = - = =
Total assets classified as held for sale 27 4,178 17 15

1 The soie of tie UK pension insarance business was compieted in 2005,

Alsg included within property, plant and equiprment classified &s held for sale s repossessed property that had been pledged as
collateral by customers. These repossessed assets are expected to be disposed of within 12 months of acquisition.

Praperty, plant and equipment — selected information

The group The bank
201% 014 2015 014
£m Em £m £m
Cost or fair value 3,587 4,400 2,085 2,530
Accumulated deprecation and impairment (1,839) |2, 785} 1,083) {2,118}
Met carrying amiount at 31 Decembser 1,758 1,614 52 213
Additions « cost 431 411 a7 0
Dispasals - cont 112} {148} 16} {200}

Property plant and equipment incudes

Land and buildings 1,042 413 441 390
Freehold 1 =53] 136 132
Long bease hold 132 101 132 105
Short leasehold 169 151 1m 153
investment properties* 429 44 = =

1 imeestmend propevties are voived on o movket vilve bosis as of 31 Becember soch year by independent professional valsers who hove recent
experienor in the focation and type of propenty.
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20 Interests in associates and joint ventures

Apcounting policy

Inwestrnents in which the group, together with one or more parties, has joint cantral of an arrangement set up o undertake an economic
activity are dassified as joint ventures. The group dassifies nvestments in entities over which it has significant influence, and that are
neither subgidiaries [Note 22) nor joink ventures, 35 assorates.

Inwestrnents in associates and nterests in joint ventures are recognized using the eguity method. Under this method, such investments are
initially stabed at cost, including attributable goodwill, and are adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the group’s share of
net assets. Goodwill arises on the acquisition of interests in joint vertures and associates when the cost of investrment excesds the group’s
share of the net fair value of the azsodate’s or joint venture's identifiable assets and labilities.

An mvestment in an associate & tested for impainment when there is an ndiction that the investrment may be impaired. Goodwill an
acguisitions of interests in joint venbures and assodates is not tested separatedy for impainment.

Profits on transactions between the group and it associates and joink ventures are eliminated to the extent of the growg's interest in the

respective asociates or joink ventures. Losses are alio ebminated to the extent of the group®s inberest in the assodates or joink vertures
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset ransferred.

Principal associates of the group and the bank

Vocalink Holdings Ltd ("“Vecalink) 1s a principal associate of the bank and the group. Vocalink is incorporated in England and
its principal activity is that of providing ebectronic payments and transaction services. At 31 December 2015, the group had a
15.91% interest in the equity capital of Vocalink (2014: 15.91%). The carrying amount of the group’s interest was £60 milion
at 31 December 2015 [2014: £51 milbon). Vocalink s accounted for as an associate due to the group”s invelvement in the
operational acthities, policy-making deciskons and representation on the board of directors.

Interests in significant joint ventures

Vaultex UK Limited Is & joint venture of the bank and the group. Vaultex UK Umited ks incorporated in England and its principal
activity is that of cash management services. At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the group had a 50% Interest in
the £10 millkon issued equity capital.

21 Goodwill and other intangible assets

The group The bank
2018 014 ms pin

Emi Em Em £mm
Goodwill 5818 B, 140 a7 4
Present value of in-force long-& e busi {"FVIF) 546 454 -
Other intangible asets BT ] 575 [
At 31 December 7,041 7,54 Ered S48
Goodwill
Accounting policy

Gaoodwill arises on the aoquisition of subsidiaries, when the aggragate of the fair value of the congideration transferred, the amounk of army nan-
contralling interest and the faé value of any previowshy held equity interest in the acquires excsed the amount of the identifable assets and
liabities acquired. If the amownt of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired is greater, the difference & recognised mmediately in the
income satemient.

Intangible assets are recognised separately from goodwill when they are separable or arize from contractual or other legal rights, and their fair
value can be measured reliably.

Goodwill is allecated to cash-generating units ['0GL"5) for the purpose of impairment testing, which & undertaken at the lowest kevel at which
goadwill is monitared for intermal management purposes. The growp’s OGUS are based on global businessss. bmpadrment testing & performed
at least annually, or whenewer there is an indication of impairment, by comparing the recowerable amount of a CGU with its carrying amount.
The carrying amount of a CGU is based on its assets and Eabilities, induding sttributable goodwill. The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair valee less cost to sell and it value in wse. Valee inuse [VIL'] is the present value of the expedted future CGU cash flows. IF the
recowerable amourt is less than the carmying valee, an impairment lass (s charged to the income staternent. Goodwill is carried on balance
sheet at cost less accurnulated impairment losses,

At the dake of dispoial of a butiness, attributable goodwill iz included in the growun's share of net asdets in the calculation of the gain or lais on
dizpasal.

Critical accounfing esfimates and judgements

Gaodwill mpairment

The review of goodwill for Empairment reflects management’s best estimate of the futwre cash flows of the OGS and the rates uied to discount

these cazh flows, both of which ane subject to wncertain facors as follows:

= thee future cash flows of the OGLS are senditive to the cash flows projected for the periods for which detailed forecsts are available and to
assumptions regarding the long-term pattern of sustainable cash flows thereafter. Forecasts are compared with actual performance and
verifiable sconomic data, but they reflect management’s view of future business prospects at the time of the asgsssment; and

= the rates used to disoount future expected cash flows can have a significant effect on their valuation and are based on the costs of capital
assigned to individual 05Us. The cost of capital percentage is generally derived from a Capital Asset Pricing Model, which incorporates
imputs reflecting a number of financial and economic variables, incuding the rigi-free interest rate in the country concerned and a premium

for the risk of the business being evaluated. These variables are subject to Auctuations in external market rates and economic conditions
beyond management's control, are subject to uncertainty and requine the exercise of significant judgrment.
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The accuracy of forecasted cash flows is subject to a high degree of uncertainty in volatile market conditions. In Swuch market conditions,
managerment retests poodwill for impairment more frequently than annually to ensure that the asemptions on which the cash flow forecasts
are baged contine to reflect cumment market conditions and management’s best estimate of future business prospects.

The group
2015 2014
Em Em
Gross amount and Carryl ng amount
A 1 lamuary 6,140 BER
S puisitions{disposals ) = 5}
Exchange differences and other movements 322} [ELa1]
At 31 December 5,818 140
The bank
1S 014
Em Em
A 1 anuary 347 L]
Arpuisitions{disposals ) = 432
Exchange differences and other movements 5 (S}
At 31 Decembaer 347 342
Impairment testing

The group’s impalirment test in respect of goodwill allocated to each COGU |s performed as at 1 July each year, with a review for
Indicators of impairment at 31 December. At 31 December 2015, this review did not identify ary indbcators of iImpalrment. As
aresult, ne impairment tests have been perforred for &s at 31 December 2015. For all OGUs the annual test performed as at
1 luly remains the latest impairment test and the disclosures given are &s at 1 July. The testing at 1 July resulted in no
Impairment of goodwill.

Basis of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of all CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated was equal to its VIU at each respective testing date
for 2014 and 2015.

For each significant CGU, the VIU is calculated by discounting management’s cash flow projections for the CGU. The discount
rete used &5 besed on the cost of capital that the group allocates to inwestments in the countries within which the CGU
operates. The long-term growth rate i used to extrapolate the cash flows in perpetuity because of the long-term perspective
within the group of the business units making up the CGUs. For the goodwill impairment test conducted at 1 July 2015,
management's cash flow projections untll the end of 2019 were used.

During 2015 the allocation of goodwill to CGUs used by the group was aligned to that used by the HSBC Group, reflecting that
such balances originated from the same acquisitions.

Key assumptions in the VIU calculation

‘Goodwil at Discount beyond initial
1 July 2015 rate  cash flow projections
015 £m .3 %
Retail Banking and Wealth Manag 1,753 ™ 18N
‘Commeercial Banking 1,474 9% 1.E%
Global Banking and kMarkets 1847 10% 1E8%
Other s17
Total Goodwill 5,651
Previous Revised
allocatian allocation
i T £m £m ® %
Retail Banking and ¥Wealth Management 1,260 1,845 ] 4.1
Commercial Banking L) 1,525 1 4.3
Global Banking and kMarkets 4,409 2,084 1% 4.7%
Other - Hid
Total goodwill in the CGLs listed abowe B, 299 6,299
Management's judgement in estimating the cash flows of a CGU: the cash flow projections for each CGU are based on plans
approved by the Board.

Nominal long-terrm growth rate: this growth rate reflects GDP and inflation for the countries within which the CGU operates or
derives revenue from. The rates are based on IMF forecast growth rates as they represent an objective estimate of likely
future trends. The rates used for 2014 and 2015 do not exceed the long-term growth rates for the countries within which the
CGlUs operate or derive revenue from.
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Discount rate: the discount rate used to discount the cash flows s besed on the cost of capital assigned to each OGU, which is
derived using a CAPM. The CAPM depends on inputs reflecting a number of financial and economic variables induding the
risk-free rate and a premium to reflect the inherent risk of the business being evaluated. These variables are based on the
market’s assessment of the economic variables and management’s judgement. The discount rates for each OGU are refined to
reflect the rates of inflation for the cowntries withim which the CGU operates. In addition, for the purposes of testing goodwill
for impairment, management supplements this process by comparing the discount rates derived using the internally generated
CAPM with cost of capital rabes produced by external sources for businesses operating in similar markets. For 2014 and 2015,
Internal cost of capitel rates were conskstent with externally sourced rates. For the purpose of goodwill testing during 2015,
Internal rates were adjusted to reflect the uncertainty of the cash flows used In the test.

Sensitivities of key assumptions in calculating Vil

At 1 July 2015 Global Banking and Markets was sensitive to reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions supporting the
recoverable amount. In making an estimate of reasonably possible changes to essumptions management considers the
available evidence in respect of each input to the model such as: the external range of discount rates observable; historical
performance against forecast; risks attaching to the key assumptions underlying cash flow projections; and economic
cyclicality affecting long-term growth rates. It would have required reasonably possible adwerse changes in more than one
BssuPption bo cause an Impalrment.

The following table presents & summary of the key assumptions underlying the most sensitive inputs to the model for each
CGL; the key risks attaching to each; and details of a reasonably possible change to assumptions where, in the opinkon of
management, these could result in an impalrment.

Reasonably possible changes in key assumptions

Cash-generating unit  Imput Key assumptions Assoclated risks Reasonably possible change
Retail Banking and Cash flow Level of interest rates; Uncertzin regulatory environment;  Management has debermined that a
‘Wealth Management projections  Competibors’ positions within the  and reasonably possible change in any of
and Commercial market; and Customer remesdiation and the ke assumptions would mot
Banking Lewel and dhange in unemployment  regulatony actions. cause an impairment to be
TatEs. recognised.
Global Banking and Cash flow Lewel of interest rabes; and [Deferral or non-ocounmence: of Cash flow projections decrease by
Markeis projections  Recovery of European markets ower forecast ivterest rabe nises; .
the forecast period. Lowser than sxpected growth in key
markets; and
The impact of regulatory changes,
ncluding the ring fencing of the UK
retail bank.
[Hscount Discount rabe used is a reasonable  External evidence arises to suggest  Discount rate increases by 110 basis
rate estimate of 2 suitable market rate  that the rate used is not appropriate points, based on the high end of the
for the profile of the Business. o ithe business. range of broker estimates for

comparator Europsan banks with
significant investment banking

ations.
Lon g-term Business growth will reflect GOF Growth does not makch S0P or GOF Real GOP growth does nok occur or is
grosth rates  growth rates in the long term. forecasts fall. not reflected in performance.

The following table presents, the change required to the current assumptions to redwce headroom to nil [breakeven).

Changes to current assumptions to achieve ni headroom as at 1 July 2015

Increass | decrease)
DHscounk Cash Liveryg- bz
rate flow growth rabe
Cash-generating unit bps % bps
Global Banding and Markets 157 f20.1) (263)

150

435/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

HEEBC BAMK FLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

The present value of in-force long-term assuwrance business

Movement i PYIF
The group
2015 2014
Emi Em
Ar 1 lamuary 458 o0
Mddition from ounrent year nesw business 51 55
Mtovement from in-force business {induding investment retum wariances and dhanges in investment
assumptions) EL {192}
Transfer to assets classified as heid for sale’ - {77}
Exchange differences and other mowements 5 {30}
Ak 31 December 545 458

1 The transfer relotes fo the UK pensions business wihich was dossified as heid for sale b the first holf of the peor.

The group’s life iInsurance business Is sccounted for using the embedded value approach which, inter alia, provides a
comprehensive risk and valuation framework. The PVIF asset represents the present value of the shareholders’ interest in the
profits expected to emerge from the book of in-force policies.

PVIF-specific assumptions
The key assumptions used in the computation of PVIF for the group's main ife Insurance operations were:
2015 2014
France UK Life France LK Life
‘Weighted average risk free rate 1L57% 1.75% 121% 1658
Risk discount rate 2.58% 2.r5% 1.73% 2.15%
Expenses inflation 1.70% 4.56% 00% 46

The calculation of the PVIF is based upon assumptions that take into account risk and uncertadnty. To project these cash flows,
avarbety of assumptions regarding future experience is made by each insurance operation which reflects local market
conditions and management's judgement of local future trends.

The following table shows the effect on the PVIF of reasonably possible changes in the main economic assumgtion, risk-free
rates, across &ll insurance manufacturing subsidiaries.

Sensitivity of PVIF to changes in economic assumptions

PVIF
2018 2014
Em Erm

+ 100 basis points shift in risk-free rate = 24
— 100 basis points shift in risk-free rats’ [£5] |208)
1 Where o— 100 basis point shift in the risk free rote resuits bn o negotive rote, the gffect on PYIF bas been coiulatied wsing o minimum rafe of 0%

Due to certaln characteristics of the contracts, the relationships may be non-linear and the results of the sensitivity-testing
should not be extrapolated to higher levels of stress. In calculating the scenario, the shift in the risk-free rate results in
changes to investrnent returns, risk discount rates and bonus rates which are incorporated. The sensitivitles shown are before
actions thet could be taken by management to mitigate impacts and before resultant changes in policyholder behaviour.

Non-economic assurmpihons

The group determines the policyholder liabilithes for non-life manufacturers by reference to non-economic Bssumptions
Inchuding clakms costs and expense rates,

Policyholder lisbilities and PVIF for e manufacturers are determined by reference to non-economic assumptions including
maortality and/or morbidity, lapse rates and expense rates. The table below shows the sensitivity of profit for 2015 and total
equity at 31 December 2015 to reasonably possible changes in these non-economic assumptions at that date across all of the
group’s insurance manufacturing companies, with comparatiees for 2014,

Mortality and morbidity risk s typhcally associated with life insurance contracts. The effect on profit of an increase in mortality
or morbddity depends on the type of buskness being written.

Sensitivity to lapse rates is dependent on the type of contracts being written. For insurance contracts, the cost of claims is
funded by premiurms recelved and income eamed on the investment portfolio supporting the Mabdlities, For a portfolio of term
Bssurance, an increase in lapse rates typically has a negative effect on profit due to the loss of future premium income on the
lapsed policies.

Expense rate risk is the exposure to a change in expense rates. To the extent that increased expenses cannot be passed on to
policyhalders, an Increase in expense rates will have a negative impact on profits.
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Sensitivity to changes in non-economic assumptions

FUIF
2015 014
Emi Em
1% increass in mortality andfor morbidity rates {17} {17}
1% decrease in mortality andfor morbidity rabes 17 12
1% increass in lapss rates [F-1] {9}
1% decrease in lapse rates Frg 1
1% increase in expense rates 7} {31}
10% decrease in expense rates F. i1
Other intangible assets
The analysis of the movement of other intangible assets was &5 follows:
The group
Internally Cuestomerf
generated Furchased merchant
software Software  relationships Other Total
£m £m £m Em £m
Cost
At 1 lanuary 2015 1,540 203 20 16 1,973
Additians? 199 18 = = 217
Uspesals L] ] - (20}
Ampunts wrtben off |148) = = = |14}
Exchange differences 1) (1) - i) (22}
At 31 December 2015 1,588 1897 219 14 2,008
B lated isaticn and img
A 1 January 2015 935) {17) [163) [12) (1,281)
Amortisation charge for the year’ 183]) 17 11y - [Fakl]
impairment charge for the year’ {4%) - - - (48}
Disposals - 7 1 = ]
Amounts writhen off 146 = = = 145
Exchange differences 2 13 - - 15
A 31 December 2015 [1,008]) (168) [173) [12) (1.371)
Het carrying amownt at 31 December 2015 530 9 46 2 64T
Internally Customer)
gemnerated Purchased marchant
softweare Software  relationships Other Total
£m £m £m £m Em
Cost
A 1 anuary 2014 1,387 170 20 15 1,772
Additians’ 184 47 = 1 3z
1] o] - - %)
Amounts wntten off 1) - - - (1}
Exchange differences 5] {13) - - {18)
Othar changes 4] E - - 2
A 31 December 2014 1,540 203 20 1E 1,979
Acoumistated amortsation and impairment
A 1 January 2014 {TE5) (13 [151) (11} 11,064
Amortisation charge for the year? {178) {18) {12y (1) 20e)
impairment charge for the year’ - - - =]} 2
Depeads - E - - [
Amounts writhen off 1 - - - 1
Exchange differences 3 1 - - 14
Other changes 4 {33) - 2 {27}
Ak 31 December 314 {838) (171) [163) (12} 11,2481}
Het carmying amownt at 31 December 2014 B0S 32 57 4 ]
1 At 31 Decemiber X015, the group did not hove any congrocheal ¢ ts foooquine indongible eesets (2014: nil]l
Z The omaortisation and imp t chavges are recognised wathin the income shotement wader Amartisation and impairment of intongible ossets’.
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The bank
irternally
generated
softwane Orther Total

Em Em Emi
Cost
Ak 1 lamuary 2015 1,446 E ) 1,483
Additians’ 152 & 198
Amounts written off (145} - (248}
Exchange differences 1} (1} i2)
At 31 December 2015 1,491 42 1,533
Bt labed Isation and impai
A 1 lanuary 2014 (E54) s3) (&77)
Amortisation charge for the year! 1173) 5} (278}
Impairment charge for the year’ (45} = [ag}
Amounts wntten off 148 = 145
Exchange differences 1} - 1]
At 31 December 7015 {00} [18) (558}
Net camying amount at 31 December 2015 551 4 575
Cost
ax 1 lanuary 2014 1,04 mn 1,39
Additians* 177 5 182
Other changes - 2 2
Ax 31 December 2014 1,446 aw 1,453
Arpumuslated amortisation and impainment
Ax 1 fanuary 2014 | Fod) (&) {70d}
Amortisation changs for the year® {185} (5} {270}
Othar changes 1 (2} (1}
Ax 31 Becember 3014 (a4} (13} (&77)
Het carmying amownt at 31 December 2014 S&F 4 B06

1 At 31 Decemiber 2015, the bank did nof hove oy contrecivel commitmen t5 fo aoguine intangibie ozsets (2024 nlll.
2 The omarfisation and impairment chonges ane recognised wibhio the income shetement pnder ‘Amorfisation and impairment of intongible essefs’.
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22 Investments in subsidiaries

Accounting policy

The group dassifies investrments in entities which it controls as subsidiaries. The group consolidation palicy is described in Note 1(g)
Subsadiaries which are struchred entities are covered in Note 36,

The bank's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses, npairment losses recognised in prior periods are reversed
through the income statemernt if thers has been a change in the estimates used to determine the nvestment’s recoverable amount snce
the kast impairment loss was recognised.

Principal subsidiary undertakings of HSBC Bank ple

Cowntry of ~ HSBIC Bank pic's Share
Inconporation or Interest in dass

registration. equity capital

®

HEBC France France 499,99 Ordinary €5
HSBC Aszet Finance {UK) Limited England 100000 Ordinary £1
HSHC Bank 4.5. Turkey 100,00 #i-Common TRLY
B-Commaon TRLY
HSHC Bank intemational Limited Jersery 100000 Ordinary £1
HSHC Bank balta p.l.c Mattz paidic] Ordinary 030
HSHC Imvoice Finance (LK) Limdted England 100000 Ordinary £1
HSHC Life (LK) Limited England 100,00 Ordinary £1
HSHC Privarte Bank [} Limited England 100000 Ordinary £10
HSHC Frivarte Bank {C1.) Limited Guermsey 100,00 Ordinary LS51
HSBC Trinkaus & Burkhardt AG Germany BO.ES Shares of no par value
HSHC Trust Company (LK) Limited England 100000 Ordinary £5
hetarks and Spencer Retall Finanoial Services Holdings Limited England 10000 Ordinary £1

Structured entithes consolidated where the group owns less than 50 per cent of the voting rights:

Carrying walue of total
consolidated assets Mature of structured entity

Ebn
Barion Funding Linnited -] Socurities imestment conduit
Malachite Funding Limited [k Securithes investment conduit
Mazarin Funding Limited 13 Securithes imvestment conduit
Regency Assets Limited 11T Condult
Solitaire Funding Limited 432 Securities imesstment conduit
Turguoise Receivables Trusbes Limited ] Seoritisabion vehicke

Al the above make their financial statements up to 31 December.

Details of all group subsidiaries, as required under Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, are set out on pages 183 to 186,
The principal countries of operation are the same as the countries of incorporation.

23 Trading liabilities

Accounting policy

Trading Eabilities are clazsified as held for trading if they have been aoquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which thers
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit-taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the group enters inbe contractual

arrangemeants with counterparties, and are normally derecognised when extinguished. They are initially measored at faic value, with
subsequent changes in fair value and interest paid recognised in the income statement in Met rading income’.

Thee sabe of bormowed tecurities is classified as trading Eabdities.

Trading labilites
Thiz group The bank

2005 2018 2015 2014

Em Emi Em Em

Deposits by banis' 27,006 29444 24,113 24,518

Customer accounts’ 13,281 14,137 11,406 10,338

Other debt securities in isswe’ 13,083 14,330 8,176 10,801

Other liahikties - net shart pasitians 20,088 24,65 12,741 13,388

At 31 December 73,489 43 00 57,436 55 (150

1 Deposits by bowks and cestamer ocoounts inclede repos, settement accounts, stock lending ond other omowafs.
& ‘Ot debt securkties in lssue’ comprises shruchwned mofes issued by HSBC for which movket risks ove octively maonoged os parf of Erading portfolios.
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24 Financial liabilities designated at fair value
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Accounting policy

= Financial liabilities under unit-Snked and nonelinked investment contracts.

liability. See Mote 26 for contracts where the group acoepts significant insurance risk.

finandal assets are designated at fair value. Liab@ties ane at least equivalent o the

inwestment managernent services ane provided.

The criteria for designating instruments at fair value and their measurement are described in Note 14, The fair value designation, once

made, it Frevocable. Designated financial liabilities are recognised when the group enters into contracts with counterparties, which

is generally on trade date, and are normally derecog nised when extinguished. This section provides examples of such designations:

= Long-term debt msues. The interest payable on certain fived rate long-term debt securities Bsued has been matched with the mterest on
certain inberest rate swaps as part of a documented interest rate risk managesment strategy. An acoounting mismatch would arige if the
debt securities igued wers sccounted for at amortised cost, and this mismatch is eliminated through the fair value designation.

The group issues contracks to cuskomers thak contain ingurance risk, fmandal risk or a combination thersof. A conkract under which the
Broup accepts insignificant insurance risk from another party is not dassified as an ngurance contract, but is accounted for as a financial

Customer liabilities under linked and certain non-linked investment contracts ssoed by insurance subsidiaries and the corresponding

or transfier value which i caloulated by
reference to the value of the relevant underlying funds or indices. Premivms receivable and amounts withdrasn are accounted for as
increases or decreases in the liability recorded in respect of investrment contracts. The incrermental costs directly related o the acquisition
of new investrnent contracts or renewing existing imestrment contracts ane deferred and amortised over the period during which the

Fimancial labilitles designated at falr walue

Thiz group The bank
2015 I s 014
Em Em Em Em
Deposits by banls and customser acoounts 131 6 - -
Liabilithes to customers under investment confracis 928 1,017 - -
Dbt secunities in issue 16,019 18,553 9,889 13371
Subordinated kablities (rate 28) 1,554 2,526 1,924 2856
Preference shares {note 25} EFL) 330 = -
At 31 Decembser 19,001 23,852 11,813 16,137

The group

The carrying amount at 31 December 2015 of financial llabilities designated at fair value was £1,108 million higher (2014:
£1,496 million higher) than the contractual amount at maturity. At 31 December 2015, the accumulated amount of change in

feir value attributable to changes in credit risk was a loss of £93 million (2014: £247 million loss).

The bank

The carrying amount at 31 December 2005 of financlal liabilives designated at fair value was £811 million higher (2014: £1,082
millizn higher) than the contractual amount at maturity. At 31 December 2015, the accurnulated amouwnt of change in fair
value attributable to changes in credit risk was a loss of £28 milllon (2014: £151 millon boss).

25 Accruals, deferred income and other liabilities

The group The bank
2015 FI s 014
Em Em Em Em
Liabilities of disposal growps held for sale® - 4,35 - -
Aconsals and deferred income: 2470 2,531 1,582 1,518
amounts duse to investons in funds consolidated by the group 292 455 = -
Endorsements and acceptances Lrr] & gL
Share-based payment liability to HSBC Holdings 154 1491 134 148
Employes benefit liabilities 300 133 10 133
Other liahilties* 1,987 3,949 1,242 313
At 31 Decembaer 5,775 12,417 3,586 5389

1 The sole of the UK pension i e b s ¢ Jeted in 2015,

2 Wariation margin balances mesting the offset oriteria hove been reported os o deduction from derivative boionoes [Mote 30).
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26 Liabilities under insurance contracts

Accounting policy

The group issues contracts to customers that contain insurance risk, finandial risk or 3 combination thereof. A& contract under which the
group accepts significant insurance risk from another party by agreeing to compensate that party on the occurrence of a spedfied unoertain
Futwre ewent, is dagsified as an insurance contrad. An indurance contract may also trandfer financial gk, buk i sccourted for as an
insurance contract if the insuramce risk is significant.

Liabilities under insurance contracts

Liabilities under non-Enked life insurance contracts are caloulated by each life insurance cperation based on lecal achuarial principles.
Lishilities under unit-linked life inturance contracts are at lesst equivalent to the surrender or trandfar valoe which is calculated by
reference to the value of the relevant underhying funds or indices.

A liabilty adequacy test i$ carried owut on insurance liabilities to engure that the carying amount of the liabilities is sufficient in the Bght of
current estimates of futwre cash flows, When performing the liability adequacy test, all contractual cath flows are discounted and
compared with the carrying valee of the liability. When a shortfall is identified it is charged immediately to the income stabement.

Future profit participation on | -] ] discreti ¥ participation features

‘Where contracts provide discretionary profit participation benefits to palicyhalders, liabilities for these contracts include provisions for the
futwre discretionary benefits to palicgholders. These providions reflect actual performance of the investrent portfolio to date and
management expectation on the future performance in connection with the assets backing the contracts, as well as other experience
factars such as mortality, lapses and operational efficency, where appropeiate. This benefit may arise from the contractual terms,
regulation, ar past distribution policy.

Irvestment contracts with discretionary participation features

While Evestment contracts with discretionary participation features are financial instruments, they continue to be treated as insurance
contracts as permitted by IFRS 4. The group therefore recognises the premiums for those contracts as revenue and recognises as an
expanse the resulting increate in the carrying amount of the Rability.

In the caze of net unrealised investrment gaing on these contracts, whose discretionary benefits principally reflect the actual performance of
this investmient partfolio, the corresponding increste in the labfities is recognised in either the income statement or ather comprehens ive
incormae, following the t of the unrealised gains on the relevant assets. In the case of net unrealised losses, 3 deferred participating
asset is recognised only to the extent that its recoverability is highly probable. Movements in the liab#ties arising from realised gains and
lossest on redevant atoets are recognised in the income satement.

Lighilitles under insurance contracts

2015
Reinsurers'
Gross Share Mt
£m Em £m
Hon-Snked insurance contracts
ax 1 lanuary 532 1143 350
Clabms and benefits paid [hF=]] 72 157
Mowement in liabilitees to policyholders 185 |10a4) 5
Exchange differences and other mowements [&2) &8 {34)
Ak 31 December 506 (128 EL]
Investment contracts with discretionary participation features
A 1 lamuary 16083 - 16,083
Claims and benefits paid 1,375} = [1,375)
Movement in liabilites to policyholders 1,794 - 1,794
Exchange differences and ather mowements® |1, 248} - [1,248)
Ak 31 Decemiber 15254 = 15,254
Limfoed life Insurance contracts
A 1 lanuary 207 147 HeD
Claims and benefits paid (224} 4 (290)
Mowement in liabilites to policyholders 186 113) 1713
Exchange differences and other mowements 105 = 105
Ar 31 December S04 545] 843
Total liabilitkes to policgholders 16,664 183 16,482

1 includes movernant in Nobiities reloting to discrebionary profit panticipation heniefits due to poloyisalders arising from net warsalised invwestment gains
e i in ather ek Come.
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2014
Reinsurers’
Gross share Het
Em £m £m

Honelinked insurance contracts
Ar 1 lamuary o (448} el
Clabms and benefits paid {1407} 80 L]
Metowement in liabilites to policyholders Xry {117} 1086
Tramsfer to lizbilties of disposal grougs held for sale {338) E*- ] (1)
Exchange differences and other mowements {44} 15 [34)
Ak 31 December Ex e {14F) 350
Investment contracts with discretionany particdpation features
Ar 1 lamuary 15,587 - 15,587
Claims and benefits paid {1,407} - 11,407}
Mtowement in liabilites to policyholders 1,958 - 1,533
Tramsfer to liabilties of disposal grougs held for sale - - -
Elﬂ'llnpﬂflﬂrh:l:lnduﬂ'llrmu' [EED] - {430}
Ak 31 December 16, 0% - 16,083
Linked life insurance contracts
Ak 1 lamuary 2,408 43} 2362
Claims and benefits paid {247} 3 {244)
Mtovement in liabilites to policyholders =2 (7} 77
Tramsfer to lizbilties of disposal grougs held for sale {1,521} - {1,5x1)
Exchange differences and other mowements {14} - (14}
Ak 31 December a7 (47} o]
Total liabilities to policyhalders 13,52k {155) 17,333

& ncludes movermnant in Nobiities relating to déscrebonary profit panticipation henifits dee to poliopialders arising from nef warsalised lnvwestment gains
e i in ather ek Come.

The increase in llabilithes to policyholders represants the aggregate of all events ghing rise to additional Nabilities to
policyholders in the year, The key factors contributing to the movement in liabilities to policyholders include death claims,
surrenders, lapses, liabilities to policyholders created at the initlal inception of the policles, the declaration of bonuses and
other amounts attributable to policyholders.

27 Provisions

Accounting policy

Prowvisions are recogriised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required o settle a current legal or constructive
ohbligation, which has arizen as a result of past events, and for which a reliable estimate can be made.

Crifical accounfing esfimates and judgements

Provisions

Judgerment is involved in determining whether s present obligation exists and in estimating the praobability, timing and amaunt of any
outflows. Professional expert advice is taken on the assessment of Ftigation, progerty (including onerous contracts) and semilar obligations.
Provisions for legal proceedings and regulatory matters typically require a higher degres of judgement than other types of provisions. When
matters are ak an eady stage, accounting judgernents can be difficult because of the: high degree of uncertainty assocated with determining
whiether a present obligation exists, and estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that may arise. As matters progress,
managerment and legal advisers evaluate on an ongaing basis whether prowisions should be recognised, rewising previous judgements and
eitimates as appropriste. At more advanced stages, it i typically easier to make judgements and estimates around a better defined set of
possible outcomes. However, the amount provisionsed can rerain very sensitive o the assumptions used. There could be a wide range of
passible outcomes for ary pending begal proceedings, investigations or inguiries. A a regult, it is ofven not practicable to quantify a range of
passible outcomes for individual matters. It is also not practicable to meaningfully guantify ranges of potential outcomes in aggregate for
these types of provisions because of the diverse nature and dircumstances of such matters and the wide range of uncertainties invalved.
Provisions for custormer remediation alio require significant levels of estimation and judgement. The amownts of provisions recognised
depend on a nurnber of different assurmptions, for example, the volume of inbound complaints, the projected period of inbound complaint

wolumes, the decay rate of complaint volumes, the population identified as systemically mis-sald and the number of policies per custome>r
complaint.
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Prowisions
The group 2015 14
Legal proceedings
[ and regulatary
remediation miathers Oiher Total Total
Emi Emi Em Em £mi
At 1 larmary 1,041 A% xid 1,707 1,707
Mdlnllmhﬂnmmpmm’ 456 Bll 08 1,275 1,831
Proulsions utilised |548) 1=} (4=) (k-] 11,553)
Amounts reversed (&0} (16} [4=) (144} {1}
Arcpuisition/disposal of subsidiariesbusinesses - - - - F
Exchange and other mowvements 1} n (17} 5 (&)
At 31 December 258 254 305 2,057 1,707
2ms 14
The bank Legal proceedings
Customer  and regulatory
remediation miagtters Other Tatal Total
Emi Emi Em Em ]
At 1 laruary 250 388 a7 1345 1,1
Additional prowisions/increase in prosisions Erdl G4 147 1122 1,457
Prowtsions utilised {431} [FE-c1] (13} -1 11,247}
Amounts reversed {76} {1} {15) {202} #7)
Exchange and other mowvements = 36 (1) 14 1
At 31 December 54 214 154 1,702 1,345

1 Other inchudes wrwinding of discawnts af £4 milan [2014: £4 milian) in raletion o vacant space provisions,
Provisions include E868 million (2014: £1,041 midllisn) in respect of customer redress programmes, The most significant of
these provishons are as follows and relate to both the group and bank, except where stated.

() E701 million (2014: £704 million) relating to the growp’s estimated liability for redress in respect of the possible mis-selling
of Payment Protection Insurance ["PPI') policles in previous years. An increase in provisions of £359 milion was
recognised during the year primarily reflecting an increase in inbound complaints by Claims Manegement Companies
compared to previous forecasts and management's current best estimate of the impact on provisions of the FCA
consultation on the introduction of a time bar and Plevin, (a 2014 decision of the UK Supreme Court which held that,
Judged on its own facts, non-disclosure of the amounts of commissions payable in connection with the sale of PPl to a
custorner created an unfair relationship under the provisions of the UK Consumer Credit Act).

Cumulative provisions made since the Judiclal Review ruling In the first half of 2011 amount to £2,937 million of which
£2 298 million has been paid as at 31 December 2015,

The estimated liability for redress is calculated on the basis of total premdums pald by the customer plus simple interest of
8% per annum [or the rate inherent in the related loan product where higher). The basis for calculating the redress labdlity
ks the same for single premium and regular premium polickes. Future estimated redress levels are based on historically
observed redress per policy.

& total of approdmately 5.4 milion PPl policies have been sold by the group since 2000, generating estimated revenues of
£2.6 billion at 2015, The gross written premiums on these polices was approximately £3.4 billlion. At 31 December 2015,
the estimated total complaints expected to be received was 1.9 milion, representing 35% of total policies sold. It s
estimated that contact will be made with regard to 2.3 milllon policles, representing 42% of total polickes sold, This

estimate includes inbound complaints as well as the group’s proactive contact exercise on certain policles [‘outbound
contact’).

The following table detalls the cumulative number of policies st 31 December 2015 and the number of daims expected in
the furture:

Cumulative to Future

31 December 2015 expected

Inbsgund carnplaings’ (0005 of policies) 1215 e

Outbound contact (0005 of palicees) 624 101
Respanse rate to outbound contact 4a% 5%
fwerage uphold rate per claim® T4% H1%

fwerage redress per claim £2.001 £1.861

Comglaints to the Frandal Ombudsman Servics ('FOS7) {0005 of policies) 11 51
fwerage uphold rate per FOS complaint 6% 5E%

1 Excludes involid caims where compieinant fas not keld o PP paficy and FOS compimines.
2 Cimimes inciwde inbound ond respanses ta suthbound contact, but suclude FOS cormplaints

£ 100,000 increase/decrease in the total inbound complaints would increase/decrease the redress provision by
approximately £149 milllon. Each 1% increase/decrease in the response rate to our outbound contact exercise would
Increase/decrease redress provision by approximately £10 million.
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(i) At 31 December 2015, a provision of £59 milllon (2014: £200 million) was held relating to the estimated Rability for
redress in respect of the possible mis-selling of Interast rate dervatives in the UK. The provision relates to the estimated
redress payable to customers in respect of historical payments under derivative contracts. A release from the provision of
£25 million [2014: £175 millbon increase) was recorded during the year.

(i) Provisions of £49 million (2014: £80 million] for the estimated cost of redress in relation to the provision for possibde mis-
selling of wealth management products. £31 milllon was utilised during the year.

Further details of legal proceedings and regulatory matters are set out in Note 37, Legal proceedings include ciwil court,
arbitration or tribunal proceedings brought against HSBC companles (whether by way of claim or counterclaim) or chl
disputes that may, if not settled, result in cowrt, arbitration or tribunal proceedings. Regulatory matters refer to Investigations,
reviews and other acthons carried out by, or in response to the actions of, regulators or law enforcement agencles in
connection with alleged wrongdolng.

Ao included within ‘other’ in the above table, for the group and bank, are provisions for onerous property contracts of £62
milllban (2014: £71 rillion) and £57 million (2014: £67 million) respectively, relating to the discounted future costs assoclated
with leasehold properties that have become wacant. The provisions cover rent vodds while finding new tenants, shortfalls in
expected rent recelvable compared with rent payable, and the cost of refurbtshing the bulldings to attract tenants,
Uncerteinthes arise from movements in market rents, delays in finding new tenants and the timing of rental reviews.

The Growp has undertaken a review of compliance with the fixed-sum unsecured loan agreement requirements of the UK
Consumer Credit Act (CCAL £113 million has been recognised as at 31 December 2015 [2014: £243 million) within ‘Other
liabilities’ for the repayment of interest to customers primarily where annual statements did not remdnd them of their right to
partially prepay the loan, notwithstanding that the customer loan documentation did include this right. The cumulative
liability to date (s £384 million, of which payments of £271 millkon have been made to customers. There |5 uncertainty as to
whether ather technical requirements of the CCA have been met.

28 Subordinated liabilities

The group Thi bark
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m Em £m £m
Subgrdinated lablities:

— A amartised cost 8537 8,858 7,497 7,854
Subardinated liabilities 7427 6,677 7,497 7,854
Preferencs shares I Ty | 2i8i - -

— Disignated at fair value [note 24) 1,923 2,856 1,924 2,856
Subardinated liabilities | 1,554 2526 1,524 2,856 |
Prafarerios shares 329 330 - -

10,450 11,714 9,421 10,710
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Subordinated borrowings of the group

Carrying amount
2015 014
Emi £m
LIs51,450m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2021 978 930
LSE450m Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2021 304 89
Us5275m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2021 186 176
£350m 58 Callable Subsrdinated Motes 2023 E ) 388
E300m 6.5% Subordinared Motes 2023 9% 59
EESDm Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2023 a7 507
US5300m 7.65% Subordinated Notes 2025 260 256
LS5, 400m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2025° 945 -
E2650m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 229 191 203
E350m S.E?Sﬂﬁlhbhsmdlmudfhep-upﬂmml 384 358
ES00m 5.375% Subordinated Nobes 2033 51 581
E225m 6.25% Subordinated Motes 2041 24 24
EBQ0m 4.75% Subordinated Motes 246 593 553
£700m 5.844% Nonr-cumulative Step-up Perpetual Preferred Securities’ Toa 700
£300m 5.B62% Mon-cumulative Stepeup Perpetual Preferred Securities® EFL 330
UEETS0m Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes 506 481
USE500m Undated Flaating Rate Primary Capital Notes 37 a1
LISE300m Unidated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes [Series 3) 202 152
US52, B62m Floating Rate Perpetual Subordinated Debt 14931 1,836
E500m 4.75% Callable Subardinated Notes 2020° - 514
ES00m Callable Subordinated Floating Rate Notes 2020° - X
£©1,000m Floating Rate Subordinated Loan 2017 - ELE)
Lasilig] 7.75% Hon-curnulative Subardinated Motes 2040° - Tl
Other subordinated Eabilties less than £100m 654 [EE]
10,450 11,714

1 I March 2018 the infevest rate changes to become the rate per annum which i the sum of the gross redermptian wheld of the then prevailing
five year UK gilt phus 1.50%

Z in November 2025 the interest rate changes to three manth steriing LIBOR plus 1.50%.

3 fn November 2081 the dictribution rate chonges to six manth stevling LIBOR ples 1. 76%.

4 fn Apeil 2020 the distribution rote changes to sy month sterfing LIBOE plus 1E5%,

5 In Septemnber 2015 the bank colled and redesmed the 4. 75% Collable Subsordingeted Motes 2020 and the Collable Subordingted Floating Rate
Mates 2020 of por.

& th::mbd\rEEt,;a‘h Bark caled and rédeemed the Flacting Raté Subardingted Loan A 7 and the 7. 75% Nan-curnwlative Subsrdinafed
Mates 2040 at par.

Featnotes 1 to 4 oll relate to instruments that are redesmabie ot the aption of the ixsuer an the date of the change i the interest ar

distribution rate, ond an subsequent rate reset and poyrment dates in some coses, fubyect to prioe notification te the Prudentio! Regulatisn

Autharity.

Subordinabed liabilities rank behind sendor obligations and generally count towards the capital base of the group. Where

applicable, capital securities may be called and redeemed by the group subject to prior notification to the PRA and, where

relevant, the consent of the local banking regulator. If not redeemed at the first call date, coupons payable may step-up

or becomne floating rate based on interbank rates.

Interest rates on the floating rate capital securities are generally related to interbank offered rates. On the remaining capital

securities, interest is payable at fixed rates of up to 7.65%.
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29 Maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides an analysis of consolidated total assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet commitrments by residual
contractual maturity at the balance sheet date. Asset and Mability balances are incleded in the maturity analysis as follows:

= except for reverse repos, repos and debt securities in ssue, trading essets and liabilities (including trading derivatives) are
included in the ‘On demand’ time bucket, and not by contractual maturity because trading balances are typically held for
short periods of time;

= financial assets and liabilithes with no contractual matwrity (such &s equity securities) are included in the ‘Due over 5 years'
time bucket. Undated or perpetual instruments are classifled based on the contractual notice pericd which the counterparty
of the instrurment ks entitled to ghve. Where there is no contractual nothce period, undated or perpetual contracts are
Included in the ‘Due over 5 years' time bucket;

» financial instrurments included within assets and liabilites of disposal groups held for ale are classifled on the basis of the
contractual maturity of the underlying instruments and not on the basks of the disposal transaction.

Loan and ather credit-related commitrments are classified on the basis of the earliest date they can be drawn down.

Cosh flows poyoble under financlal Habilities by remalning controctual moturities

The group
Due D
botwean betweon
On  Due within Jand 12 land & s after
d 3 t thes years 5 years Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m £m

31 Dexember 2005
Deposits by banis 18,204 3,047 455 2,503 63 24,272
Customaer accounts 289,864 31,039 9. 8579 2131 127 333,080
Repurchase agresments B, 0B 10,060 B61 - - 17,067
Trading kabidities Ta A = = = = 73,483
Financial lizhiities designated at fair value 190 187 3,343 10,199 8,135 20,054
Denhatives 161,191 112 413 Tar | 162,880
Diebt secunities in issue 110 11972 5,491 3,918 BEH 26,259
Subordinated kabilities - 45 107 1,006 8337 9,495
Other fimanoal labilities 2,591 1202 T 115 417 5,502

552,005 ST,ETD 25,326 0,659 16,318 671,938
Loan commitments 130,114 o] Taa 164 2 131,633
Financial guarantes contracts 3135 1,625 4,085 2,724 2_166 13,735
31 December 2005 685,274 59,904 30,155 3,547 18,486 817 3686
31 December 2014
Deposits by banis 18,550 6,217 1,062 1,352 104 27630
‘Customer accounts 300,408 33,119 9262 4,710 a8 I4EETE
Repurchase agresments 110 19,4573 31781 - - 23 363
Trading kabdli ties 42 500 - - - - A3800
Financial lizbilities designated at fair value 118 1,257 1418 10,204 8,651 23,748
Denatives 186,160 183 683 2,048 ) 189 543
Dbt secunities in issue 3 13,753 LT F) 8 313 452 29383
Subordinated kabilities prioe] 45 1 1,040 8,530 o 850
Other financal labilities 4,454 1,78 75 200 482 7743

S04, O 75,908 28656 22,957 18950 140,575
Loan commitmeents 134,308 T 280 124 5 135582
Financial guarantes contracts 33497 1,827 31754 2178 2309 13,453
i 31 December 2014 731,762 78442 33,790 25,257 288 885,549
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The bank
Due Due
betwesn betweon
On  Due within Jand 12 land & D after
d 3 t ithes years 5 years Tatal
Em £m £Em £m £m Em
31 December 200%
Dieposits by banks 19,584 3,510 2,818 3,047 316 29,075
Customer acoounts 141,531 22,331 B,534 1,185 Sh3 it
Repurchase Agreements 44571 5439 a7z - - 11,383
Tracling babdi thes 57,436 - - - - 57,436
Financial lizhilities designated at fair value - 107 3,254 5,839 31537 12,737
Denhatives 147,183 114 347 SE2 138 148 399
Diebt secunities in issue - 4,059 6,832 1,287 S04 12,487
Subordinated kabilities = a4 6 1,086 7,591 8747
Other financal labilities 2,06 T84 342 5 4 3,181
472,751 36,388 20,720 13,001 12,713 555,583
Loan commitmaents 92,614 147 145 .5} 2 92,989
Firancial guarantes contracts 513 2027 3,535 2,388 2343 10,853
At 31 Diecember 7015 565,878 38,562 24,330 15,477 14,958 59, 065
ix 31 December 3014
Deposits by banis 2051 ThEL a7 -] 1,158 EF v ]
Customer accounts 254,978 15,258 7850 2,383 1 283,440
Repurchase agresments - 15667 TE8F - - 18304
Trading kabdities 55,009 - - - - 54,009
Financial lisbilities designated at fair value - 1,242 31178 7,BED S0a2 17172
Denkvatives 160,185 183 853 1,602 68 162,501
Diebt secunities in issue - 4,195 7481 2,78 842 15, 26
Subordinated kabilities - a4 5 1,582 7,144 8750
Other fimnanoal labilities 3,570 5TE 313 & 4 LE]
448,701 47826 23,064 16,337 16,511 602,439
Loan commitmeents 96,504 112 118 46 5 96, TES
Financial guarantes contracts 473 2575 1531 2,130 el ] 10 Gk
31 December 2014 545,678 50,513 15,713 18,513 18,775 10,152
Muotwrity analysis of financial ossets and financlial Kobilities
The group
At 31 Deoember 7015
D after more
Drue watthin than
onE yoar onE yar Total
Em Em Emi
Assets
Financial assets designated at fair value Fi 6,583 6,819
Loans and advances to banks 18,044 4178 23239
Loans and adwvances to oestomers 90,954 167,550 258,506
Rewerse repurchase agreemsents: non trading 19,819 o8 30,537
Financial investments 9,593 61,359 71,352
Other fimandal asseis 1,800 172 1,872
At 31 December 7015 151 268 240,550 392 418
Liabilrtses
Deposits by banis 1,760 2,447 24,302
Customer accounts 330,310 2,500 332 830
Repurchase agresments — non trading 17,000 = 17,000
Financial liahiities designated at fair value 3,94 15,707 18,001
Diebt secunities in issue 21,451 4,518 26,089
Other fimancal labilities 2,374 337 2711
Subordinated kabilities 105 BAT? 8,527
At 31 Diecember 7015 396,294 34,046 430,380
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&t 21 December 2014
Duewithin  Due after mare

aneyear tham ane year Total
Em Em £
Asseis
Financial assets designated at fair value aird BE5T B, 255
Loans and advances to banks 21,384 3,503 25242
Loans and advances to oustome s a8 &1% 168 &35 257 353
Reverse repurchase agreemsnts —non trading 41,889 T8 41,545
Financial investments 5,181 B7,013 6154
Other fimandal assets [ Ny T2 5244
x 31 December 3014 176,796 236, B0 413,396
Liabilrtses
Deposits by banis 26,191 1,393 27,540
Customer accounts 43T 2. Tuy 346 507
Repurchase agresments — non trading 3353 - 23353
Financial lizhiities designated at fair value 3449 15,103 13,552
Diebt secunities in issue 23,106 5215 2rar
Other fimancal labilities 8 5% k0] 4,208
Subordinated kablities 4 8258 ]
31 December 2014 Lrrf ] 38,304 445,957
The bank
At 31 December 3015
Duewithin  Due after mone
onE year thian one year Total
Em Em Em
Azzets
Financial assets designated at fair value - - -
Loans and adwances to banks 13,790 2,871 16,861
Loans and advances to oestomers 75,858 125,499 205,398
Rewerse repurchase agreemsents —non trading 24,4339 453 24,893
Finanicial investmenits 5,589 34,000 39,899
Other fimandal assets 1,663 & 1,669
At 31 Diecember 7015 121,680 166, 840 288,5M)
Liabilrises
Dieposits by banks 25,710 3,343 29,073
Customer accounts 270,458 1,082 271526
Repurchase agresments — non trading 11,278 - 11,375
Financial lisbilities designated at fair value ERF. ] 8887 11,813
Diebt secunities in issue 10,&73 1,883 12,356
Other fimandal liabilities 1,714 4 1,718
Subordinated kabilities - 7,497 7457
At 31 December 7015 22 96X 12,296 345,758
At 31 December 2014

Assets
Financial assets designated at fair value a - a
Loans and advances to banks 16, 484 1312 15776
Loans and advances to oustome s 77048 123788 200,871
Reverse repurchase agreemsnts —non trading 36,3491 - 38391
Financial investments 14,259 34,199 A48 438
Other finandal assets L] 12 5,108
¢ 31 December 3014 150,141 160,244 310, 350
Liabilrtses
Deposits by banis 5843 3,540 31,383
Customer accounts 280,361 TN 2RI EET
Repurchase agresments — non trading 18 2ok - 18393
Financial lizbilities designated at fair value 3195 13932 16,137
Digbt secunities in issus 11,578 1372 14,950
Other fimanoal labilities 3473 11 3,450
Subordinated kabilities - 7854 7854

Ak 31 December 314 344,740 30,035 374,754
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Accounting policy

sirmultansously ["the offset critesia’].

Financial astets and financial liabiFtes are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance shest when there & a legally enforceable
right ta offset the recognised amaownts and thene is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and seitle the liabiliy

The table below sets out amounts of enforceable netting meeting the offset criteria and the amount of enforceable netting

that does not meet the offset criteria:

Financial assets and llabiities subject to
enforceable netting

Fnancial assets

Denivatives

Reverse repurchase, sscuribies bomowing
and sirnllar agreements

Classified as:

= trading assets

— non-trading assets

Loans and advances to customes at
amortised cost

At 31 December 7015

Financial Kablities

Denivatives

Repurchase, securities lending and similar
agresments

Clasgified as:

— trading liabilities

— nan-trading kabdlities

Cuskomer accounts at amortised cost

At 31 December 7015

Financial zssets

Denivatives

Reverse repurchase, sscuribies bomowing
and similar agreements

Classified as:

= trading assets

— man-trading assets

Loans and advances to ostomers ak
amortised cost

Az 31 December 3014

Financial Kshilities
Denhatives

Repurchase, securities lending and similar
agresments

Classified as:

— trading liabilities

= non-trading kabdlities
‘Customer accounts at amortised cost

g 31 Becember Hi4*

Net amoant

Related amounts not offser’ adter all

Gross Amnurnts Amsourits Fimancial  Monecazh Cazh  enforceable
amaunts* offset  afteroffset  instruments  collateral  collateral offsex
£m Em £m £m Em £m Em
273,854 {58.151) 165,703 [125.841]  |5084)  [20.452) 14,318
62,657 {29,479) 33,178 (388]  32,534) 178y =
| coms| omoml] stsesl|  pes| gmsem| el |
57,585 {28,455 246,086 (366)|  (27,543) {178 -
50,174 {20,041} 30,133 [26,874) - - 3,2%8
336,685 (107,671} 229,004 [153,081)  (37,728) (20,6304 17,575
218,496 (58,151) 160,345 [125.848)  (7.8634)  (19,318) 7,547
53,520 (23,479) 30,041 81} (29,552) 18y -
| @)l eoem| el | Gesenll sl o)
46,175 (23,475) 16,696 [51)||  {16,587) (18 -
&1 857 {20,041} 33,826 [26,874) - - 6,652
331,583 (107 &71) 773,813 [152,811)  (37,566)  (19,338) 14,398
132,252 (1481709 188,082 [146,995) (3,036} (23 344y 12,817
&5,548 (40,812} 24,738 [3,284)  (41,204) {158y -
|l o seostl  ame|_osamfl ol |
79,913 {40,562) 39,351 (3,284)|  j35,209) {158 -
61,718 {22,182} 79,536 [35,920) - - 3,818
474,818 {203 164) 90,354 [186,199) (44430}  (33.502) 18,253
133,918 (1481704 188,045 [147.004) 4018} (2 118y 11,503
T2.804 {40,812} 33,007 [3,285)  [28,743) [BE) -
| i) e ol pas| ol esl| o)
53,587 {40,562) FEL (3,2%5)|  j19,888) (B%) -
65,910 {22 142) 43,78 (35,920 - - 7,808
471000 {20 164} 261,855 [i86,208) (33781}  (33,184) 14,711

1 Esclirdes amawnes for which there are no enforcenhie netting osgréements. At 37 December 2015, the amount of cosh waviation margin
received that has been offset agoinst the gross devivatives osfets wos £1,609 milian, The amownt of cash morgin pold that hos been affset
against the gross derivetive Nablithes wosr £2, F00miWan,

Z Reloted amounts mat offset

For derfvmtive assets ond Nabilities, the finoncial imstroments’ column identifies amounts that are subject to set off only in the event of

default, insolvency or bankrupty.

Frigphiy Wqunid securities wiiich are legolly tronsferred end can be Gguidated in the event of counterparty defout.
¥ The X114 comporatives howe been restated to éxclude amownts not subject to enforceable masher netting ogreements and similar

agresments
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3 Foreign exchange exposures

The group’s structural forelgn currency exposure is represented by the net asset value of its forelgn currency equity and
subordinated debt investments in subsidiary undertakings, branches, joint ventures and associates.

The group’s management of structural forelgn currency exposures ks discussed In the risk section in the Report of Directors.
Net structural foreign currency exposures

Currency of structunol exposure
2015 2014
£m Em
Eurne 11,313 10,038
U5 dollars 200 Taz
Turkish bira 7] a7e
South African rand 180 190
Russian roubds 13 104
Others, each less than £100 millan o] 248
Tatal 13,3584 12,248

32 Called up share capital and other equity instruments

Accounting policy
Financial instruments issued are dassified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer cash, other financial assets or issue a

variable number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs directly sttributable to the issue of squity mstruments are thown in equity
ai a desdusction from the procseds, net of @

Issued and fully paid capital
HSEC Bank ple £1.00 ordinary shares

Number £m
1 Janmary 2015 796,969,110 797
Sharnes issued - -
31 Dexember 2005 ‘796,965,110 757
1 Janusary 2014 796,969, 108 a7
Share issued 2 =
31 December 2014 796,969,110 a7
HSEBC Bank ple £1.00 preferred ordinary shares

Number ]
1 lanumary and 31 December 20015 1 -
1 Jaruary and 31 December 2004 1 -

The preferred ordinary share ranks parl passu in all respects with the ordinary shares and with all other shares expressed to
rank parl passu therewith. It carries the same rights and is subject to the same limitations as the ordinary shares but in
addition the preferred ordinary share confers:

(1) on each and ary distribution of profits by the bank on any class of share [other than the ordinary shares), the right to
recelve, in priority to any other share, the first £100 of any amount so distributed; and

(i) on &y distributhon on & winding-up of the bank (but not on any redemption, reduction or purchase of any share capital),
the right to recelve out of the assets of the bank svallable for distribution, in priority to any other share, a surm equal to the
nominal amount of the preferred ordinary share and any premiurm pakd on the issue thereof.

HSBC Bank ple US50.01 non-cumulative third dollar preference shares

umber £000
At 1 January and 31 December 2015 35,000,000 172
At 1 tanwary and 31 December 2014 35,000,000 12

The bank has no obligation to redearmn the preference shares but may redesm them in part or in whobe at any time, subject to
the prior consent of the Prudential Regulation Authority. Dividends on the preference shares in issue are pald annually at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board of Directors, The Board of Directors will not declare a dividend on the preference
shares in lssue if payment of the dividend would cause the bank not to meet the capital adeguacy requirements of the
Prudential Regulation Authority or the profit of the bank, available for distribution as dividends, is not sufficient to enable the
bank to pay in full both dividends on the preference shares in ssue and dividends on any other shares that are scheduled to be
paid on the same date and have an equal right to dividends or if payment of the dividend Is prohibited by the rights attached
to any class of shares in the capital of the bank, excluding ordinary shares. The preference shares in issue carry no rights to
conversion into ordinary shares of the bank. Holders of the preference shares in issue will be able to attend any general
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meetings of shareholders of the bank and to vote on any resolution proposed to vary or abrogate any of the rights attaching to
the preference shares or any resolution proposed to reduce the pald up capital of the preference shares. If the dividend
payable on the preference shares in Issue has not been pakd in full for the most recent dividend period or any resolution is
proposed for the winding-up of the bank or the sale of its entire business then, in such circemstances, holders of preference
shares will be entitled to wote on all matters put to general meethngs. In the case of unpald dividends the holders of preference
shares in lssue will be entitled to attend and vote &t any genaral meetings until such time as dividends on the preference

shares have been pakd in full, or 8 sum set aside for such payment in full, in respect of one dividend period.
Al shares In lssue are fully padd.

Other equity instruments
HEBC Bank ple odditional ter 1 instruments

2015 2014
Em Erm

£1,0886m Undated Subordinated &dditional Tier 1 lnstrument kssued 2014
[Caltabile December 2009 onwards) 1,088 1,088

£1,100m Undated Subordinated &dditional Tier 1 instrument issued 2014
[Callzhle December 2004 anwards) 1,100 1,100

i1, 500m Unidated Subordinated R bl Additional Tier 1 instr issued 20015

[Callzhle December 2000 onwards) 1,388 -
At 31 Diecembser 3,584 2,198

The bank has ssued capital instruments that are included in the group’s capital base as fully CRD IV compliant additional ther 1
capital.

Interest on these Instrurnents will be due and payable only at the sole discretion of the bank, and the bank has sole and
absolute discrethon at all times and for any reason to cancel (in whole or in part) any interest payment that would otherwise be
payable on any date. There are limitations on the payment of principal, Interest or other amounts if such payments are
prohibited under UK banking regulations, or other requiremernits, if the bank has insufficlent distributable items or if the bank
fadls to satisfy the solvency condition as defired in the Instruments’ terms.

The instruments are undated and are repayable, at the opthon of the bank, in whole at the initial call date, or on any Interest
Payment Date after the initial call date. In addition, the instruments are repayable at the option of the bank in whole for
certaln regulatory or tax reasons, Any repayments require the prior consent of the Prudential Regulation Authorty. These
Instruments rank parl passu with the bank's most sendor cless or classes of lssued preference shares and therefore ahead of
ordinary shares. These instruments will be written down in whole, together with ary acorued but unpakd interest if either the
group's solo or consolidated Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio falls below 7.00%.

33 Notes on the cash flow statement
Mon-cash items included in profit before tax

Thee group The bani
2015 014 215 2014
£m Em £m £m
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 53 532 418 412
Share-baged payrnent expense 212 16k 180 118
Credit-related impairment losses 147 233 462 458
Provisions raised 1,131 1,529 1,020 1,420
Impairment of investments (15} {203) [h1] 12)
ChargeToredit) for defined benefit plans 28 123 2 )
Aocretion of discounts and amortisation of premiums LR (5&) [45) {8}
2518 2918 2,033 2,527

Change in operating assefs

The group Tha bank
2015 04 205 2004
Em £mi £m £m
Changs in prepayments and acorued incoms 75 214 57 1
Change im met trading securities and net derivatives 4,532 (5,335) B0 (2E0)
Change ini loans and advances to banks i (5,245) 1,238 (4,B38)
Changs in loans and advances to ousbomers {1,901} 15,543 1,330 15,381
Change in reverse repurchase agreements = non-trading 6,354 11,150 8,512 8,159
Change in financial assets designated at fair value: T 9,16 ] 1874
Changs in other assets 7,082 (7,084) 7,082 (3,718)
17,1528 15,031 19,029 18,204
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Change in operating liabilities

The group The bank
208 o4 15 e
Em Em Em Em
Change im accruals and defered income (&a) (asa) 73 (208}
Change in deposits by banks {3,388) {1,158} 2310} 11,072}
Changs in customer accounts {13,677} T5 {11,161 1,642
Change in repurchase agreements - non-trading (5,353 (42, ) |7,008) (32,908}
Change in debt secunties in issue (1,852} 14.574) 2.554) 4,538}
Change in financial liabilities designated at fair value {2,672} {11,424} {3,424) {5.279)
Change in other abilities (5,085 577 13.963) (515}
{33,087 ) {58, 960) {30,357} (43,561}

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy

Cash and cash equivalents include highly Bquid investments that are readily convertible to nown amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insagnificant risk of change in valee. Such investrments are normallly those with less than thres months’ matudity from the dake of

acguisition.

Thiz group The bank

2015 2014 M5 4

£m Em Em £m
Cash and balances at central banis 39,749 42 853 3875 41,424
Items in the course of collschion from other banis 1,378 a7y 5493 23]
Loans and adwvances to banks of one month or less 143%8 15,558 11,200 12 088
Rewerse repurchase agreemsnts with bankcs of one month or less 7245 12,298 4,830 7816
Treasury bills, other bills and certificates of deposit less than
thres months 98 LEE 578 14
Less: ftemis in the course of transmission to other banks |S&3) (BET) (236 [Ex 1]
Total cash and cash equivalents® 62,995 71,500 56,080 51,543

1 Totol cosh and cosh equivaients include Hhe followimg amounts that are not evoloble for use by the growp: W held by foreign swbsidionies and subject
to foreign exchonge controd restrictions [2014; mf); and £4, 753 miflian subjlect o other restrictions (2014: £4,065 milkoa).

Total interest pakd by the group during the year was £2,685 million (2014: £2,638 million). Total interest received by the group
during the year was £9.594 million (2014: £9,604 million). Total dividends received by the group during the year were £383
millben (2014: £451 millon).
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34 Contingent liabilities, contractual commitments and guarantees

Accounting policy

Contingent liabilithes

Contingent liabilities, which include certain guarantees and letters of credit pledged as collateral security ad well a8 contingent liabilities
related to begal procsedings or regulatony matters (see Nobe 37), are possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the ecourrence, or non-ocourrence, of one or more uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the growp; or
are present obligations thak have arizen from past events but are nok recognised because it (s not probable that settement will require the
outfiow of economic benefits, or because the amount of the obligations canmot be refably mesdured. Contingent liabilities are not
recognised in the finandal statements but are disclosed unless the probahility of setdement is remote.

Financial guarantes contracts

Lishilities under finarcial guarantee contracts which are not classified as indurance contracts are recorded initialhy at their fair valus, which
is geneally the fee received or present value of the fee receivable. Subsequently, financial guarantee Eabilities are measured at the higher
of the initial fair value, kess cumulative armortisation, and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations.

The group has isswed financial guarantess and similar contracts to other group entities. The group elects o account for certain guarantees
s insuranoe contracts, inwhich case they are measured and recognised as insurance liabilities. This election & made on a contract by
contract bask, and i irresocable.

The group The bamk
2018 2014 s Pt
Emi Em Em £m
G and ather contingent liabilitles
Guaraniess 18,156 13,01F 14,479 13,459
Other conbingent labilities il ] T1 i) Tl
18,406 17,083 14,538 13,519
Commitments'
Documentany credits and short-term trade-related transactions 2,558 3073 1,717 1814
Forward asset purchases and forward deposits placed i 358 - -
Undirawm formial standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to
lend® 128,519 132,114 91,272 44,971
131,633 135,52 92,589 46, TEE

1 Ewcluding copital commitments, wisich ane seporotely disclosed beiow.
¥ Bosed on oviging contractu matunity

The table above dischoses the nominal principal amounts of commitrments, guarantees and other contingent labilities. They are
malnly credit-related instruments which include both financial and non-financial guarantees and commitments to extend
credit. Nominal principal amounts represent the amounts at risk showld contracts be fully drewn upon and clents default. As &
significant portion of guarantees and commitments |s expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total of these nominal
principal amounts is not representative of future Bguidity require ments.

Contingent liabdlities arising from litigation against the group are dischosed in Note 37

Financial Services Compensation Scheme

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme ['FSCS') has provided compensation to consumers following the collapse of 8
number of deposit takers. The compensation pakd out to consumers i currently funded through loans from HM Treasury
which at 31 Decermber 2015 stood at approzimately £16 bilion.

The bank could be liable to pay & proportion of the sutstanding borrowings that the FSCS has borrowed from HM Treasury.

The ultimate FSCS levy to the Industry &s 8 result of the collapses cannot currently be estimated reliably &s it is dependent on
various uncertain factors incuding the potential recoveries of assets by the FSCS and changes in the level of protected deposits

and the population of F5C5 members at the time,
Guarantees

The group prowides guarantees and similar undertakings on behalf of both third party customers and other entities within the
group. These guarantees are generally provided in the normal course of the group’s banking business. The principal types of
guarantees provided, and the maximum potential amount of future payments which the group could be required to make at
31 December, were as follows:
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The group

Guannte: type

Financial guarantee contracts®

Credit-related substitutes®
Other guarantees
Tatal

The bank

Guannte: type

Financial guarantes contracts'

Credit-related substitutes”
Other guarantees
Tatal

At 31 December 2015
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At 31 December 2014

Guarantees by

‘Guaranfees in the group in
favour of third  fawour of other
parties  Group entities

Guarantess by

GRS in the group in
favour of third  fawour of ather
parties Group entities

Emi Em Em ]
8745 1,275 LT 1,048
3,656 169 3,467 &4
4278 393 3249 352

16,679 1,737 15,569 1,514

At 31 December 2015

Ar 31 December 2014

Guarantees by

‘Guaraniees in e group in
favour of third  fawour of other
parties  Group ertities

Guarantess by

Guarantess in the growp in
favour of third  fawour of ather
parbies Group entities

Emi £m £m £mm
6,906 2307 8925 2056
1,583 a7 1,911 T
2,965 S0 2083 s08

11,454 3,134 10,859 2680

1 Financial guarantees confracts ane condrocks thot reguire the issuer to make specified poyments 1o reimburse the holder for o loss incurmed beoowse @
specified debtor fols to make payment when due in acoordance with the ariging or modified tevms of a debt festrument. The amaunts in the above

tabde are nomimal principal amaunts.

2 Credt redoted guanantees are controcts that howve similor feotwnes to financiol guorantee condrocts but foil fo meet the strict definkion of o finonool

gusraahar confroct under (45 39

The amounts disclosed in the above table reflect the group®s meximum exposure under a large number of individual guarantee
undertakings. The risks and exposures arising from guarantees are capbured and managed In accordance with the group’s
overall credit risk management policles and procedures, Guarantees with terms of more than one year are subject to the

group's annual credit review process.

Other cormmitments

In addition to the commitments disclosed above, st 31 December 2015 the group had capital commitrents to purchase,
within one year, land and bulldings and other fixed assets from & number of suppliers for a value of £17 million [2014: £8
milllien) and E26 million (2014: £42 milion) of capital commitrments authorsed but not contracted for,

The group had no contingent liabilities or commitments in relation to joint ventures or assoclates, incurred jolntly or

otherwise.
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35 Lease commitments

Accounting policy

Agresments which tramsfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of assets are classified as fnance leases.

A a bessor under finance leases, the growp presents the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearmed charges, in ‘Loans and
advances to banks” or ‘Loans and advances to custormers’. A5 a lessee under finance |eases, the group presents the leased asets in
‘Praperty, plant and eguipment” and the cormesponding liability to the lessor is included in “Other liabilities”. A finance lease and its
correspanding liability are recognised initially at the fair value of the asset or, i lower, the present value of the minimum lease paymernts.
Al other leases are dagsified as operating leases. As a lessor, the group pressnis assets subject to operating leases in Property, plant and
equipment’. Impairment losies are recognised o the exbent that the carrying values are not fully recoverable. A a lesses, leased assets are
not recognized on the balance sheet.

The finarice income or charges on finance keases are recognised in et interest mosme’ over the lease pericds 5o 28 fo ghve a constant rabe
of return. Rentals payable or receivable under ing lesases are spread on a straight-line basis over the lease pesiods and are recc d
in “General and administrative expenses’ or in "Other operating noome”.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 Decernber 2015, the group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for properties, plant and
equipment for which the future minimum lease payments extend over a number of years.

Land and building:
2015 014
Em Em

[Fauture: minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
Mo later than ane year 4 M1
Later than one year and no kater than five years S&F 598
Later than five years B5T T
Total 1,503 1,598

In 2015, E174 million (2014 £174 millken) was charged to ‘General and administrative expenses’ in respect of lease and
sublesse agreements.

Finamce lease receivables

The group leases a variety of assats to third parties under finance beases, including transport assets (such as abreraft), property
and general plant and machinery. At the end of the lease terms, assets may be sold to third parties or leased for further terms.
Lessees may participate In any sales proceeds achieved. Lease rentals arising during the lease terms will elther be fixed in
quentum or be varied to reflect changes in, for example, tax or interest rates. Rentals are cabculated to recover the cost of
Bssets bess their residual value, and earn finance Income.

215 214

Tortal futune Uneamed Total future Unsarmed
Bl [ mvumn finarice: Present P i rrvurm finance Fresent
paymerts ircome walug paymats Income valug
Em Em Em £m £m Em

Lease recehables

Mo later than ane year 1,448 138§ 1,309 1,312 [138) 1,174
Later than one year and no kater than five years 3,338 [361) 2977 3,350 E= L] 1955
Later than five years 1,404 {210 1,214 1,583 [2B5) 1,318
210 {710 5,500 B,245 [Tagy 5,447

At 31 Decernber 2015, unguaranteed residual values of £91 millien (2014: £102 million) had been accrued, and the
asccumulated allowance for uncollectible minkmum lease payments recefvable amounted to £4 millon (2004: £4 milllon).

In 20115, £23 million (2014: £27 milllon) was recelved as contingent rents and recognised in the income statement
Operating lease receivables

The group leases a variety of different assets to third parties under operating lease arrangements, including property,
aircraft and general plant and machinery.

Equipment
015 14
Em £m
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
Mo later than one year 12 11
Later than one year and no kier than five years 24 17
Later than five years 1 -
ar 8
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36 Structured entities
Accounting policy

# structured entity i an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls
the entity, for example when any woting rights relate to administrative tagics only, and key activities are directed by contractual
arrangements. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a narrow and well defined objective.

Structured entities are asgessed for consalidation in accordance with the accounting policy st out in Mote 1)

The group ks involved with structured entities, mainly through securitizsation of financial assets, conduits and investment funds.

The group’s arrangements that involve structured entities are authorised centrally when they are established to ensure
appropeiate purpose and governance. The activities of structured entities administered by the group are closely monitored by
sendor management. The group has involvernent with both consolidated and unconsolidated structured entities, which may be
established by the group or by & third party, as detalled below.

Consolidated structured enfifies
Total assets of the group’s consolidated structured entities, spiit by entity type
Conduits Securitisations Orther Tatal
Em Em Em Em
At 31 December 2015 17807 1174 2,250 21,231
Ax 31 December 2014 17474 1,003 2343 20,965
Conduits

The group has established and manages two types of condults: securithes investment conduits (*SIC's) and multi-seller condults.
These entithes have been designed so thet woting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who has control; in
such cases, the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual arrangement. The condults are consolidated where the
group ks exposed or has the right to variable returns from its iInvolvement with the entity and has the ability to affect its

returns through its power over the entity.

Securities investment conduits

Solitaire, the group's principal SIC, purchases highly rated ABSs to facilitate tallored investment opportunities. At 31 December
2015, Solitaire held £4.2 bilbon of ABSs (2014: £5.1 billion). These are Included within the disclosures of ABS held through
consolidated structured entities’ on page 47, The group's other SICs, Mazarin, Barion and Malachite, evolved from the
restructuring of group’s established structured Investrent vehicles ["SIV's) in 2008,

= Solitaire — Solitaire |s currently funded entirely by Commercial Paper ['CP') Issued to the group. Although the group continues

to provide & liquidity facility, Solitalre has no need to draw on it so long as the group purchases the CP issued, which it intends
o do fior the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2015 HSBC held £5.4 billlon of CP [2014: £5.1 billlon).

* Mazarin — the group is exposed to the par vabue of Mazarin's assets through the provishon of a Bguidity facility equal to the
lesser of the amortised cost of issued senlor debt and the amortised cost of non-defaulted assets. At 31 December 2015, this
amounted to £1.2 billon (2014: £2.5 billion). First loss protection Is provided through the capital notes tssued by Mazarin,
which are substantially all held by third parties.

At 31 Decernber 2015, the group held 2.7% of Mazarin's capital notes [2014: 1.2%) which have a par value of £8.8 million
[2014: £& mdllben) and a carrying amount of £2.7 milllon [2014: £0.9 million).

= Barion and Malachite — the group's primary exposure to these SICs is represented by the amortised cost of the debt required
to support the non-cash assets of the vehicles. At 31 December 2015 this amounted to £3.9 billion [2014: £1.9 billion). First
loss protection s provided through the capital notes issued by these vehicles, which are substantially all held by third parties.

At 31 Decernber 2015, the group held 13.7% of the capital notes (2014: 9.9%) lssued by these vehicles which have a par value
of E28.5 milkon (2014: £35 milion) and a carrying amount of £13.7 mdllion (2014: £6 millon).
Mouiti-seller conduits

These vehicles were established for the purpose of prowiding access to flaxible market-based sources of finance for the group’s
clients.

The group bears risk equal to the transaction-specific liguidity facilities offered to the multl-seller conduits. First loss protection
Is provided by the originator of the assets, and not by the group, through transaction-specific credit enhancements, A layer of
secondary loss protection is provided by the group in the form of programme-wide enhancement facilites.

Securitisations

The group uses structured entities to securitise customer loans and advances that it has originated in order to diversify its
spurces of funding for asset orlgination and for capital efficlency purposes, The loans and advances are transferred by the
group to the structured entities for cash or synthetically through credit default swaps, and the structured entities issue debt
securities to investors,
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Group managed funds

The group has established & number of money market, and non-money market funds. Where the group ks deemed to be acting
a5 principal rather than agent in its role &s investment maneger, the group will control and hence consolidate these funds.

Other

The group also enters into a number of transactions in the normal course of business, including asset and structured finance
transactions where it has control of the structured entity.

Unconsolidated structured entities

The term ‘unconsolidated structured entities’ refers to all structured entities that are not controlled by the group. The group
enters into transactions with unconsolidated structured entities in the normal course of business to facilitate customer
transactions and for specific Investment opportunities.

The table below shows the total assets of unconsolidated structured entities in which the group has an interest at the
reporting date, and the group’s maximum exposure to loss In relation to those interests.

The maximum exposure to loss from the growp’s interests in unconsolidated structured entities represents the madmum loss

that the group could incur &5 a result of its involvement with unconsolidated stroctured entities regardless of the probability of

the loss being incurred.

» For commitments and guarantees, and written credit default swaps, the madmum exposure to loss |s the nothonal amount
of potential future losses,

» For retained and purchased investments in and loans to unconsolidated structured entithes, the madmum exposure to loss s
the carrying value of these interests at the balance sheet reporting date.

The maximum exposure to loss |s stated gross of the effects of hedging and collateral arrangements entered into to mitigate

the group's exposure to loss.

Natwre and risks associoted with the group’s interests in unconsolidoted structured entities

funds funds Other Tatal
Em Em Em Em

At 31 December 7015
Total assets 6,759 944,481 36,791 ags8,031
Group imberest - assets
Cash - - - -
Trading assets 3 215 1,753 1,991
Financial assets designated at fair value 903 2,203 - 3,106
Derhatives - - ST2 572
Loans and advances to banks - 230 E-3 %55
Loans and advances to ouestomers (=] - 1473 1,498
Financial investments i | 409 plirg 540
Other assets 1 - - 1
Total assets in relation to the group’s interests
in the unconsolidated struchered enbities 1,000 3,047 3,855 7,883
Group interest - liabilities
Customaer accouts Fil - - 5
Teotal liabilities in relation to the group’s
interests in the unconsolidated structured entities 1 = = 1
The group’s maximum expossns 1,030 3,047 3,858 7,563
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Growp Monegrowp
d 4
funds Funds Gther Tokal
Em Em £m £mm

¢ 31 December 3014
Total assets 0,54 1,132,196 13,156 1,155,534
Group interest - assets
Cash - - - -
Trading asseis n -3 1,057 1,168
Financial assets designated at fair value a7 34538 - 4,531
Denkvatives - - T Tar
Loans and advances to banks - &4 k- 114
Loans and advances to oustomers g5 - 171 ]
Financial investments 40 416 a4 550
Other assets 1 = - 1
Total assets in relation to the group’s interests
in the unconsolidated struchered enbities 1,001 4 s 154 71493
Group interest - liabilities
Customer accounts il - - b
Total liabilities in relation to the group's
imterests in the unconsolidated structured entities o} - - il
The group’s maximum expossns 1,001 4 ey 2184 7193
Group managed funds

The group has established and manages money market funds and non-money market iInvestment funds to prowide customers
with imvestment opportunities. The group, as fund manager, may be entitled to receive a management and performance fee
based on the assets under management.

Non-group managed funds
The group purchases and holds units of third party maneged funds in order to fecilitate both business and customer needs,

Other

The group has established structured entities in the normal course of business for example, structured credit transactions for
customers, to provide finance to public and private sector infrastructure projects, and for asset and structured finance
transacthons,

Group sponsored structured entities

Accounting policy

The group is considered to sponsor another entity if, in addition to ongoing irvolvement with the entity, it had a key role in establishing that
entity or in bringing together the relevant counterparties to a structured trangaction, $o that the transaction, which is the purpose of the

entity, could cecur. The grown is penerally not considersd a sponsor if the only involvement with the entity is mersly administrative in
nature.

The amount of assets transferred to and income received from such sponsored entities during 2015 and 2014 was not
significant.

37 Legal proceedings and regulatory matters

The group ks party to legal procesdings and regulatory matters in & number of jurisdictions arising out of its normal business
operations. Apart from the matters described below, the group considers that none of these matters are material. The
recognition of provisions is determined in accordamnce with the accounting policies set out in Note 27. While the outcome of
legal proceadings and regulatory matters Is imherently uncertain, management believes that, based on the information
awallable to it, appropriate provisions have been made in respect of these matters & at 31 December 2015. Where an
Individual provision is material, the fact that a provision has been made s stated and quantified, except to the extent doing so
wiould be serlously prejudicial. Any provision recognised does not constitute an admission of wrongdolng or legal Nebdlity. It is
not practicable to provide an aggregate estimate of potential Nabllity for our legal proceedings and regulatory metters as a
class of contingent lizbilities.
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Barnard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC

Bernard L. Madoff ['Madoff') was arrested in December 2008, and later pleaded guilty to running & Ponzi scheme. He has
acknowledged, in essence, that while purporting to invest his customers’ money |n securities, he in fact never imested in
securities and used other customers” money to fulfil requests to return investrments. His firm, Bernard L. Madoff lnvestrent
Securithes LLC |*Madoff Securities”), i being liquidated in the US by a trustee [the Trustee').

Varlous non-US HSBC companbes prowided custodial, administration and similar services to a number of funds incorporated
outside the US whose assets were invested with Madoff Securities. Based on information provided by Madofi Securities, as at
30 November 2008, the purported aggregate value of these funds was US58.4 billlon, an amount that includes fictitious profits
reported by Madoff. Based on information evallable to HSBC, we have estimated that the funds’ actual transfers to Madoff
Securithes minus their actual withdrawals from Madofi Securities during the time that HSBC serviced the funds totalled
approdmately US54 billion. Varous HSBC companies have been named as defendants in lawsults arising out of Madaoff
Securithes’ fraud.

LS/ litigation: The Trustee has brought lawsuits against various HSBC companies in the US Bankruptcy Court and in the
Emglish High Court. The Trustee's ongolng US claims seek recovery of prepetition transfers pursuant to US bankruptoy law.
The amount of these claims has not been pleaded or determined as against HSBC. The Trustee's English action seeks recovery
of unspecified transfers from Madoff Securities to or through HSBC. HSBC has not yet been served with the Trustee's English
action. The Trustee's deadline for serving the claim has been extended through the third quarter of 2016.

Alpha Prime Fund Ltd [*Alpha Prime’] and Senator Fund SPC |*Senator’), co-defendants in the Trustee's US actions, hawve each
brought cross-claims against HSBC. These funds have also sued HSBC in Lusembourg (discussed below). In June 2015, the US
Bankruptcy Court heard HSBC's motion to dismiss Alpha Prime and Senator’s cross-claims and & decisbon on that motion ks
pending.

Fairfield Sentry Limited, Fairfield Sigma Limited, and Fairfield Lambda Limited (together ‘Fairfield'), funds whose assets were
Irvested with Madoff Securities, commenced multiple lawsuits in the US and the British Virgin Islands. ['BVIY) against fund
shareholders, including various H5BC companies that acted &s nominees for HSBC clients, seeking restitution of payments.
made in connecthon with share redemptions. Falrfleld’s US actions are stayed pending the outcome of the cases in the BV
[discussed balow).

In September 2013, the US Cowrt of Appeals for the Second Circuit affirrmed the dismissal of purported class action claims
against HSBC and others brought by nvestors in three Madofi-invested funds on grounds of forum non convenlens. In May
2015, pladritiffs filed & motion asking the Court of Appeals to restore their class action clabms on the basks of an alleged change
of law. Plaintiffs’ motion wes denied by the Court of Appeals in June 2015,

In December 2014, three additional actions were filed in the US, The first is a purported class action brought in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York (the ‘New York District Court’) by direct imvestors In Madofif
Securities who were holding thelr investments as of December 2008, asserting varbous common law claims and seeking to
recover damages bost to Madoff Securities’ fraud on account of HSBC's purported knowledge and alleged furtherance of the
fraud. HSBC moved to dismiss this action in Movember 2015 and a dectsion on that motion is pending. The other two actions.
were both filed by 5PV Optimal SUS Ltd ["SPV O50U5°), the purported assignee of the Madoff invested compary, Optimal
Strategic US Equity Ltd. Ome of these actions was filed in New York state court and the other in Mew York District Cout. In
January 2015, SPV O5US dismissed its federal lawsult against HSBC. The state cowrt action agalnst HSBC remains pending.

In May 2015, an action was filed in New York District Court by baio Investors in the Madoff invested fund Hermes International
Fund Limited ['Hermes") asserting various comrmon law clalims against HSBC and seeking to recover damages lost to Madoff
Securities’ fraud. HSBC's motion to dismiss the action was filed in January 2016 and a decision on that mothon s pending.

Bvi litigation: Beginning in October 2009, Fairfield commenced multiple lawsuits in the BVI agalnst numerous fund
shareholders, including various H5BC companies that acted &s nominees for chients of HSBC's private banking business and
other clients who invested in Feirfield. Fairfield s seeking restitution of redermnption payments made by the funds to
defendants on the grounds that they were mistakenhy based on inflated net asset velues. In April 2004, the UK Privy Council
issued & ruling in favour of other defendants in the BVI actlons, and ssued its order in October 2014, The Privy Council ruling
found in effect that Fairfield should not be entitled to recover share redemptions that were calculated on & net asset value per
share based on fictitious profits, and were pald to shareholders prior to the collapse of Madoff Securities, Separately, a
motion was brought by defendants before the BVl court challenging the authorization of the Fairfield liguidator (appointed in
July 2009) to pursue its clabms in the US. That motion was heard in March 2015 and & deciskon ks pending.

Bermuda ltigation: Thema Fund Limited [ Thema®) and Hermes, funds whose assets were Invested with Madoff Securities,
each also brought three acthons in Bermuda in 2009, The first set of actions was brought against HSBC Institutional Trust
Services [Bermuda) Limited and seeks recovery of funds in frozen accounts held at HSBC. The second set of actions asserts
liability against HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Bermuda) Limited in relation to claims for mistake, recovery of fees, and
damages for breach of contract. The third set of actions seeks return of fees from HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited and HSBC
Securithes Services (Bermuda). There has been ltthe progress in these actions for several years, although in January 2015,
Thema and Hermes served notice of intent to proceed in respect of the second set of acthons referred to above.

Capnnan Ishands Btigation: n February 2013, Primeo Fund (n official liguidation since Apeil 2009, & Cayman lslands-based fund
whose gssets were Invested with Madoff Securities, brought an action ageinst the fund administrator, Bank of Bermuda
[Cayrnan), and the fund custodian, HSBC Securities Services (Luxembourg) ['HSSL'), alleging breach of contract by the
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defendants and breach of fiduciary duty by HS5L. Primeo Fund claims damages from defendants |and equitable compensation
from HS5L) to cornpensate it for alleged losses, Including loss of profit. Trial ks scheduled to begin in November 2016

Luwernbourg litdgation: in April 2009, Herald Fund SPC ["Herald") (in official liguidetion since July 2013) commenced action
agalnst HS5L before the Luxembourg District Court seeking restitution of all cash and securities Herald purportedly kst
because of Madoff Securities” fraud, or in the alternative, money damages |n the same amount. In March 2013, the
Luxernbourg District Court dismissed Herald's restitution claim for the return of the securities, although Herald's restitution
claim for return of the cash and its claim for money damages were reserved, Herald appealed this judgement in May 2013,
Written subrissions on the merits are due to be filed by the parties in March 2016,

In October 2009, Alpha Prime commenced an action against HS5L before the Luxembourg District Court, alleging breach of
contract and neghigence in the appointment of Madoff Securities as & sub-custodian of Alpha Prime’s assets. Alpha Prime
regquested a stay of these procesdings pending its negotiathons with the Trustee in the US proceedings. The matter has been
temporarily suspended at Alpha Prime’s request

In March 2010, Herald (Lux) SICAV ['Herald [Lux)’) (in official liquidation since April 2009) commenced an acthon against HSSL
before the Lusembouwrg District Court seeking restituthon of securities, or the cash equivalent, or money damages in the
alternative. Herald (Lux) has also requested the restitution of fees padd to H55L as custodian and service agent of the fund.
Written subrmissions on the merits are due to be filed by Herald [Lux) in March 2016,

In December 2014, Senator commenced a separate action against HS5L before the Luxembourg District Court, seeking the
restitution of securithes held as of the |latest met asset value statement from Mowember 2008, or, In the alternative, money
damages. The matter has been temporarily suspended at Senator’s request.

In April 2015, Senator cormmenced a separate action against the Luxembourg branch of HSBC Bank plc before the Luxembourg
District Court esserting kdentical claims to those asserted in Senator's action against HSSL. This action remains ongodng.

HS5L has been swed in various actions by shareholders in the Primeo Select Fund, Herald, Herald (Lux), and Hermes, These
actions are in different stages, most of which have been dismissed suspended or postponed.

Ireland Ktigotion: In Movember 2013, Defender Limited, a fund wihose assets were invested with Madoff Securities,
commenced an action against HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Ireland) Limited ['HTIE") and others, alleging breach of the
custodian agreement and claiming damages and indemnification for fund losses. A trial date has not yet been scheduled.

In May 2013 and November 2013, settlernents were reached in respect of claims filed against HTIE in the irish High Court by
Thema International Fund plc ("Thema International’) and Alternative Advantage Plc ['AA"), respectively. Only two actions by
Individual Thema International shareholders against HTIE and Thema international remaln active. An application to dismiss the
twio remaining shareholder clabms was heard In December 2015 and a decision is pending.

In December 2014, a new proceeding against HTIE and HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited was brought by 5Py O5US
alleging breach of the custodian agreement and claiming damages and indemnification for fund losses. In buly 2015, HTIE
brought a preliminary application to challenge the standing of 5PV O5US to bring proceedings against its service providers.
Judgement was rendered in favour of HTIE in October 2015, resulting in the dismissal of the action. SPY OSUS filed an appeal,
which Is scheduled for hearing in January 2017,

There are many factors that may affect the range of possible outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of the varous
Madoff-related proceedings described abowe, including but ot Nrited to the multiple jurisdictions in which the proceedings
have been brought and the number of different plaintifis and defendants in such proceedings. Based upon the information
currently evallable, management’s estimate of possible aggregate damages that might arise as a result of all claims in the
varous Madoff-related proceedings s up to or exceeding US5800 million. Due to uncertainties and Nmitations of this
estimate, the ultimate damages could differ significantly from this amount.

Anti-money laundering and sanctions related matters

In Octaber 2010, HSBC Bank USA N_A. ["HSBC Bank USA") entered into a consent cease-and-desist order with the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency ("0CC"), and HSBC North America Holdings ('HMAH') entered into a consent cease-and-desist order
with the Federal Reserve Bureau ('FRE') (the ‘Orders’). These Orders required improvernents to establish an effective
compliance risk management programme across HSBC s US businesses, including risk management related to US Bank Secrecy
Act (the 'BSA") and ant-money laundering ['AML’) compliance, Steps continue to be taken to address the requirements of the
Orders,

In December 2012, HSBC Holdings plc ["HSBC Holdings'), HNAH and HSBC Bank USA entered into agreements with US and UK
government agenches regarding past inadequate compliance with the BSA, AML and sanctions laws. Among those agreements,
HSEC Holdings and HSBC Bank USA entered into a five-year deferred prosecution agreement with the US Department of Justice
["Dar), the US Attorney’s Office for the Eastern District of New York, and the US Attorney’s Office for the Northern District of
Wast Virginia (the 'US DPA'); and HSBC Holdings consented to a cease and desist order and HSBC Holdings and HNAH
consented to a civil money penalty order with the FRB. HSBC Holdings also entered Into an agreement with the Office of
Forelgn Assets Control ['OFAC') regarding historical transactions involving parties subject to OFAC sanctions, &s well as an
undertaking with the UK Financial Conduct Authority (the 'FCA'), to comply with certain forward-looking AML and samctions-
related obligations. In addition, HSBC Bank WSA entered into a cvil money penalty order with the Financlal Crimes
Enforcement Network ['FInCEN') of the US Treasury Departrment and & separate civil money penalty order with the OCC.

Under these agreements, HSBC Hobdings and HSBC Bank USA made payrents totalling US51.9 billion to WS authorities. In July
2013, the LS District Court for the Eastern District of New York approved the IUS DPA and retalined authority to oversee
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Implementation of that agreement. An independent compliance monitor (the ‘Monitor') was appodnted in 2013 under the
agreements entered into with the Dol and the FCA to preduce annual assessments of the effectiveness of HSBC's AML and
sanctions compliance prograrmme. Additionally, the Monitor is serving as HSBC's independent consultant under the consent
order of the FRB. In lanuary 2016, the Monitor delivered his second annual follow-up review report as required by the US DPA.
The Monitor's report is discussed on page 20.

Under the terms of the US DPA, upon notice and an opportunity to be heard, the Dol has sole discrethon to determine whether
HSEBC has breached the US DPA. Potential consequences of breaching the US DPA could include the imposition of additional
terms and conditions on HSBC, an extensbon of the agreement, including its monitorship or the criminal prosecuthon of HSBC,
which could in turn entall further financial penalties and collateral consequences,

HSEBC Bank USA also entered into & separate consent order with the OCOC requiring it to correct the circumstances and
conditions as noted in the OCC"s then most recent report of examination, and imposing certain restrictions on HSBC Bank USA
directly or indirectly scquiring control of, or hobding an interest in, any new financial subsidiary, or commencing a new actiity
in its existing financial subsidiary, unless it recelves prior approval from the OCC. HSBC Bank USA also entered into a separate
consent order with the OCC requiring it to adopt an enterprise-wide compliance programme.

These settlements with US and UK suthorities have led to private litigation, and do not preclude further private litigation
related to HSBC's compliance with applicable BSA, AML and sanctions laws or other regulatory or law enforcement actions for
BSA, AML, sanctions or other matters not covered by the varkous agreements.

In November 2014, a complaint was filed in the US District Court for the Ezstern District of New York on behalf of
representatives of US persons alleged to have been killed or injured in Irag between April 2004 and November 2011, The
complaint was filed against HSBC Holdings, HSBC Bank plc, HSBC Bank USA and HSBC Bank Middle East, &s well as other non-
HSEC banks and the Islamic Republic of Iran. The plaintifiis allege that defendanits violated the US Anti-Terrorism Act, by
altering or falsifying payment messages involving Iran, lranian parties and Iranlan banks for transactions processed through the
us. Defendants filed a motion to dismiss in May 2015 and a decision on that motion is pending.

Based on the facts currently known, it is not practicable at this time for HSBC to predict the resolution of this lawsuit, including
the timing or any possible impact on HSBC, which could be significant.

London interbank offered rates, European interbank offered rates and other banchmark interast rate
imvestigations and litigation

WVarious regulators and competition and law enforcement authorithes around the world including in the UK, the US, the EU,
Switzerland, South Korea and elsewhere, are conducting investigations and reviews related to certain past submisshons made
by panel banks and the processes for making submissions in conmectbon with the setting of London interbank offered rates
["UWbor'), European interbank offered rates (‘Euribor’) and other benchmark interest retes. As certain HSBC companies are
members of such panels, HSBC has been the subject of regulatory demands for information and s cooperating with those
Investigathons and reviews.

In May 2014, HSBC recelved a Statement of Objections from the European Commission (the ‘Commission’) alleging anti-
competitive practices in connecthon with the pricing of euro interest rate derfvatives, The Statement of Objections sets out the
Comrnission’s preliminary views and does not prejudge the final outcome of its investigation. HSBC responded to the
Comrnission’s Statement of Objections in March 2015 and a hearing before the Commissbon took place in June 2015. A
decision by the Commisshon |s pending.

In addition, HSBC and other US dollar Libor panel banks heave been named as defendants in a number of private lawsults filed
In the US with respect to the setting of US dollar Libor. The complaints assert claims under various US laws, including US
antitrust and racketeering laws, the US Commodity Exchange Act ('CEA), and state law. The |lewsuits include individwal and
putative class scthons, most of which have been transferred and/or consolidated for pre-trial purposes before the New York
District Court.

In March 2013, the New York District Court overseeing the consolidated proceedings related to US dollar Libor ssued &
decision in the six oldest actions, dismissing the plaintiffs’ federal and state antitrust claims, racketeering clalms and unjust
enfichment claims in thelr entirety, but allowing certain of thelr CEA claims that were not barred by the applicable statute of
limitations to proceed. Some of those plaintiffs appealed the Mew York District Court's dectsion to the US Court of Appeals for
the Second Circuit, which later dismissed those appeals as premature. In lanuary 2015, the US Supreme Court reversed the
Couwrt of Appeals” decision and remanded the case to the Court of Appeals for considerathon on the merits of the plaintifis’
appeal. Oral argument In the Court of Appeals was held in November 2015 and the parties are awalting a decision.

Other plaintiffs sought to file amended complaints in the New York District Court to assert additional allegations. In June 2014,
the Mew York District Court Issued a decision that, amongst other things, denled the plaintiffs’ request for leave to amend their
complaints to assert additional theorles of Libor manipulation against HSBC and certain non-HSBC banks, but granted leave to
assert such manipulation claims against two other banks; and granted defendarnits’ motion to dismiss certain additional cleims
under the CEA as barred by the applicable statute of Nmitations. Proceedings with respect to all other actions in the
consolidated proceedings were stayed pending this decision. The stay was lifted in September 2014, and amended complaints
were filed in certain other individual and class actions thereafter. The defendants filed motions to dismiss and in August 2015
and Movember 2015, the court Issued decisions granting the motions in part, although it has not yet entered an order
spacifying which particular claims are dismissed against which defendants.

Separately, HSBC and other panel banks have also been named as defendants in two putative dlass actions filed in the New
‘York District Court on behalf of persons who transacted in financlal instruments allegedly related to the euroyen Tokyo
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Interbank offered rate ['Tibor') and/or lapanese yen Libor. The complaints allage, amongst other things, misconduct related to
euroyen Tibor, although HSBC ts not &8 member of the lapanese Bankers Association’s euroyen Tibor panel, &s well as Japanese
yen Libor, in violation of US antitrust lews, the CEA, and state law.

The first of the two actions was filed in Apeil 2012, and HSBC responded by filing a motion to dismiss. In March 2014, the New
‘fork District Court dismissed the plaintiffs’ claims under US antitrust law and stete law, but sustained their claims under the
CEA. In June 2014, the plaintiffs then moved for leave to file an amended complaint adding new claims and parties. That
motion was denled im March 2015, except insofar as it granted leave to add certain defendants not affiiated with HSBC and
reserving on the questhon of whether the California State Teachers Retirement Systern (‘CALSTRS') may intervene and be
added &5 a plaintiff, In October 2015, the MNew York District Court denled the motion of CALSTRS to intervene. In Movember
2015, CALSTRS filed an appeal of that ruling to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circult, which remains
pending.

The second action was filed in July 2015, In February 2016, HSBC and the other banks named in the complaint filed a motion
to dismiss the action and a dectsion on that motion s pending.

In Movember 2013, HSBC and other panel banks were also named as defendants in & putative class action filed in the New York
District Court on behalf of persons who transacted in euro futures contracts and other financial instrurnents allegedly related
to Euribor. The complaint alleges, amongst other things, misconduct related to Eurlbor in violathon of US antitrust laws, the
CEA and state law. The court previously stayed proceedings until Mey 2015, After the stay expired, the plaintifis filed an
amended complaint. In October 2015, HSBC filed 8 motion to disrmiss the action, which remains pending.

In September and October 2014, HSBC Bank plc and other panel banks were named as defendants in a number of putative
class actions that were filed and consolidated in the Mew York District Court on behalf of persons who transacted in interest
rate derivatives or purchased or sold financial instruments that were either thed to US dollar International Swaps and
Derivatives Assoclation fix [ 1SDAfx") rates or were executed shortly before, during, or after the time of the dadly ISDAfix setting
window. The complaint alleges, amongst other things, misconduct related to these activities in violation of US antitrust laws,
the CEA, and state law. In February 2015, plaintiffs filed a second consolidated amended complaint, replacing HSBC Bank plc
with HSBC Bank USA. A motion to dismiss that complaint was filed in April 2015 and & decision Is pending.

There are many factors that may affect the range of possible outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of these lawsuits.
Based upon the information currently available, it ks possible that any liabilities that might arise as a result of the claims in
these actions could be significant.

Foreign exchange rate investigations and litigation
Various regulators and competition and lew enforcement authorities around the world including in the US, the EU, Brazil,

South Kores and elsewhere, are conducting investigations and reviews into trading by HSBC and others on the foreign
exchange markets.

HSBC has been cooperating with these ongolng investigations and reviews.

InMay 2015, the Dol resolved its investigations with respect to five non-HSBC financial instituthons, four of whom agreed to
plead guilty to criminal charges of conspiring to manipulate prices in the forelgn exchange spot market, and resulting in the
imposition of criminal fines in the aggregate of more than U552.5 bilion. Additional penalties were imposed &t the same time
by the FRE and other banking regulators. HSBC was not a party to these resolutions, and Investigations into HSEC by the Dal,
FRE and others around the world continwee.

Im addition, in late 2013 and early 2014, HSBC Holdings, HSBC Bank plc, HNAH and HSBC Bank USA were narmed as defendants,
amongst other banks, in various putative class actions filed in the New York District Court. In March 2014, the plaintiffs filed a
consolidated amended complaint alleging, emongst other things, that defendants conspired to manipulate the Wi /Reuters
forelgn exchange benchmark rates (‘the Consolidated Actlon’). Separate putative class acthons were also brought on behalf of
non-Us plaintiffs (the Foreign Actions’). Defendants mowed to dismiss all scthons. In lanuary 2005, the court denbed
defendants’ motion to dismiss the Consolidated Action, but granted defendants’ motion to dismiss the Forelgn Actions. Five
additional putative dass actions were subsequently filed in the Mew York District Court making similar allegations on behalf of
persons who engaged bn foreign exchange futures transacthons on a US exchange, and those additional actions were
subsequently consolidated with the Consolidated Action. In July 2015, the plaintiffs in the Consolidated Action filed a further
amended complaint that, amongst other things, added new claims and parties, including HSBC Securities (USA), Inc. bn
Septemnber 2015, HSBC reached an agreement with plaintiffs to resolve the Consolidated Action, subject to court approval. In
December 2015, the court granted preliminary approval of the settlement and HSBC made payment of the agreed settlement
amount into an escrow account. The cowrt has not yet set a date for the final approval hearing.

In addithon to the above actions, a putative class action was filed in the New York District Court In June 2015 making similar
allegations on behali of Emphoyee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ['ERISA) plan partichpants, and another complaint
was filed in the US District Court for the Morthern District of California in Mey 2015. HSBC filed a motion to transfer the
California action to New York, which was granted in November 2015.

In September 2015, two additional putative class actions making similar allegations under Canadian law were issued in Canada
agalnst verious HSBC entities, Including HSBC Bank Canada, and numerous other financial instibutions.

As at 31 December 2015, HSBC has recognised a provision bn the amount of £811 mdllion. There are many factors that may
affect the range of outcomes, and the resulting financial impact, of these matters. Due to uncertainties and limitations of
these estimates, the ultimate penalties could differ significantly from the amount provided.
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Precious metals fix-relatad litigation and investigations

Beginning bn March 2014, nurnerous putative class actions were filed in the US District Courts for the Southern District of New
‘York, the District of Mew Jersey and the Northern District of Californda naming HSBC and ather members of The London Gold
Market Fixing Limited as defendants. The complaints allege that, from January 2004 to the present, defendanits conspired to
manipulate the price of gold and gold derivatives during the afternoon London gold fix for thelr collective benefit in violation of
Us antitrust laws, the CEA and New York state law. The actions were subsequeritly consolidated in the New York District Court.
An amended complaint was filed in March 2015, which defendants moved to dismiss, A hearing has been scheduled for March
2016.

Beginning bn July 2014, numerous putative class acthons were filed in the US District Couwrts for the Southern and Eastemn
Districts of New York naming HSBC and other members of The London Silver Market Fldng Ltd as defendants. The compladnits
allege that, from January 1999 to the present, defendants conspired to manipulate the price of silver and silver derivatives for
their collective benefit in violation of US antitrust laws the CEA and Mew York state law. The actions were subsequently
consolidated in the Mew York District Court. An amended complaint was filed in April 2015, which defendants moved to
dismiss. A hearing has been scheduled for March 2016.

Between late 2014 and early 2015, numerous putative class acthons were filed in the US District Couwrt for the Southern District
of New York naming HSBC and other members of The London Platinum and Palladiurm Fixing Company Limited as defendants.
The complaints allege that, from January 2008 to the present, defendants conspired to manipulate the price of platinum group
metals [PGM') and PGM-based financial products for their collective benefit in violation of US antitrust laws and the CEA. An
amended complaint wes filed in August 2015, which defendarnits moved to dismiss.

Additionally, in December 2015, & putative class action under Canadian law was filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice
agalnst various HSBC entitles, including HSBC Bank Canada, and other financlal institutions. Plaintiffs allege that, from lanuary
2004 to March 2014, defendants conspired to mandpulate the price of gold and gold-related investment instruments in
viclation of the Canadian Competition Act and common law.

Warlous regulators and competition and law enforcement authorities, including im the LS and the EU are conducting
Investigathons and reviews relating to HSBC's preclous metals operations, HSBC has been cooperating with these ongolng
Investigations. In Nowemnber 2014, the Antitrust Division and Criminal Fraud Section of the Dol ksued a document request to
HSEC Holddings seeking the voluntary production of certain documents in connection with a criminal investigation that the Dol
is conducting of alleged anti-competitive and manipulative conduct in precious metals trading. In lanuary 2016, the Antitrust
Division of the Dol informed HSBC that it was closing its investigation; however, the Criminal Fraud Section’s inwestigation
remadns ongolng-

Based on the facts currently known, it ks not practicable at this time for HSBC to predict the resolution of these matters,
inchuding the timing or any possible impact on HSBC, which could be significant.

Credit default swap regulatory investigation and litigation

I buly 3013, HSBC recelved a Statement of Objections from the Commission relating to its ongoing investigation of alleged
antl-competitive activity by & number of banks and other market participants in the credit derivatives market between 2006
and 2009, The Statement of Objections sets out the Commission’s preliminary wiews and does not prejudge the final outcome
of its Investigation. HSBC submitted a response and attended a hearing in May 2014. Following the hearing, the Commisshon
decided in December 2015 to close the case against all 13 banks, Including all of the HSBC entitles; howeser, the Commisskon’s
Investigation relating to Markit and I1SDA Is on-golng.

Im addition, HSBC Holdings, HSBC Bank plc and HSBC Bank USA, were named as defendants, amongst others, in numerous
putatiee class acthons filed in the New York District Court and the United States District Court for the Morthern District of
Ilinoks. These class acthons allege that the defendants, which include 1504, Markit and several other financlal institutions,
conspired to restrain trade n violation of US antitrust laws by, amongst other things, restricting access to credit default swap
pricing exchanges and blocking new entrants into the exchange market. The plaintiffs in these sults purport to represent a
class of all persons who purchased credit default swaps from or sold credit default swaps to defendants primarily in the US,

In October 2013 these cases were consolidated in the New York District Court (the "Consolidated Action'). In September 2015,
the HSBC defendants reached an agreement with plaintiffs to resolve the Consolidated Action, subject to court approval. In
October 2015, the court granted preliminary approval of the setthement. The final settlement approval hearing is scheduled for
April 2006,

Fadération Internationale de Football Association ("FIFA") related investigations

HSEC has received inguiries from the Dol regerding its banking relationships with certain individuals and entities that are or
may be aseociated with FIFA. The Dol s investigating whether multiple financial institutbons, including HSBC, permitted the
processing of suspichous or otherwise Improper transactions, or falled to observe applicable AML laws and regulations. HSEC i
cooperating with the Dol's investigation.

Based on the facts currently known, it s not practicable at this time for HSBC to predict the resolution of this matter, including
the timing or any possible impact on HSBC, which could be significant.

178

463/484



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0ooOodn(E22630)
oOoOooodn

HEEBC BAMK FLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

38 Related party transactions

The immediate and witimate parent company of the group is H3BC Holdings plc, which ks incorporated in England.
Coples of the Group financhal statements may be obtained from the following address:

HSEBC Holdings plc
& Canada Square
London

E14 5HO

The group's related parties include the parent, fellow subshdiaries, associates, joint ventures, post-employment benefit plans

for HSBC employees, Key Management Personnel, close family members of Key Management Personnel and entities which are
controlled or jointly controlled or significantly influenced by Key Management Personnel or thedr close family members.

(a) Transacfions with Directors and other Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of HSBC Bank plc and the group and includes the Directors of HSBC Bank plc and HSBC Holdings plc
and Group Managing Directors of HSBC Holdings ple.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The following represents the compensation for Directors and other Key Management Personnel of the bank in exchange for
services rendered to the bank for the period they served during the year. The Increase in share-based payments is malnly due
to the immediate recognition of amounts in respect of directors who retired or resigned in 2015,

s 4
EDOD E000
Short-term employee benefits 4,384 34937
Post-employment benefits 42 44
Other long-tenm benefits 1,203 08
Share-based payments 5163 4,73
10,752 5,017
Shareholdings, options and of securities of Directors and other Key Management Personnel®
Balance at Balance at
31 December 31 Decemnber
2015 2014
|ooas) {oos}
Mumnber of options over HSBE Holdings ple crdinary shares under employee share plans * -} -}
Humber of HSBC Holdings plc shares held 19,290 17217
Par value of HSBC Bank 2.875% Motes 2015 - E530
1 includes the holdings of Key Manog i Py { off both the bank and its parent compony, HSBE Holdings pic and thelr close famify members

& The 2014 balance for HEBC Bank 2 875% Notes 2015 has been restoted from £nil to £520,000.
Transactions, arrangements and agreements induding Directors and other Key Management Personnel

The table bebow sets out transactions which fall to be disclosed under 185 24 ‘Related Party Dischosures' between the group
and Key Managerment Personnel.

2015 2014
Restated Restated
Highest balamoe Balanceat  highest balance balance at
during the year' 31 December®  during theyear' 31 December'
Emi £m £m £mm
Koy Managemsent Personnel®
Advances and credits Frrd 149 35 212
‘Guarantees &0 49 =0 =0
1 The disclosure of the yearend balance ond the Mghest balonce during the peor is considened the most meoningful information to represent
transoctions duving the year.
& includes the Key Manogement Personnel of both the bonk ond its parent company, HSSC Holdings pli, close fomilly bers off Ky Monog
Personnel, and entities which are ke ar jodatly © Wed' by Key Manog t Py | or their close fomily members.

3 The 2014 halances for ofvonoes and oredits boeve been restoted from £151 mifion to £225 millon and for guorondees from £mif fo £49, 774,000,
4 The X014 balances for otvonces and credits bove been restoted from £138 milion to £21.2 milllan and for guorontees from £mif mifilan to £50 milion.

The above transactions were made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the came berms, including interest
rates and security, as for comparable transactions with persons of & similar standing or, where applicable, with other
employees. The transactions did not invelve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfevourable featuras.

Transactions with Directors: Advances, Credits and Guarantees (Companies Act 2006)

In addition to the requirements of WS 24, particulars of advances (loans and guasi-loans), credits and guarantees entered into
by HSBC Bank plc and its subsidiaries with Directors of HSBC Bank plc are required to be disclosed pursuant to section 413 of
the Companies Act 2006, Under the Companles Act there s nd requirement to disclose transactions with the Key Management
Personnel of the bank's parent company, H3BC Holdings plc.

The table below sets out transactions which fall to be disclosed under section 413 of Compandes Act 2006.
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The group
Balance at Balance at
31 December 31 December
2015 014
EDOD EDOO
Directors
Loans 10,291 13,058
Guarantees 3rs -
(b} Transactions with octher related parties
Assoclates and joint wentures
The group amd the bank
2015 2014
Restated Restated
Highest balamce Balanceat  highest balance balance at
dl.l'lqﬁrpnlr" 31 December during Ii1l';l|-'1 31 December’
Em Em Em Em
Arnounts duse from bt wentures — unsubordinated 132 1 1% 1%
Guarantess provided to joint venbures &10 &10 &10 &10
1 The disclosure of the year-end balance ond the Mghest balance during the peor is considered the mostmeoningful information to represenst

& The 2014 balances for guorontees from £0 mildon to £610 milion.

The above outstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms, Including
Interest rates and security, s for comparable transactions with third party counterparties,

Transactions of the group with HSBC Holdings plc and fellow subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings plc.
Transoctions detailed below Include amounts due to/from HSBC Holdings plc

2015 204
Highest balamoe Balance at  Highiest balance Balance at
during the year' 31 Becember'  during the year 41 December’
Em £m Em Em
BAssets
Trading assets 1318 210 1,524 1318
Financial assets designated at fair value M 5 n n
Loans and adwvances to oestomers BTl BTL 3 966 513
Financial investments L] &7 a9 a4
Uabilties
Tracling bakbdities 534 534 - -
Customer accouts 10,558 9,265 10,553 oA ]
Subordinated amounts dus 5108 5105 &025 4,038
Guarantees prowided - - - -
2015 2014
Em Em
Income Statemaernt
Interest income: 2 47
Interest expense 136 15
Fes income 1 1
i denid incomes 1 i
Fem expense z -
Trading income 1 1
Other operating income & (-3
‘General and administrative expenses 43} k)

1 The disclosure of the year-end balance ond tise Mghest halonce during the peor is considened the mostmesningful information to represent
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Transactions detailed below Include amounts due to/from fellow subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings plc

2015 2014
Highest balanoe Balanceat  Highest balance Balance at
during the year' 31 December®  during theyear' 31 December”
Emi £m £m £m

Assets
Trading assets 5,761 2,162 083 1,489
Diertvatives 25,086 21,819 19,767 18,767
Financial assets designated at fair value i | -] 5 21
Loans and advances to banks 12108 11,057 11,106 12,106
Loans and advances to ouestomers 4543 1,147 5624 4 543
Firancial investmants 176 p | 46 n
Liabilrties
Tracing kabdi thes 13,038 11,768 12,954 7268
Financial lizbilities designated at fair value - = - -
Dieposits by banls 11,190 7688 11,124 S 080
Customer accouts 3.e53 (575 257 1483
Denivatives 25,008 20,004 19,759 19,289
Subordinated amount due 1,654 64 1,518 1,644
Guarantees prowided 1,275 1,275 1,741 1,102

1 The disclosure of the year-end balimee and the highest bolance during the yeor is considered the mast meaningfivl infarmation to regresent
travusoctions during the peor.

205 2014
£m Em

Income Statement
Interest income: 3z 3
IntErest evpense 95 114
s income BS a5
Few expense 43 i)
Trading income a2 -}
Other operating income 105 1r3
General and administrative expenses 458 37

The above outstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms, including
Interest rates and security, s for comparable transactions with third party counterparties,

Transactions between H3BC Bank plc and its subsidiaries and HSBC Holdings plc and the other fellow subsidiaries of HSBC
Holdings plc
Transactions detailed below include amounts due to/from HSBC Bank plc and its subsidiaries,

15 2014
Highest balanoe Balance at  Highest balance Balance at
duringtheyear'  31December’  during theyear' 31 Becember
£m Em Em £m

Assets
Trading assets 8,61 41 142 1659
Denhatives 17,99 8,511 15114 14 536
Financial assets designated at fair value = = - -
Loans and adwances to banks 8,583 2,E10 11,373 2568
Loans and advances to oustome s 17,350 16,8 11,810 10830
Firancial investments 7888 1,188 BETE TE66
Liabilrtses
Trading kabdli ties 5,054 S5 B17a 1,458
Deposits by banks 11,512 10,551 15,320 11,388
Customer accouwnts 3240 3,005 3534 174
Denhatives 17,899 11,639 14,507 14,507
Subordinated amounts dus 2,181 T00 2,276 2181
Guaraniees prowvided 1,208 1133 1,177 1177

1 The disclosure of the year-end balimee and the highest bolance during the yeor i considered the mast meaningfil infarmation to represent
trovusoctions during the peor.
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Transactions detailed below Include amounts due to/from HSBC Bank plc and HSBC Holdings plc.

2015 2004
Highest balanoe Balanceat  Highest balance Balance at
during the year' 31 December®  during theyear' 31 December”
Em Emi Em £m

Assets
Trading assets 954 536 1,6491 L
Loans and advances to ouestomers 2] BHY 1965 511
Uabiirties
Trading kabiities 534 534 - -
Customer accounts 10,555 9,200 10981 -]
Subordinated amounts dus 4,635 4,635 5756 1562
Guarantees provided - = - -

1 The dischsure of the year-and balimes and the highest bolance during the peoe i consideved the mast meaningfia farmatian to represent
travuoctions during the pear.

In December 2010, the bank recelved two guarantees from HSBC Holdings ple in respect of monles owing to the bank by its

structured investment condulits |*SICs"). The first guarantee covers due but unpald monles owed by the bank's principal SIC,

Solitaire, up to a maximum amount of US516 billion, to the extent that unpald liabilities exceed US51 bilion. A second

guarantee covers due bat unpakd monbes owed by the bank's other SICs, Mazarin, Barlon and Malachite, up to 8 maximum

amount of US522 billion, to the extent that unpaid liabilities excead US5200 million. In December 2012, the bank recelved a

third guarantee from HSBC Holdings plc that covers due but unpald monbes owed to the bank by its multl-seller conduit,

Regency, up to & maximum amount of US517 billion, to the extent that unpaid liabilities exceed U552 billlon,

The bank pays no fee to its parent company for the provision of these guarantees.

Transoctions detalled below include amounts due to/from HSBC Bonk plc and fellow subsidiaries of HSBC Holdings pic.
2014

215
Highest balanoe Balanceat  Highest balance Balance at
during the year' 31 December®  during theyear' 31 December”
Emi £m £m £m

Asseis
Trading assets 5,653 2,159 7,940 1350
Derkatives 41,730 29,806 13412 13412
Loans and advances to banks K. ] FA T ] -l 2126
Loans and advances to ouestomers 4.2003 1,133 4941 4,303
Liabilrtses
Trading kabiities 12,508 11,614 13,548 7184
Deposits by banis 118 FAE "] &80 2118
Customer accownts 3511 SE3 111 133
Denivatives 44,657 33,644 35,806 315506
Subordinated amount dus - - - -
Guaraniees prowvided 1,005 1,005 1,583 aig

1 The disglosure of the year-end balimee and the highest bolance during the yeor i considered the mast meaningfivl infarmation to regresent
trovusaetions during the pear.

The above outstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms, Including

Interest rates and security, s for comparable transactions with third party counterparties.

Pension fumnds

At 31 December 2015, fees of £3 mdllion (2014: £5 millon) were earned by group companles for management services related
to the group's pension funds held under management. The group’s penskon funds had placed deposits of £488 millon (2014:
£121 millien) with its banking subsidiaries.

The above outstanding balances arose from the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms, Including
iriterest rates and security, s for comparable transactions with third party counterparties,

The HSBC Bank [UK) Pension Scheme (the “Scheme’) entered into swap transactions with the bank to manage the inflation and
Initerest rate sensitivity of the lizbilities. At 31 December 2015, the gross notional value of the swaps was £8,906 milllon (2014:
£15,177 million), the swaps had a negative fair value of £335 million to the bank |2014: negative falr value of £597 million) and
the bank had delivered collateral of £732 millien (2014: £1,268 milllon) to the Scheme in respect of these swaps. All swaps
were executed at prevalling market rates and within standard market bid/offer spreads.

33 Events after the balance sheet date

A second interim dividend for 2015 of £272 million to shareholders of the parent company was declared by the Directors after
31 Decembser 2005,
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40 HSBC Bank plc’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

In accordance with Section 409 of the Compandes Act 2006, HSBC Bank plc's subshdiaries, assoclates and joint ventures, country
of incorporation and percentage owned are Msted bebow:

Subsidlaries* Country’ Security’ Direct®  Total %
Adbouys Nominees Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 10000
Iblack imvestments Limited lersoy £0:0037 Ordinary, Preference 100% 0O
AMIP Client HSBC Custody Nomines (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
Assetfinance December (4] Umnited England and Wales £1 Ordinary T O
Azsetfinance Decembser (E) Limnited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
#zsetfinance December (F) Linited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
Azsetfinance December (H) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 10000
Azsetfinance December (M) Limibed England and Wales £1 Ordimary 10000
Azsetfinance December (P) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
Azsetfinance December (R) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 0O
Azsetfinance Decembser (W) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
Azsetfinance june (&) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
izsetfinance june [0} Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
izsetfinance june (€} Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 0O
Azsetfinance Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 0O
MAzsetfinance March {B) Limited Northern ireland £1 Ordinary 0O
zsetfinance March (D) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary O
zsetfinance March {F) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
igsetfinance September {F) Lmited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
sssetfinance September {G) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
B Financial Services Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
Banco Momineses { Gusemsey | Lion fbed Gusmsey £1 Ordinary G4 S
Banco Momineses 2 {Guemsey) Limited Gusmsey £1 Ordinary T O
Beau Soleil Limited Partnership 1 Queen's Road Cembral, Hong Kong S48 B S
Bermeda Trust (52 Helier) Limited lersey U551 Ordinany 10000
Bermauda Trust Executors (bersey] Limited lersey £1 Shares 10000
Bilimgsgate City Securities Fublic Limited Compansy England and Wales £0,01 Ordinary 100%: 0O
Bilingsgate Mominess Limnited England and Wales £1 lssused 100% 0O
Canada Crescent Mominees (LK} Lmited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% T O
Canada Sguare Mominees (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
Canada Sguare Property Particpations Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 10000
Canada ‘Water Nominees (U] Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 10000
CCF & Partmers Asset Management Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary G4 O
LCF Charterhouse GmbH Germary €1 Actions G e,
LOF Charterhouse GmbH & Co Asset Leasing K5 Unsoeldstrasse 2, 80538, MUMNICH, Germany o e,
Charterhouse Admintstrators (0.7, ) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 40 90
Charterhouse k t Serwices Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary G o
Charterhouse Pensians Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100%: 10000
Crewflest Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 1000
Dem 2% France L1 Actiong 90 9o
bem & France 16 Actions 48 ook
Dem & France L850 Actions 45 Sk
Diempar 1 Framce: Acticns no par wvalue G o
Dempar 4 Framnce: Acticns no par valus GG o
Blysées Gmbh Germany L1 Common 99 9%
Elymées Immo Inwest France 16 Actions 99 S
EMTT Limiged England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
Equator Holdings Limited England and Wales W51 Ordinany 1004 O
Eton Corporate Services Limited Gussrsey U551 Ordinany 10000
Eton Management Ltd wirgin lslands, British  LS51 Ordinany 10000
Fdm 5 5a5 France 10 Actions 99 9%
Fdm & 5a% France 10 Actions 99 9
Finanpar 2 France Articns no par walue 90 9o
Finanpar 7 France: Artions no par value: e Sy
First Direct Investrvents (UK} Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
Famdres Contenbleux 5.4, France 016 Actions 90 S
Fonciére Elysdes Framce L7 Actions G990
Forsard Trest Rall Services Lmibed England and Wales 0.1 Ordimany 10000
G.M. Gilt-Edged Momdness Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
Gesellschaft fur industrielle Betelligungen und Fi g mbH Germany i1 Coemmman A0 A%
Griffin international Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1000
Grundstueck dischaft Trink [ ¢ it fizchaft Germary €1 Cosmman BOEES

Invvestrnents Linmited England and Wales £1 Issued 100%: 10000
HITG Administration GmbH Germany £25,000 Ordinary 1000
Hongkong International Trade Finenoe (Haldings) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary ‘A", '8 100% 0O
Hongkong Inbernational Trade Finance (LS4 ] inc. United States LEE] Commmon 1000 O
HPUT & Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 O
HPUT B Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
HSHC (BGF ) inmvestments Limited England and Wales £1 100%: 10000
HSHC Alpha Funding (LK) Holdings Cayman lslands LSS0000 Limited Lability — 99% G500%
HSHC Aszet Finance {LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 0O
HSHC Aszet Finance Holdings Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HSHC Aszet Finance 84.0.G. Holdings (UK} Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 O
HSBC Assurances Wie (France) France: 287 50 Acticns B S
HEBC Bank {Gemeral Fartner) Limited Jersey £1 Ordinary 1008 10000
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Subsidlaries* Country’ Secumity’ Direct®  Total %
HSHC Bank {Gemeral Fartner] Limited bersoy £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HSHC Bank {RR) {Limited Lisbilty Company)

HSHC Bank 4.5 Turkey TRL1 &, B - Common 100% 1000
HEBC Bank Armvenia ojsc Armenia AN D0, 250 Ovdinary OO0
HSHC Bank Capital Funding (Sterling 1) LP HSEC House, Esplanade, 5t. Helier, JE4 BUB, Jersey 10000
HSHC Bank Capital Funding (Sterling Z) LP HSBC House, Esplanade, 5t. Helier, 1E4 BUB, Jersey 1000
HSHC Bank intemational Limited bersoy £1 Ordinary 0O
HSHC Bank balta p.l.c Maltz 0030 Ordinary pidne
HSHC Bank Mominee [Jersey) Limited bersey £1 Ordinary O
HEBC Bank Pension Trast (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
HSHC Bank Polska 5.4 Foland LML Ordinary 100%: 10000
HSHC Branch Mominee {LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 10000
HSHC Cient Holdings Nomines (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HSHC Dot Share Offer Momines (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HEAL Conporate Trustee Compary (UK) Limiged England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% T O
HSBC Custody Services [Guemsey) Limited Guermsey £1 Ordinary 10000
HEBC Development Properties (LK) Limdted England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1008 10000
HEBC Enterprise vestment Compaery (UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 100% 10000
HSHC Epargne: Entreprise {France) Framnce: €16 Actions G4 O
HSBC Eguatar |} Limited England and Wales £1 Non-voting defenred 0O
HSBC Eguipmeent Finance: (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary O
HSHC Equuity [UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
HSHC Ewrope BV, Metherlands 50 Oroimany 10000
HSHC Ewropean Cients Depositary Recsipts Momine o {UK) Lmited England and Wales £1 100%: 10000
HEBC Exeostor & Trustes Company (UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordirary [£0.40 paid) 10000
HEBLC Factoring (Framoe) Framce: €16 Actions G e,
HSHC Finance Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% b el
HSHC France France L6 Actions o5.59% 45 Sk
HSHC Fund Administration (Jersey) Limited bersey £1 Ordinary 10000
HSHC Funds Momines (Jersey) Uimited lersey £1 Ordinary 10000
HSHC Germany Holdings GmbH Germany L1 Common 1004 1000
HEBC Global bsset Marngement [Deutschiland) GmbH Germarny 1 Coamrmaon B0STE
HEBE Elobal Asset Maragement [France) France: £16 Actions o e,
HSHC Global fsset Maragement (international] Umited bersey £1 Ordinary O
HEBC Global Asset Maragement [Malta) Umited Malta £2.32937 Ordinary OO
HSHC Global Asset Maregement (Oesterreich] GmbH Awstria €1 GmibH Amteil HOUGSN
HSHC GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT [Switrerland ) &G Switzeriand CHF10 Actions H0CETN
HSHC Global Custody Momines (1K) LimitedCRAC Fayment England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100%: 0O
HSHC GLOBAL CUSTODY PROP RIETARY MOMINEE (LK) LUMITED England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HSBC Global Shared Serdces {India) Private Limited India IS0 Ordinary O
HSHC INKA Imvestment-AG TEW Germany i1 Stibckaktion A0 A5
HEBC Institutional Trust Services (iretand) Limited Ireland UEE1 Ordinany 10000
H5BC rsurance Management Services [Europe] Limited Malta £1 Ordinary-8 ToOrE
H5BLC rsurance Management Servces Linmited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 10000
HSHC Irsurance Services Haldings Limited England and Wales £0. 30 Ordinary 100% 0O
HSHC Intermediate Leasing {UK) Limited England and Wales £1,000 lssued 100%: 0O
HSBC ional Financial Advisers (UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1000
HEBC Intematicnal Financial Services (UK) Umited England and Wales £1°8, £1'# £1 T and, 1008 10000

£1 non-voking redeemable

HSHC Intemational Haoldings (fersey) Limited lersoy £1 Ordinary 0O
HSHC Intemational Trade Finance Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 0O
HSHC Irvbermart v Toleke ikasyan Hizmeteri Sirkeki Turkey TRL1 Mominal G 00
HSEC Irvolce Fimancs (LK) Limdted England and Wales £1 Ordinary O
HEBE Issuer Services Commeon Depositary Nomines [UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 100%: 10000
HEBLC Issuer Services Depositary Mominee (V) Umited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 100%: 10000
HSHC Leasing (France} Framnce: 9.57 Actions G oo
HSHC Life (Europe] Limited Ireland £1 Ordinary B 15%
HSHC Life (UK} Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100%: 0O
HEBL Life Assusrance (fdalta) Limited Maita 1. 18445 Ordinary T
HSHC LU Mominees Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
HSHC Marking Marme Momines {LK) Limited England and Wales £1 1008 10000
HSHC MIDDLE EAST LEASING FARTHERSHIF Level 4, Budding 4, The Gate , Dubai International Financial, B S
HSHC Odeme Sistemien Bdgisayar Telmolofilen Basin Yayin Ve Mustenl Homethen Turkey TRL1 Ordinary G4 O
HSHC Owverseas Mominee (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
HEBL P8 Corporate Services 1 Limited lersey £1 Ordinary T O
HSBC PB Corporate Services 2 Limited sy £1 Ordinary 10000
HEBC Pension Tnsst {Ireland]) Limited Ireland £1.26574 Ordinary 1008 10000
HSHC FH Imvestments (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
HSHC Fortfoy Yonetind &5, Turkey TRL1 & Common 0O
The & Comman h Pt 920 af th d capital and §0.4% ol Ehe wating rigb. TRL1 8 Commaon 000
HSHC Preferential LP (LK) England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100%: 0O
HSHC Privarts Bank {C1.) Limited Gusrrsey W51 Ordinany 1000
HSHC Privarts Bank [} Limitesd England and Wales £10 lssued 1008 10000
HSHC Frivate Banking Momines 1 (Jersey) Limited lersey £1 Ordinary 10000
HSHC Frivate Banking Nomines 2 (lersey) Limited lersey £1 Ordinary 1000
HEBLC Privarte Banking Nomines 3 (Jersey) Limited lersey £1 Ordimary 10000
HSHC Privarte Equity Investments (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 lssused 0O
HSBC Badl {UK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary O
HEBC Beal Estate Leasing {Framoe] France: £15.24 Actiors B S
HSHC REIM {France] Framce 42 Actions G990
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Subsidlaries*

HSHC Espresentative Office (Migena) Limited
HSHC Securities (South Africa) (Fiy) Limited
HESBC Securities Services (Guernsey] Limited
HSHC Securities Services (ireland ) Limited
HSHC Services [France)

HSHC 5FH (Franoe)

HEBLC Stockbrolosr Services (Client Szsets) Mominees Limited
HSHC Stockbrolers {Malta) Limied

HEBL Stodkbrokosrs Momines (LUK} Limited
HSHC TEM Limited

HSHBC Transaction Services GmbH

HSBE Trinkaus & Burkhardt (intematianall 5.4,

HSHC Trinkaus & Burkhardt &5

HEBE Trinkaus & Burkhardt Geselschaft fur Bankbeteili mbH
HEBE Trinkaus Consult GmbH

HSHC Trinkaus Ewropa Imemobiien-Fonds Nr. 5 GmbH
HSHC Trinkaus Family Office GmbH

HSBC Trinkaus immobilien Beteiligungs K&

HSBC Trinkaus Real Estate GmbH

HEBC Trust Comgpany {UK) Limited

HEBC Trustes {C.L] Limited

HESBC Trustes {Guemesey] Umited

HSBC Tulip Funding (LK)

HSBC Wealth Chent Momines Limited

I'.‘m.-uf

Nigeria

South Africa
Gussrsey

Ireland

Framce

France
England and Wales
Maltz
England and Wales
England and Wales

G
England and Wales
Jersey

Gussrsey
England and Wales
England and Wales

HEBC Waorkplace Retirement Services Fund Flatform Momines Company Limited England and Wales

HSHC Yatirim Menkul Degerier 4.5
INEA Internationale Kapétalan
James Capel & Co. Limited
James Capel (Channel (slands) Nominees Limited

James Capel {Custodian) Mominees Limited

James Capel (Nominees) Limdted

James Capel (Second Nominess) Limited

James Capel {Talwan) Mominess Limiged

James Caped (Third Nomineses) Linmited

John Lewis Financial Services Limited

Keyser Ullmann Limiged

Kings Meadow NMominees Limited

Lemasoo Mominees Limited

MdGIM Client HSBC G5 Nominess (LK) Limited

Miarks and Spencer Financial Services plc

Marks and Spencer Retaill Finanoial Services Holdings Limited
Marks and Spencer Sawings and Investments Limited

Mlarks and Spencer Uinit Trust Management Linsited
Miidoorp Limited
Thi £1 Mah-Larm ulithe Rinds

lIschaft mbH

e Do

sharas hive pe valing rights

Mtidland Bank {Branch Nominess) Limited
Miidland Nominees Limited
ML [lersey) Limited
Hewlly Valeuwrs

Prudential Client HSBC 615 SMominee (UK} Limibed
Republic Mominees Limited
54 PC - ipro Becouvrement
Saf Baiyun

Saff Chang liang

Saf Chang liang Ba

Saf Chang liang Er

Saf Chang Jiang Jus

Saff Chang Jiang Liu

Saf Chang Jiang Oi

Saf Chang Jiang San

Saff Chang liang Shi

Saff Chang liang Shi Liu

Saff Chang llang Shi Wu
Saff Chang Jiang Shi'Er

Saff Chang liang Shiyi

Saff Chang liang Wu

Eaff Chang Jiang ¥

Saff Guangzhou

Saf Palissandre
Saff Thu Mang

Saff Thu Mang Ba

Saff Thu lang Er

Saff Thu Mang liu

Saff Thu Mang Liu

Saf Thu Mamg Q)

Saff Thu liang San

Saff Thu Mang Shil

Saff Thu Mang Shi Ba

Turkey
Germany
England and Wales

dersary

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales
Guermsey

HETHHHEEREEHEL
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Secumity
Ordinary no par value
TAE] Ordinary

£1

UE5] and €125 Ordinany
£18.50 Actions

15 Actions

£1 Ordimary
£2.32%%7 Ordinary
£1 Ordinary

£0.01 Ordinary

€1 GmibH Amteil

L1 Common
Sricialdtion no par walue
i1 Coemman

i1 Coemmman
Ordinary no par vakue
i1 GmbH Arvteil

€1 Ordimary

L1 Common

£5 Ordinary

£1 Ordimary
TRL1 Ordinary-&
i1 Coemmon

£1 lssused

£1 Ordimary

£1 Issued

£1 Ordinary

£1 lssused

£1 lssused

£1 lssused

2

335233 § R3F ¢

i § § 8

:
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HEEBC BAMK FLC

Notes on the Financial Statements (continued)

Subsidlaries* Country’ Security’ Direct®  Total %
Saff Thu Mamg Shi Er France L1 Actiongs 90 9o
Saff Thu Mang Shi liu France i1 Actions 48 ook
Saf Thu Mamg Shil Liu France: €1 Actions B S
Saff Thu Mang Shi O Framce: i1 Actions G o
Saff Thu Mang Shi W Framce €1 Actions 9590
Saff Thu Mang Shiyi France 10 Actions 99 9%
Laf Thu Mang Wu France: £10 Actions G e,
Saff Thu Mang i France: £10 Actions o e,
Samada Linnfted bersey £1 Ordinary O
Samuel Montagu & Co Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 1000
545 Bosquet -SAusdrain Mew Caledaonia Franc Pacfic 10,000 Actons G e
545 Cyatheas Fasteur Framnce: £10 Actions G4 9G¥
SA5 Orona Mew Caledonia Franc Pacfic 20,000 Actions G S
S Hervet Mathurins France £15.24 Paris 48 ook
S HSBE Assurances mmo France £152.44 Parts 45 Sk
SF5S Mominees (Pry) Limited South Africa FAE1 Ordinary 1000
Shutthe Developments Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1008 10000
SHC Dorigue Reunion L1 PARTS 99 9%
SMC Kerouan France i1 Farts 99 9
SMC Les Mercuriales France i1 Parts 90 9o
SHC Les Oliviers DAntibes France i£15 Parts L=
SHC Malkala France i1 Parts 40 90
SHC Nudos-Hiva Bail France D Farts 40 90k
SHCES WG - 2008 A Framce L1 Actions G990
SR ME-00T A France 10 Actions 99 9
SHCE/WAGE-2007 B France 10 Actions 90 9o
Socidtd Financéne ef Mobdiére France 16 Actions 48 ook
Sociétd Frangaise ot Suise France i1 Actions 45 Sk
Sociétd Immobdidre Malesherbes-Anjou France L3 Actions 40 90k
Solandra 3 Framce 100 Actions SRITH
Somers (LK) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1004 1000
Somirs Dublin Limited Irelznd £1.25 Ordinary 0O
Zopingest France: Ordinary no par value o e,
Sourth Yorkshire Light Rail Limited England and Wales £, 3 Ordinary O
%t Cross Trustees Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 1000
Swan Maticnal Leasing [Commencials ) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordimary 10000
“Swan Mational Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
Thasosfin France 15 Actions 95 9
The Wenture Catalysts Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 100% 0O
TKM international Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary O
Trimkaus Australien bnmobilien Fonds Hr. 1 Brisbane GmebH & Co, KG Germary €1 Ordinary BOEEN
Trinkaas Sustralien mmabilien-Fonds Mr. 1 Treahand-GmbH Germany i1 GmbH At | A0 A5
Trimcans Canada mmaobilien-Fonds Mr. 1 Verwalbungs-GmbH Germay €1 Ordimary B0 AT
Trimkcanss Europs immobilien-Fonds Mr.2 Objekt Ubrech Versalbungs-GmbH Germamy €1 Ordimary BOSYE
Tnnizas iImmobdien-Fonds Geschaeftsfuehrungs-Gmbd Germany L1 G Arvteil OGS
Trinkaus iImmobdien-Fonds Versaltungs-GmbH Germany i1 GmbiH-Ante | A0 A%
Trimkaus Private Equity Managemaent GmbH Germary €1 Ordinary BOEEN
Trinkaus Private Equity Vensaltungs GmbH Germary €1 GrekH Arvbedl BOETE
Turnsanic (Mominees) Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary 10000
‘Valewrs Mobiléres Blysées France: €16 Actions G4 O
Assocates

Business Growth Fund plc England and Wales £1 Ordinary I Pl
CFALC Payment Scheme Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary o 000
‘T banit's. oddling of prafanesce shares comprives 13500 of the baued capital ard 53 39% of Hhe £1 Preference T B0
sl ighls ol bha company

GIE EDITH BAIL 3 5, gual du Président Faul Doumner, 22400, COURBEVINE, France 20.00%
GIE EDITH BAIL 2 5, qual du Président Faul Doumer, 22400, COURBEVINE, France 20000
GIE GHIFI 17 avenus Hennl Lafleur, Moumniéa, BP K3 98845, New Caledonla  24.99%
Rosimian Linnited England and Wales £{1 B shares 2500
SE1 Karuvefai Guadeloupe D Farts EEk v
sino AG Germany L1 Common 011%
Spire Topoo Hotels Limdted England and Wales £, A and E0.01 B shares A5 TR
Voralink Holdings Limited (sig=ican ik par cigh poist s director) England and Wales £1 Ordinary 15.91% 15.91%
Jaint Weniures

Vaudtexn UK Limited England and Wales £1 Ordinary L0 SO0
HEM Holdings Limdted ek d par sh hary sy ] England and Wales £0.01 Ordinary S1% 5100
1 Al subsidiaries are consolidated

& Country of incorporation or address of principal place of business, if uninconporated
3 ‘Wheere more than cne dass of shares have been issued, the group holds 100% of sach class and 100% of the voting nights, unless indicated otherwise
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( )

( )
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
10,857.53 10,395.18 16,291.31 17,935.64 20,868.03
8,160.01 8,295.63 10,395.18 13,910.16 16,795.96
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 10 2015 11 2015 12

20,841.97 20,808.69 18,770.51 19,803.10 19,944.41 20,012.40
19,737.64 17,806.70 16,930.84 17,722.42 18,683.24 18,565.90
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Independent Auditor’ s Report to the Member of HSBC Bank pic

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion:
HSBC Bank plc's group financial statements and parent company financial statements (the ‘financial statements) give atrue and
fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of the group’s profit and the
group’s and the parent company’s cash flows for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (' |FRS')
as adopted by the European Union;

the parent company financia statements have been properly prepared in accordance with |FRSs as adopted by the European Union
and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financia statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of IAS Regulation.

What we have audited
Thefinancia statements, included within the Annual Report and Accounts 2015 (the * Annual Report’), comprise:

the group and parent company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015;

the group income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the group and parent company cash flow statements for the year then ended;

the group and parent company statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial statements.
These are cross-referenced from the financia statements and are identified as audited.

The financia reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statementsis applicable law and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future events.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the financial year for which the financia
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
we have not received al the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
Directors remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsihilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.

Our responsibility isto audit and express an opinion on the financial statementsin accordance with applicable law and I nternational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & Ireland)’). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only the parent company’s member as a body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility
for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed
by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financia statementsinvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with 1SAs (UK & Ireland). An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Thisincludes an assessment of:

whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed;

the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors judgements against available evidence, forming our own
judgements, and evaluating the disclosuresin the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide a
reasonable basis for usto draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive
procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by usin the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Matthew Falconer, Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, England 22 February 2016
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